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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2021 2020
fm fm
Revenue 353.2 269.7
Revenue at constant currency* 361.0 269.7
Operating profit - pre-royalties receivahte 135.4 73.2
Royalties receivable 16.3 16.8
Operating profit 151.7 90.0
Operating profit at constant currency* 155.7 90.0
Profit before taxation 150.9 89.4
Net increase in cash - pre-dividends paid 93.4 70.5
Earnings per share 372.7p 218.7p
Dividends per share declared in the year 235p 145p
Dividends per share paid in the year 185p 145p
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CHAIR’S STATEMENT

This is my first statement as nan-executive chair of Games Waorkshop Group PLC, having stepped into the job on 1 January 2021,

I'm delighted that we are reporting truly exceptional results in our financial year ended 30 May 2021, with revenue exceeding £350 millicn
and profit before tax of over £150 million for the first time. This outstanding performance has been delivered in a period of unprecedented
global uncertainty with the ongoing health and econamic crises of COVID-19, and it is a true testament boath to the strength of our
operational team and to the resilience of our business madel.

Our culture determines what and haw we deliver and achieve. It is built on the qualities of honesty, humility and courage. We are an
enthusiastic and committed team. We hire people with great skills, great attitudes and great behaviours Our sense of togetherness is very
strong - even more 50 when the gaing is tough, and this year has certainly been tough. We understand that we win together or we lose
together. This year we won together and our company and the Warhammer hobby continue to be in great shape.

We invested £10 million in capita! prajects to support our growing business. We deciared 235 pence per share in dividends totalling £77
million, compared with £47 millian in respect of 2019/20. We were delighted te distribute £13 million equally to all of our colleagues to
recognise their significant role in delivering these great results. We also paid some discretionary bonuses {like we do most years} in
recognition of exceptional performance. These payments were made entirely out of surplus cash generated We continue to have no
borrowings and to retain sufficient cash both to invest in future growth and to protect the business against unfereseen risks and
headwinds.

The heaith and safety of our Games Workshop team, their families and of our custamers and partners continues to be our primary
concern. Many of our retail stores and some of our trade customers have been closed for a large proporticn of the year. Our colleagues
and trade partners are keen to get back to normal as soon as possible, and we will continue to support them in doing so safely.

As Kevin reports later in his strategic review, some of our investment projects have taken longer than we had hoped and we have also
faced significant logistical and operaticnal challenges throughout the year. The Games Workshop team have worked tirelessly to overcome
these challenges, and our ¢custemers have been very understanding when we have fallen short of our normal high standards. Thank you
one and all.

We gim to make the best fantosy minigtures in the world, to engage and inspire our customers, ond to self our products globally at a profit.
We intend to do this forever, ‘Forever’ is an important word to us and alt of our decisions are focused on long-term success and not short-
term gain. We know that to achieve aur ambition to be arcund forever, running the company that we love, we have to have a responsible
and principled approach in gur dealings with all of our stakeheolders - cur colleagues, customers, shareholders, suppliers, local
neighbourhoods and the world in which we live.

We take these responsibilities very seriously and have spent a lot of time this year focusing on more effective wider stakeholder
communication and management lust some examples of this include the establishment of our environment, social and governance (ESG})
steering group, the angeoing development of our global commurication forum and the companywide review of aur remuneration policies
We also reviewed our executive remuneration policy and faund that we had faflen significantly behind market rate for our executives,
given the complexity and size of our business We have addressed this and made some changes to cur policy as cutlined later in this report
We have also spent considerable time reviewing and ensuring that our risk management processes are robust for the world 1n which we
naw operate. As we set out in some detail later in this annual report, we wark hard to ensure that our long-term approach 1s evident across
all aspects of our business and we have again made great progress this year

Cur work on refreshing the camposition of the board of the Company continued this year and after an extensive search process, we were
delighted to welcome Sally Matthews as our newest non-executive director and chair of the audit and risk committee Nick Donaldson
retired from the board on 31 May 2021, having served 19 years as a non-executive director and the last three years as our non-executive
chair | would like to extend my thanks and that of the entire Games Warkshop team to Nick You will be missed

I am delighted in the progress we are making in our board composition. In particular, I'm pleased that we have an executive team with a
combined 48 years of tenure at Games Waorkshap, supported by a non-executive panel with really rich experience across manufacturing
and logistics, IP and media, digita! retailing and financial and listed company expertise. t will continue to keep the board compaosition under
review and commit ta ensuring that we always have a quality team of non-executives with diverse but relevant experience to support our
high performing executives. Ensuring we surround curselves with those who are maral, ethical and quality obsessed will always be a key
priority.

In the coming year, we plan to redouble our focus on ‘to do this forever’. We will do this by accelerating our investment around assessing
our impact on the environment and playing our part to address climate change. We will also continue to invest to put our rich intellectual
property in front of new audiences and explore new product types designed to engage those beyond the tabletop market, encouraging
them to get involved 1n the fantastical warlds of Warhammer. All of these plans will cost maney and their value will only truly be known in
future years but we believe that by investing in strong foundations we will deliver on our commitment of ‘to do this forever’ - which we are
sure is truly in the interests of alf of our stakeholders.
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Last year, we were very disappointed not to host cur AGM face to face. This year, we were once again hoping to be able to hold our AGM
at our global head office in Nottingham. However, we are unfortunately still in the midst of the pandemic and with the health and safety of
our calleagues an angoing priority, we have decided to hold the AGM off-site at Trent Vineyard in Lenton, Nottingham. We recommend
that shareholders do not attend the AGM, hut instead submit any questions by email in advance and vote by proxy.

Finally, in concluding my first statement as your chair, | would like to extend my sincere thanks:

Firstly, to our executive directors and the entire Games Workshop globaf team. The team performance and spirit has been second to

none in very challenging times.

- Secondly, to our loyal customers for continuing to engage in the Warhammer hobby in such a positive way. We will do our best to keep
supperting and delighting you.

- Thirdly, to our shareholders for your angoing support and loyalty. | have really enjoyed meeting many of you virtually and | hope to be

able to see many more of you face to face as and when restrictions ease.

With kind regards

A O Yo e M

Elaine O’'Donnell
Non-executive chair
26 July 2021
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and objectives
Games Workshop is committed to making the Warhammer hobby and our business ever better.

Our ambitions remain clear: to make the best fantasy miniatures in the world, to engage and inspire our customers, and to sel our
products globally at a profit. We intend to do this forever. Qur decisions are focused on long-term success, not short-term gains.

Let me go thraugh our strategy part-by-part:

The first element is that we make high quality miniatures. We understand that what we make may not appeal to everyone, 5o to recruit
and retain customers we are absolutely focused on making cur models the best in the world. In order to continue to do that forever and to
deliver a decent return to our owners, we sell our miniatures for a price that we believe represents the investment in their quality.

The second element is that we make fantasy miniatures based in our endless, imaginary worlds. This gives us control over the imagery and
styles we use, and ownership of the intellectual property [IP). Aside from our core business, we are constantly looking to grow our licensing
income from opportunities to use our IP in other markets.

The third element is that we are customer focused. We aim to communicate in an open, fun way. Whoever and wherever our customers
are, and in whichever way they want to engage with Warhammer, we will do our utmost te support them.

The faurth element is the global nature of our business. Our customers can be found anywhere, and we seek them out all over the world.
They're 3 passionate bunch with an interest in science fiction and fantasy. They're collectors, painters, model builders, gamers, book lovers
and much mare. And while no two engage with Warhammer in exactly the same way, they're all deeply invested in the rich characters and
settings of our 1P,

To reach them, we have two key toals. our retail chain and our digital content. In retail, we showcase the Warhammer hobby and offer a
fantastic customer experience. Qur digital offering has never been richer. Through warhammer-community.com and sacial media we reach
thousands of people every day, showing them the very best aspects of the Warhammer hobby and inviting them to join our global
community of enthusiastic fans

Our retail channel is supported by our own gnline store {it has the full range of our products) and our independent stockist and trade
accounts acrass the world. These independent accounts do a great job supporting our customers in parts of the world where we either
have nat yet apened ane of aur stores or where it (s not commercially viable far us to have one. Our long-term goal is to have all three
channels {retail, trade and anline} growing in harmony We will always have mare independent accounts than our own stores Qur strategy
15 10 grow our business through geographic spread, growing all of the three complementary channels

The fifth element s being focused on cash. By delivering a good cash return every year we can continue to nnovate, surpnse and delight
our loyal existing customers and new customers with great preduct To be around forever we also need to invest in both long-term capital
and short-term maintenance projects every year, pay our staff what they have earned for the value they cantribute and delver surplus
cash to our shareholders. Qur dedication and focus should ensure we deliver on time and within our agreed cash limtts

We measure our long-term success by seeking 2 high return oninvestment In the short term, we measure our success on our ability to
grow sales whilst maintaining our core business operating profit margin at current levels The way we go about implementing this strategy
15 to recruit the best staff we can We look for those with the appropriate attitude and behavicur 3 given job requires and for those who
are moral, ethical and quality absessed 1t15 also impertant that everyone we employ has a real desire to learn the skills needed to do their
job and has a great attitude towards change {there's never a dull moment here!) To support them, we offer all of our staff both personal
development and skills training

We continue to believe there are great opportunities for aur business to grow, particularly in Narth America and Asia

Our brands
We have originated and are in contral of a number of strong, globally recognised brands with their own dentitres, associations and logos

Our key consumer facing brand is ‘Warhammer’.

We design, make and sell products under a number of brands and sub brands, which denote setting, tone and product type, the key ones
being.

- Warhammer: Age of Sigmar - our unique fantasy setting.

- Warhammer 40,000 - our most popular and recognisable brand is a space fantasy setting.

- Horus Heresy - an offshoot of Warhammer 40,000, the Horus Heresy brand is presented as “fictional history’ of that universe.

We believe our IF to he among the best in the world.
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Strategy and objectives

Qur brands continued

The Warhammer settings are incredibly rich and evocative backdrops. They're populated by more than three decades of fantastical
characters and comprise thousands of exciting narratives. We are committed to making it easier than ever for people to discover, engage
with and immerse themseives in our IP. Aided by a small, senior team we have already begun to find new partners, and new ways to help
us bring the worlds of Warhammer to life like never before. Together, we’ll continue to explore animation, live action and mare. We'll
present the very best aspects of our rich IP, delighting audiences while always ensuring we do no harm to our core miniatures business.

Business model and structure

We design, manufacture, distribute and sell our fantasy miniatures and related products. These are fantasy miniatures from our own
Warhammer 40,000 and Warhammer: Age of Sigmar universes. Our two factories, two warehouse facilities and back office support
functions are all based in or near Nottingham. We are an international business centrally run from our HQ in Nottingham, with 77% of aur
sales coming from outside the UK.

Design .

We design all of our products at our HQ in Nottingham. Employing 262 people, the design studio creates all the IP and all the associated
miniatures, artwork, games and publications that we sell. Annually, these specialist staff produce hundreds of new sculpts, illustrations,
rulaes, staries etc. enabling us to deliver new products every week and continue tc keep our customers engaged and excited. In 2020/21 we
invested £12.7 million in the studio (including software costs) with a further £4.4 million spent on tooling for new plastic miniatures. We
are commutted to investing in these areas at an appropriate level every year.

All of our plastic miniatures are branded as Citadel Miniatures, a mark with an unparalleled reputation for quality. It denotes both a style
and level of detail that we apply to both our own worlds (Warhammer 40,000, Warhammer: Age of Sigmar, etc.) and those of others, e.g.
Lord of the Rings.

Our resin miniatures, designed for mare experienced customers, are branded as Forge Worid and are less widely available than their plastic
counterparts.

Many customers love personalising their miniatures and our Citadel Colour paint range, brushes and accompanying painting system are
designed tc help everyone from the complete beginner to the most experienced painters in the world achieve great results. In the pursuit
of ever better, we continually develop new types of paint and ways of using them. The result - our paints are used the world over. And for
painting more than just our miniatures!

When not interacting with our miniatures, many customers enjoy reading stories set in our rich and immersive worlds, Under our Black
Lebrary rmprint we publish hundreds of titles a year, from short stories and audio dramas through to full length novels and audio books
These we make availakle in physical bookstores, third party digital platforms and through our own retall and other specialist stores

Manufacture

We are proud to manufacture our preduct In Nettingham. It's where we started and where we intend 1o stay. During the year we
completed the work on Factory 2 of increasing cur production facilities in Nottingham, with the expansion of our tooling facility and further
office space We also purchased a further two pieces of land next to our main site in Nottingham which will allow for future expansion

Logistics

Our product is distributed from our main warehouse at the Nottingham HQ or cur new rented warehouse facility approximately 25
minutes from the main HQ These facilities supply our two hubs; ane in Memphis, Tennessee and one in Sydney, Australia. Between these
four facilities we are able to then directly supply our independent retailers, our own retail stores and fulfil our anline orders The upgrade
of the Memphis facility as well as moving into this new rented warehouse near Nottingham, are now both nearing operational completion

Selt
We sell via three channels, our own stores ‘Retail’, third party independent retailers ‘Trade’ and our oniine store ‘Cnline’ We also sell’, or
rather generate income, via our licensing partners We support these channels and activities via our digital and marketing team.

Retail - our stares provide the focus for the Warhammer hobby in their geographical areas. Our stares only stock Games Waorkshep
product. They are where we recruit the majority of aur new customers To do so, the stores don't offer the full range of our product, only
starter sets, new release product and the appropriate extended range. At the year end, we had 523 of our own retail stores in 23 countries.
Qur stores contributed 20% of the year’s sales. We have 406 single staff stares: small sites, each one operated by only ane store manager.
We also have 117 multi-staff stores, which, like our single staff stores, are constantly reviewed to ensure they remain profitable. If not,
they will probably be converted to single staff stores.

Trade - we sell 1o third party retailers under closely controlled terms and conditions. Independent retailers are an integral part of our
business mode! helping us to sell cur products around the world and importantly in areas where we don't have our own stores. Games
Warkshop strives to support those outlets which help to build the Warhammer hobby community in their focal areas. The bulk of our sales
to independent retailers are made via our telesales teams based in Memphis and Nottingham. We also have small telesales teams in
Sydney, Tokyo, Shanghai, Singapore, Hong Kong and Kuala Lumpur. in 2020/21 we had 5,400 independent retailers (2020, 4,300) in 73
countries. We strive to deliver excellent service, operating in 23 languages covering all time zones. 55% of our sales came from sales to
independent retailers in the year reported. These sales are from their physical stores as well as their own online web stares.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Business model and structure continued

Sell continued .
Cnkne - sales via our own web stores accounted for 25% of total sales in 2020/21. All of our retail stores also have a web store terminal
that allows our customers to access the full range from within the store Qur web stores are run centrally from our Nottingham HQ.

Licensing - we grant licences to a number of carefully chosen partners. This allows us to leverage our IP to broaden the presence and brand
exposure of Warhammer around the world, often entering new markets such as board games, apparel or accessaries and media and
entertainment. It alsa allows us to generate additional income. Currently, the majority of this income is generated by computer games
sales in North America, the UK and Continental Europe.

Marketing - keeps us customer focused. This team acts as the bridge betweer our cther business areas, ensuring we have a joined up
approach between product (design to manufacture) and sales. Marketing spends a lot of time listening and developing a two way dialogue
with aur customers to make sure we keep their needs at the farefront, championing the Warhammer hobby around the glohe and injecting
cur content and communications with a real sense of passion and fun

Structure

We conirol the gusiness centrally from our HQ in Nottingham, it 1s where the majority of people with experience and knowledge of running
our business work. | have put in place 3 flat structure the people with seruor responsibility that make all of the big decisions report directly
1o me To bring extra focus and ambition, my team 1s now split into six parts product design and IP creation, manufacturing and supply
chain, sales, digital and marketing, operations and support, and IP exploitation

We have a global IP and product design director who 1s responsible for our design studios (miniatures, books and box games. specialist
systems, Warhammer habby product and our publishing business, Black Library)

The respansibility for our retail chain s spht between two retail territory heads, ane for North America and Asia and ane for the rest of the
world. Qur trade sales are the responsibility of a single head of trade sales All of our online and digital sales are the responsibitity of a
global marketing and digita: director

These sales channels are supported by a merchangising team, managed by the global manufacturing and supply chain director and by the
marketing team that sits under the global marketing and digital director. The global manufacturing and supply chain director also manages
the factories and our four main warehcuse facilities in Nottingham, Memphis and Sydney.

Cur operatiens and support structure includes a chief financial officer for Games Workshop who s respansibie for accounts, HR, legal and
compliance, and licensing as well as ensuring we invest in our core IT systems to help us deliver our long-term goals

Key performance indicatars

The board and management team use a number of key performance indicators to provide a consistent methaod of analysing performance,
in addition to allowing the hoard to benchmark perfarmance against our forecast The key performance indicators utilised by the board can
be split into key financial performance indicators and key non-financial performance indicators

Our key financial performance indicators are:
Monthly and year-to-date sales growth by channel
This measures the sales growth achieved in each of our channels on a monthly and year to date basis: see page 13.

Monthly and year to date Graup gross margin
This measures the gross margin achieved on sales after taking account of the direct costs and depreciation of manufacturing equipment
and shipping our product to customers/stores on a monthly and year to date basis: see page 14.

Year to date core business operating profit percentage
The ratia of core business operating profit before royalty income against revenue, as a percentage: see page 15. Thisis considered to be a
measure which reflects sales under our direct control.

Maonthly and year to date care business profit
This measures gross profit less operating expenses on a monthly and year to date basis, befare royalty income: see page 15. This is
considered to be a measure which reflects sales under our direct contral.

Qur key nan-financial performance indicators are:
Number of own stores by territary
This measures the number of our own stores which s an indicator of our global reach: see page 13.

Number of ordering stockist accounts by territory

This measures the number of trade outlets that have ordered from us in the last six months. It is an indicator of our global reach and the
heaith of our trade account base: see ‘Trade’ paragraph on page 5.
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Key performance indicators continued

Key non-financial performance indicators continued

Customer engagement

We measure this through our owned content channel warhammer-carmmunity.cam and reach delivered through our social platforms: see
page 11.

Staff engagement
We have a monthly Games Workshop Group Communications Forum which is attended by staff representatives and senior managers. This
is to ensure regular staff engagement across the Group. Infermation on topics discussed at these meetings is circulated to all staff and to

the board.

Sharehalder value
We believe shareholder value is created, primarily, by not destroying it. We have no intention to acquire other companies, nor to dispose

of any of those we own.

We return our surplus cash to our owners and try 1o do so in ever increasing amounts. A ‘'working cash buffer’ of three months’ worth of
wur king Lapildl reguirement has been set aside along with six months” worth ot tuture capital spend and tax payments before deciding
how much cash is truly surplus for the purpose of declaring dividends.

Groph of shoreholder value
Shareholder value for this graph is calculated as the price of our shares at year end plus the dividend per share declared in the year.

Review of the year

Care business

covin-19

As ever, cur global team has been focused on delivering a better performance, and making the Warhammer hobby ever more fun and
engaging. With a challenging backdrop we have been able to deliver on our core strategy and our customers have continued to enjoy
Warhammer as best they can We look forward to the easing of restrictions, healthy and happy staff and customers, all able to engage in
our full Warhammer hobboy experence

Our priaribies during the year have not changed - to protect the health and safety of our staff and to do our utmost to balance the needs of
all stakeholders We have done well, supporting governments fully with their heaith and safety guidelines keeping peaple safe, aur staff
with job security, wellbeing suppert and fuli pay. Our customers have had considerably more free, engaging digital content and the best
new miniatures we have ever made! To our disappointment, we have also had more customers’ service issues, chiefly delays on deliveries
These were primarily driven by our internal issues with capacity canstraints at our warehouse facilities, rather than by external factors To
suppart affected customers we upscaled our customer service resource. We have continued to support our suppliers, staying loyal
whenever possible and paying their invoices on time. Our sharehalders have had record dividends too. Our focus an spending cash wisely
has proven the right approach, we have had good cash balances throughout the year i line with our short term forecasts We will continue
to focus on impraving our relationships with all stakeheolders and make decisions with all in mind.

Where passible our office based staff (global services, studios, trade sales teams etc.) have warked from homa. We have now been clcar
with all of our statt what their new warking arrangements will be going forward. In summary, our office based suppart and operations staff
will have same flexibility, working from home for some or all of the week. All other staff will operate full-time from one of cur business
locations. We are currently working on making the HQ office space in Nottingham more flexible to meet cur new requirements. This should
be completed by September 2021. Office based staff are being phased back as we complete the work on their areas. | hape everyane
settles into their new areas well, and | look forward to playing musical chairs with everyene, including the senior team, wha will be making
use of our new hot desk areas!

Cur manufacturing, warehousing and support teams at cur main HQ in Nottingham and warehouse hubs in Memphis, Tennessee and
Sydney, Australia, not only worked well within our health and safety procedures but they have also made, picked and packed a significant
increase in volume compared to the same period last year. All our staff in these areas are still working to local sccial distancing guidelines,
these will be amended as government guidelines change.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Core business continved

COVID-19 continued

The majority of our 523 retail stores have been restricted or closed during the period, following local government guidelines. It was great
to see, during the periods our stares were allowed to open, our store managers doing a fantastic job of delivering their normal outrageous
service for our loyal customers during such z challenging time. Our retail offer is one of our unique services. You'll find no better place to
immerse yourself in the Warhammer hobby, Many trade accounts have been able to access government assistance, and many have the
flexibility to sell outside of their physical location (online via 'click and collect’, 'curbside pickup' and delivery). it is still early days to predict
what 2021/22 is going to look like, We continue ta invest in all of our sales channeis.

in line with aur earlier anncuncement regarding repayment of furlough support and other government subsidies, we have cancelled the UK
expanded business rates retal! discount scheme for 2020/21. We made no claims for financial support or subsidies from governments
during the pericd.

There still remains the potentiat for further disruption, so we will continue to monitor the impact and do what is necessary to ensure our
staff, their families and our customers are safe. Thisis, and will remain, at the forefront of our minds.

Year to May 2021

This has been a tough and challenging year operationally far everyone, As a global, vertically integrated business it has taken a
considerable effort to keep our operational plans on track. I'd like to take the opportunity te acknowledge everyone that has helped us
during these challenging times. Thanks to you all, you have been amazing.

Qur core strategy is unchanged and we have delivered on all of the key elemeants. They have again driven our growth in sales and profits.
The key elements are:

Make the best fantasy miniatures
- Engage and inspire our customers
Seli our product profitably, globally
Make decisions with lang term success in mind

More Warhommer More Often - care business
At our 2019 AGM we shared a new phrase ‘More Warhammer. More Often’ We believe Warhammer is immense fun, and we wanted to be
ciear that there are many more ways to take part than ever before and that all of them should be embraced and supported equally

To help mare people enjoy Warhammer in more ways, we have our core business which fecuses on realising our iP as miniatures and
supporling products - the core Warhammer hobby A licensing team which 1s there to enrich ana expand the ways in which Warhammer
fans can interact with the IP As ever we want to make sure Warhammer s around forever and so we pick partners carefully, ones with
respect for the 1P and the creative vision to help strengthen and enrich it. To bridge these areas, we aim to bring everything to My
Warhammer, a single source of truth for ali things Warhammer We continue to develop this platform

The main highlight of the year far the core husiness was a confident glaba! raunch of our updated Warhammer 40,000 system which, gven
the increased volumes, tested our legacy IT systems to their maximum They mostly passed the tests. Qur relentless focus on producing the
highest guality miniatures continues to deliver results That combined with a customer focused approach helped us sell more miniatures
than any year hefare.

The low point - at timeas we looked under considerable pressure, but the shared understanding of our beliefs amongst my senior team, and
many othars, pulled us through Our understanding that there are no stver bullets and our attitude te hard work, and aur compassion and

camaraderie have never been more essential. The global team has documented and delivered an ever changing cperational plan again, and
it continues (I actively encourage) to be a Iittle flexible araund the edges leaving us the freedom to make changes to and explore unproven
new nitiatives

The results: another solid year building on the great progress and profitable growth we have been consistently delivering over the last six
years. | will continue to set the bar higher; it is worth noting that historically the ([aunch year of a new Warhammer 40,000 edition is
normally the financial high point. - until the next edition of Warhammer 40,000. The goal is to ensure we help more and more people share
our love far Warhammer. Our immediate operationai plans look encouraging.

Given the backdrop 1 am delighted to report an exceptional financial performance; record constant currency sales, profit and cash
generation in the period. in line with our Group Profit Share scheme and previous years, we have paid in tatal £2.6 million {2020: £2.4
million} to staff. To further reward their exceptional performance in helping to increase our prafitability significantly in the period reported,
we have also paid in cash a discretionary bonus equally to ail employees of a total of £10.6 million {2020: £nil). Total dividends declared in
the period reported were 23S pence per share (2020 145 pence per share).
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Update on priorities for 2020/21

We have made some reasonable progress with our key priorities. Each of these is designed to ensure we deliver our exciting operational
plan and contimue to engage and inspire our loyal customers.

Some have been delayed by COVID-19 and Brexit, others by our inability at times to implement large scale projects on time. | accept full
responsibility for the delays, clearly the plan wasn’t good enough. We are working to address any issues. Most are under our control.

Business recovery

Qur factory sites and logistics hubs have adopted COVID-19 social distancing measures and practices, above and beyond basic government
minimum requirements. Whilst these measures have constrained capacity a little, they have ensured that staff remain safe. As a minimum,
we will continue to adhere to government guidelines.

Design

The new edition of the Warhammer 40,000 range, set in our unique science fiction IP, was released in July 2020 and has, by a considerable
margin, been our most successful launch to date. Along with fantastic new models, the new edition introduced a step change in narrative
gaming for thase Warhaniner hobbyists whose primary passion 1s bringing our worlds to life on the tabletop. Sales of subsequent new
releases and existing lines have all enjoyed good levels of success since the launch.

Releasas for Age of Sigmar, our primary fantasy IP, included three new factions, and the Cursed City game which, dramatically exceeding
expectations, sold aut very quickly. We do our best to guess the right number to make, sametimes we are wrong. The second half of the
year has seen releases facused around a series of dramatic in-world events leading up to the launch of a new edition of the game in the

first quarter of next financial year - we can't wait!

To improve the quality and accessibility of our offer we are expanding our translation teams. In-house Chinese and Russian translation
teams will be in place in Q1 and Q2 respectively next financial year.

There were four magazine partworks based on our Warhammer miniatures hobby running throughout the year and tests were successfully
conducted in the UK, Spain, Germany and (for the first time) the US for launches in 2021/22.

Qur other inteliectuat properties - Necromunda, Adeptus Titarcus, Aeronautica and Lord of the Rings, are all in good health receiving a
steady stream of new product in the year while Blood Bowl, our irreverent game of fantasy football, had a new edition which was
enthusiastically received by both new and existing custamers alike. We will cantinue to develop and periodically bring to market new IPs
and game systems, giving both existing and new customers mare reasons to collect our wanderful miniatures. We have plenty af exating
plans in the pipeline

Paint sales were flat in the year following a significant new release launch in the summer of 2019 We are committed to cantinuing to
develop new and innavative paint, enabling customers to get ever better results from this popular aspect of the Warhammer hobby

Black Library, cur novel publishing division, also had its best year so far puklishing over 150 new titles it was no surprise that digital sales
of these titles were popuiar on the large digital platforms, mare than offsetting the lower sales from third party physical bookstores that
were closed during the period

The strategy of keep ng customers engaged by broadening and deepening cur offer sees us continue to invest in IP and design with studio
payroll costs increasing by £1 1 million ta £10.0 milhon, as a percentage of Group revenue they have fallen by 0.5% to 2.8%. Studio payroll
costs as a percentage of Group revenue are forecast to be higher in the next financial year, which will allow us to bring additional product
lines to the market and alse provide additianal intellectual property for explaitation through our licensing team

Manufacturing

Another busy year and step change in output versus last year against a backdrap of sigmficant disruption in the global supply chain. Cur
two factaries are up and running and are now fully operational In line with our aim of maximising cutput from our twao current factories,
permanent night shifts have been estahlished in key areas with additional weekend shifts used to respond to spikes in demand.

Our phased increase n plastic production capacity will coatinue with an additional five injection moulding machines scheduled to be
operational by August 2021 and a further eight by January 2022 New paint filling equipment will be installed in the second quarter of
2021/22 delivering both capacity and cost efficiencies. Additional land adjacent to our new Factory 2 has been secured to ensure that
space does not become a constraint to output in the future.

Having received CCC product safety registration for China last year we now have ¢. 750 products that have successfully been registered.
Due to some cross border delays with customs clearance they have not all been an sale in the country just yet. We hope to have them all
on sale soon.

Production payroll costs rose in the year in line with costs increasing by £2.5 million to £10.0 million, being maintained at 2.8% of Group
revenue despite COVID disruption and pay rises.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Update on priorities for 2020/21 continued

Warehousing

UK

Avery busy year, with multiple issues initially beyond our control thrown at us. I'm keeping my fingers crossed when | say we're starting to
see some good progress addressing delays delivering product to our very patient and understanding customers.

A wide array of activities have been supported through the new East Midlands Gateway (EMG) faciiity following its partial opening in
summer 2020. Reliance upon third party warehousing services has dramatically reduced, and our interim warehouse management
solutions, whilst far from optimal, have delivered record compornent volumes, in turn supporting unparalleled factory output.

The warehausing aperation development works at our EMG facility are now well progressed with the instaliation of racking, conveyor,
robotics solutions and our strategic warehouse management system [mirroring the facility in Memphis). These are all progressing at pace
and should be completed during the summer of 2021, soon! Consultation with staff moving between the old and new facilities is well
advanced with the main body of staff transitioning from September 2021. Works to reconfigure and repurpose the ariginal Eurohub facility
in Nattingham to become our primary component facility will cammence in late 2021,

North America

Development and testing of our much needed warehouse equipment and systems upgrade in Memphis continued throughout the year.
The phased implementation of new solutions, which commenced at the end of May 2021, dramatically increased our capacity, thoughin
recent months even this has not been able to keep pace with customer demand. We are confident that ance fully operational, cur new
solutions will enable us to provide the levels of service we and our customers expect going forward

Australia

During much of the year global shipping and container constraints heavily restricted our ability to flow product into Australia, with
customer demand regularly outstripping availzble supply before gradually improving in the last six months. We have again extended the
lease on our current Sydney facility for a two year period.

Total warehousing costs have increased by £5 1 million to £16.8 million; 35 a percentage of sales they have increased from 4.3% tc 4 8%.
We would expect this percentage to rise to 5.2% and then remain at similar sales levels following the investments described above.

Services
We continue to invest in the core support functiaons of the business.

During the past year we have restructured our people team to place clear emphasis on the key functions of business support and advice,
and resourcing and development. Uur support and advisery function gives managers and staff the support they need with day-to-day
employment matters Inrecent months it has (and continues to) manage the transition of staff to new ways of working 1n the future,
whether office based or flexible, and in the year ahead 15 focussed on ensuring that ail managers across the business have the toaols they
need to manage their teams effectively. Set goals, keep score, take appropriate action remains gur overriding management principle Our
resouroing and development function has had a busy year They have successfully launched our new learning management system (LMS)
across the business, giving us an effective way of managing training acraoss the Group and a platform through which we can give staff
access to the training and development material they need, whenever they need it The team have also launched a new induction
programme for new starters in the UK which we will be replicating globally in the year ahead We continue to strive to make sure that
everyone feels welcome and supported at Games Workshop, both on arrival and throughout what we hope will be long and successfui
careers

We have recently merged our health and safety and wellbeing functians into a combimed team and we are very excited to be planning for
the launch of a new Graup wide wellbeing programme later in the year. This programme will include a range of new initiatives for Games
Waorkshop, across the key subjects of health, mental wellbeing, engagement and personal and professional development Now more than
ever, we recognise the importance of wellbeing, and this s a oriority far us in the year ahead

Our 1T team has provided solutions for a successful transition for staff in the office to be able to do their jobs from home. These included a
new VPN solution, upgrading of internet connectivity to our data centres, providing laptops and hardware for all home workers and
ensuring we all work in a safe and secure manner, protecting our IP and data. iT has piayed a significant part in working ¢losely with all key
business areas in continuing to deliver key projects including ERP, new warehouse solutions and new cffices and factory sites. Along with
all the projects the IT team has done a sterling job in managing the pressure on our IT systems with the increased growth in sales,
manufacturing and warehousing operations.
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Brexit

Since the UK referendum result on membership of the EU in June 2016, we have been working to assess and mitigate the likely impacts of
Brexit on our customers and suppliers. Our fundamental objective was to ensure that we offer continuity of service and supply to our
customers, wherever they are. We dentified a number of key areas of facus for a potential Brexit impact, specifically:

+ The movement of goods from the UK to the EU across all sales channels has faced significant disruption. We again acknowledge that
unfortunately delivery service to our Continental European customers was well below expectations during the opening months of
2021. We have offered full refunds and if needed, extended credit to trade accounts whenever it was needed. Total refunds were £1.2
millian in the period. We centinue to monitor the impact on our trade account base as it is too early to see the impact of this
disruption. It is stitl early days, but we now have a reliable cross border service up and running which was implemented in April 2021
We are strengthening our {ogistics team further with in-country resources to better support our international growth; the world seems
to be getting smaller but crassing boarders much harder.

» The recruitment and retention of EU nationals working in the UK has, as you would expect, not been plain sailing this year either. Qur
EU trade team is based in Nottingham and during the year we never really had a full team. The team we did have though are an
engaging, international bunch who tackled the year with their usual lively style.

Diversity

Our behaviour led culture governs how we work and our shared beliefs guide our interactions with each other. We will cantinue to
performance manage and recryit for the personal qualities you need to do a particular job as wel! as the necessary skills. We do not select
based on any other criteria. | wiil continue to do my best to ensure this is the case and that we are fair and free from any bias and/er
prejudice

Sustainobility

Climate change has enormous implications for society. We acknowledge that fully. We are committed tc doing our bit. We waon't make any
long term promises - we never do on any topic. We will guarantee to take it seriously and make progress every year. By continuing to do the
right thing we will deliver change,

More recently we have created a new ‘Sustainability action list” which aligns our approach of just doing the right thing with better external
reporting. The action list will focus our efforts on where we can make the biggest difference. We believe that we create long-term value for
our stakeholders through delivering on each of these elements: growth, good cash returns and by having a positive impact on others

Customer focus

This year, perhaps more than ever before, we focused on supporting our global community through engaging and mnspiring content With
the world in lockdown, our digital spaces became the core way in which people could engage with the Warhammer hobby. This posed
some unique challenges and allowed us to highlight one of the greateast things about Warhammer -1t is far more than just a game

Over the year we put out over 10,000 pieces of digital content, giving our fans constant encouragement, insprration and support as they
enjoyed building and painting their collections, sharing their efforts digitally and immersing themselves in Warhammer lore To take the
place of physical events and Warhammer gatherings, we hosted special anline events and streamed live seminars, each of which saw over
a milkion interactions The result - the best year for engagement and online sales we've ever had.

Warhammer-community.com, the cornerstone of our onhne presence, saw visits increase by 16% compared to the prior year We saw
strong growth across aur secial media channels too, with engagements up 25% on the prior year Our emall lists also performed well with
21 2 milhon opens in the periad, up 18% on priar year and subscribers are now approaching 600,000

More Warhammer. Mare Often - medic and entertainment

We're now very clase to launching our bespoke subscription service, Warhammer + This service wil) provide our loyal fans witn a new way
to experience the worlds of Warhammer and 1s how we will distribute the arumated shows our internal Warhammer animaticns team have
been working on Launching with a host of animation shows, as well as all-new garming, painting and lore shows. Warhammer + will also
give subscribers access to free exclusive miniatures and more

When we previewed Warhammer + and some of its exciting shows, 1t quickly became some of our most viewed content of all time Our
fans were thrilled at the opportunity to see their favourite characters and settings on screen and enjoying these new media ventures 15 fast
becoming a core part of what it means to be a Warhammer hobbyist

Licensing

Qur strategy is to exploit the value in our huge and extensive (nearly 40 years) library of IP across multiple markets globally and in multiple
categories for bath direct income and increased brand awareness and engagement. We intend to ensure Warhammer's place as one of the
top fantasy IPs globally through a number of key goals. These are:

* Increasing our video game activity and revenues
e Establishing our IPs use in widely distributed entertainment projects

We only intend ta work with high calibre expert companies in each one. We focus the majority of our efforts on key franchises, specific

interpretations of parts of our IPs, typically driven by video game or media praojects, for example the Vermintide and the Total War series of
games.
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Priorities for 2021/22 continued

Finally, we have added social responsibility as a key area of focus. We have been making some gocd progress quietly in the background.
However, with the evolving expectations of our different stakehalders and authorities we will examine our existing and potential social and
environmental risks in greater depth. Some of the findings may be translated into us tracking new key performance indicators. We are
tooking for significant ways we can support global initiatives including climate change, diversity and equality. A huge area so we will be
documenting a realistic plan to make some progress, forever. We will of course comply with any future reporting requirzements, no small
task in itself, needs must. One of the biggest challenges for us will be finding a plastic alternative. We will be working closer with the
industry to see if we can help in any way. One of the biggest opportunities is to continue to make Games Workshop and the Warhammer
hobby even mare inclusive.

This will be an investment we cammit to every year. Often long-term commitments like these are paused when financial KPls need to be
maintained. To deliver a long term change we really need toc commit for the long term

Media and entertoinment
The priarity remains the same - to successfully launch our IP to live action or animation shows.

Inhouse projects
As | write our new Warhammer + offer is getting its final tests. An exciting new way to interact with the worlds of Warhammer. This is not
just a place to see content, it will be much more. It will launch this summer.

Licensed projects

The small team centinues to search for the right deals. They have been busy during the year, separating our IP into some exciting
franchises. A fancy term for us splitting our IP up into significant distinctive brands. We are always looking to assign rights ta deliver value
whilst appropriately protecting our IP. We are pursuing many interesting projects; some directly profit enhancing, some great for brand
awareness which I'm sure will help us show more peopie that Warhammer 15 one of the best fantasy IPs. There are many opportunities,
none are guaranteed successes. With the team adding some industry experience, I'm sure we will get more projects right than we get
wreng.

Sales

Reparted sales grew by 31% to £353.2 millian far the period. On a constant currency basis, sales were up by 34% from £269.7 million to
£361.0 million, sphit by channel this comprised. Trade £200.6 million {2020. £140.0 million), Retail £72.0 million (2020: £78 0 milhon} and
Online £88.4 million (2020: £51.7 millign).

Sales by segment

Year to Year to Year to Year to
30 May 2021 31 May 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020
Constant Constant Actual Actual 2021 2020
currency currency rates rates % of tatal % of total
£m £m £m £m sales _ sales
Trade 0.6 1445.0 194.8 140.0 55% 52%
Retail 72.0 78.0 70.7 780 20% 29%
Online . o 88.4 51.7 87.7 51.7 25% 19%
Total sales 361.0 169.7 353.2 269.7

Sales by channel '
55% {2020 52%) of sales were to -ndependent retaders, 20% (2020 29%) of sales were made through our own stores and 25% {2020 19%)

were anline

Trade

Trade achueved significant growth of 39% with growth in alk key countries. In the period, our net number of trade outlets increased by ¢ 500
accounts to 5,400 which helped drive forward sales in this channel. It’s worth noting that a large numher of independent retailers now also
sell our products online, meaning our customers have more choice than ever about where to buy Warhammer.

Retaif
Store openings and closures during the year:

Number of Number of
Number of Number of single staff single staff
stares at stores at stores at stores at
31 May 2020 Opened Closed 30May 2021 30 May 2021 31 May 2020
UK 140 P 4 138 96 98
North America 160 3 2 161 142 141
Continental Europe 157 2 6 153 113 113
Australia 43 2 2 49 37 37
Asia 25 - 3 22 18 22
531 9 17 523 406 411
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Sales by channel continued

Retail continued

We believe our stares are the best place to start your Warhammer hobby journey with us. Itis not a surprise that our +500 own stores
have never sold the highest volume of our specific getting started product ranges, that has always been +5,000 independent outlets, but,
they have always had a dedicated team with extensive Warhammer knowledge building local communities and offering Warhammer hobby
guidance and support. Itis an essential and unique customer service offer that we are proud of.

In the period, we opened, including retocations, 9 stores. After closing 17 stares, our net total number of stores at the end of the period is
523, Retail remains a challenging environment. We finished the year surprisingly well after what seemed an endless period of closure in
magst countries broadly in line with government restrictions. As the retail stores re-open, the performance of each stare will be kept under
review and any stores that do not meet cur financial model will be closed. Of the 50 stores that did not break even in the year, the value of
the assets related to these stores is not material.

Our relatively new Warhammer cafe store in Dallas, Texas is a great example of a new format that we have piloted that is profitable. It, like
most of our North American stores, could offer ‘phone and collect’ throughaout the period. We opened qur secand cafe store in California in
June 2021 and are planning a further 10 new stores in North America in the new year too. The majority of new store openings will continue
to follow our low cost single staff model. These were previously known as ‘one-man stores’. Onreflection this was a paor choice of term,
and doesn’t accurately reflect the diverse group of individuals running aur stares. We have never meant any offence ever to anyone, We
will continue to review the format of our stares pragmatically. Ensuring we always recruit great store managers and offer aur customers an
exceptional in-store experience, remains a priority for us.

Online

Online sales cantinue to grow by 70% compared to the same period last year. It more than made up for the sales volume shortfall when
physical stores were closed. As noted above, our custemers have a lot of options when it comes to shopping for Warhammer online, and
are able to buy our preducts both through cur own web stores (reported in Online} and through those of independent retailers (reported
in Trade)

Cur online store is, however, locking a little dated and the back-end systems at times cannot cope with current volumes, clearly not a long
term solution or as customer focussed as we would like it to be. The complexity of our ERP upgrade has pushed back the start of a project
to upgrade our digital offer, which includes personalising content and improving navigation, by about a year. We are curréntly in the
scoping phase. The early concepts look amazing It will be anather major IT supported praject 50 we will be resaurcing it appropriately with
third party expertise.

Gross margin

Gross margin improved in the year {2021 72 7%; 2020 67.0%) This was due to a combination of the disruption in production and
inventory provisions booked in the prior year due to COVID-19, as well as being positively impacted 1 the current year by the sales mix of
new and existing product {38% of sales from new releases and 62% of sales from existing product) and channel mix changes

Casts

Costs have increased oy £14 1 million in the year (2021 34.4% of sales, 2020 39 8% of sales)- £4 1 milhon additicnal spend on Gur
operations, suppart and marketing teams including staff costs in support functions of £1.5 miilion, IT related costs of £1.0 rllion, brang
marketing costs of £1 1 mullion and adrmmstrative cost increases of £0.5 million. Web store running costs have increased by £1.9 million,
whilst retail costs have decreased by £5.1 million due to reduced travel, retail warkshops and variable staffing costs during store closures
We have invested an additional £0.4 million in the licensing team As a direct result of our performance we rewarded all our staff with a
£1,000 profit share payment each (2021 £2 6 milhon; 2020- £2 4 milhon) as well as a discretionary payment of £4,000 each (total cost
£10.6 mithon, 2020 £rl} Bonuses to the senior management team were £1.1 million {2020 €0.3 million)

Operating profit
Operating profit/{loss) by segment

Year to Year to Year to Year to

30 May 2021 31 May 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020

Constant currency Constart currency Actual rates Actual rates

£m fm £m £m

Trade 6.6 4.6 6.4 4.6
Retail 29 2.9 2.8 29
Online 29 1.7 2.6 1.7
Design to manufacture 226.0 134.3 222.6 134.3
Merchandising and logistics (47.5) {(36.2) (47.3) {36.2}
Other costs {50.8) {33.1) (50.4) (33.1)
Licensing (net of casts) 15.6 15.8 15.0 158
Total operating profit 155.7 30.0 151.7 90.0
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Core business operating profit (operating profit before royalty income)

Core business operating profit grew by £62.2 million to £135 4 million (2020: £73.2 million}. On a constant currency basis, core business
operating profit increased by £65.7 million to £138.9 millian. As a percentage of sales core business operating profit was 38.3% {2020
27.1%).

Royalty income

Royalty income decreased in the year by £0.5 million to £16.3 miltion. This was largely due to a high leve! of guarantee income on multi
year contracts signed in the prior year; this income is recognised in full at the inception of the contract in line with JFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’. Reported income is split as follows: 73% PC and console games, 13% mobile and 14% other.

Cash generation

During the year, the Group’s care operating activities generated £131.7 million of cash after tax payments {2020. £94.4 million The Group
received cash of £14.2 million in respect of royalties in the year (2020: £12.5 million). After purchases of tangible and intangible assets and
product development costs of £30.0 million (2020: £24.6 million), dividends of £60.5 million {2020: £47.3 million], group profit share to
employees of £13.2 million (2020: £2.4 million], proceeds from the issue of ordinary share capital relating to the sharesave scheme of £1.4
miihen (2020: £0.8 million) and net interest and foreign exchange losses of £0.4 millian (2020: gains of £0.4 million), there was cash at the
vear end of £85.2 million (2020: £52.9 million).

Dividends

We followed our principle of returning truly surplus cash to shareholders. Dividends of £76.9 millicn {2020: £47.3 million} were declared
during the year. A ‘working cash buffer’ of three months’ worth of working capital requirement alongside six manths’ worth of tax
payments and capital expenditure has been set aside before deciding how much cashis tridy surplus for the purpose of declaring
dividends.

Return on capital employed

Atong-term measure of aur performance has been return on caprtal During the year our return on capital improved from 94% to 184%
This 1s an excepticnal result, driven by the growth in operating prafit Defore royalties on a reduced average capital base, a result of the
volume growth in the year and the impact of COVID-19 in the prior year

For this calculation, we use average capital employed averaged over 3 12 month period to take account of the significant fluctuation in
working capital which occurs as the business builds both .nventories and trade receivables in the pre-Christmas trading period. Return s
defined as operating profit before rovalty income and the average capital employed 1s adjusted by deducting assets and adding back
liabilities in respect of cash. borrowings, exceptional prowvisions, taxation, royatties receivable and dividends If return on capital employed
was calculated using the year end values, it would be 155% (2020 114%)

Capital employed

Average capital employed decreased by £4.4 million to £73.8 millien The average book value of tangible and intangible assets (ncreased by
£21 9 million. Average inventories decreased by £0.8 million and trade and other receivables decreased by £2.8 million. Average liabilities
increased by £22.7 million. Average balances are calculated over the 12 month period

Investments in assets
This is what we have been spending your money on:

2021 2020

£m £m

Shop fits for new and existing stores 0.6 1.1
Production equipment and tooling 7.5 6.7
Computer equipment and software 5.2 3.4
Site 7.3 6.8
Total capital additions 20.6 18.0
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

tnvestment in assets continued

In 2020/21, we invested £2 8 million in tooling, milling and injection moulding and paint machines and a further £4.7 mitlion on moultding
tools. The investment in computer equipment and software includes £2.3 million on the new warehousing facibty in Nottingham and wark
on the new ERP system of £1.1 million. The investment in site includes £2.6 million to expand our production, warehousing and office
capacity in Nottingham and £2.7 million of land at the Nottingham site for future expansion. £0.7 million on the North America warehouse
upgrade is included within site and software above. Capital investment is expected to be higher than depreciation and amortisation over
the next few years as we upgrade our core back office systems and the web store.

Inventories

Inventories have increased by £6.8 million; mainly due to our factory being closed for a period in the prior year and higher levels of
inventary provisions being hooked in 2019/20. Inventory provision reduced by 2.1% to 0.3% of sales. We continue to offer a broad range of
price points, The average increase in the price of product salas varies by product category and ranges from 2% to /%.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables increased by £9.8 million, which includes a £5.4 million VAT receivable, £0.3 million increase in trade debt,
£2 1 million in respect of royalty income receivable, £0.5 million increase in accrued digital incame, £0.8 million in rent and rates
prepayments and £1.5 million increase in inventory deposits, partially offset by other reductions.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables increased by £5.1 million, including a £5.8 million increase in trade payables and an increase of £3.5 millien in
accruals. This was, partially offset by 3 £1.6 million decrease in deferred income, payment of other payables fer COVID-19 support and
deferrals held at the prior year end

Taxation
The effective tax rate for the year was 19.2% (2020: 20.2%). While we continue to expect a rate above that for a business with activities
sclely In the UK due to higher overseas rates, this has been largely offset by increased profit in inventary provisions at those same rates.

Treasury

The abjective of our treasury operation is the cost effective management of financoial risk. The relationship with the Group's bhank 1s
managed centrally. It operates within a range of board approved policies. No transactions of a speculative nature are permitted. A six
month overdraft facility of £25 million was agreed in May 2020 with Santander to caver cash flow during the COVID-19 pandemic. it was
not utilised and has now been cancelled

Funding and figuidity risk
The Group pays for its operations entirely from our cash flow

Interest rate risk
Net interest receivable for the year was £0 2 million {2020: £0.1 miliion)

Foreign exchange
Cur big currency exposures are the eurc and US dollar

eurg usS dollar
20621 2020 2021 2020
Year end rate used for the balance sheet 1.16 111 1.42 123
Average rate used for earnings 113 114 1.34 126

The net impact in the year of exchange rate fluctuations on our operating profit was a decrease of £4.0 mullion (2020 increase of £0 4
millhan)
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Non-financial information statement

As highlighted in the business model section earlier in this annua! report, we zre a relatively complex business With this in mind, we aim to
comply with the Non-Financial Reperting requirements contained in sections 414CA and 414C8 of the Companies Act 2006. The table
helow and the information it refers to is intended ta help stakeholders understand our position on key non-financial matters and how we
are addressing our reporting requirements. This is an area of focus for us going forwards.

Key policies and standards which govern Where this is referenced in this annual
Reporting requirement our approach and contrals report
Emptoyees Employee statement Pages 24-25

Attendance and absence policies including
career bregk, maternity, paternity and
shared parental leave
Disciplinary, grievance and appeals policy
Social media policy
Health and safety policy
Anti-carruption and bribery Anti-bribery policy Page 33
Anti-slavery policy Page 26
Insider dealing policy
Whistteblowing policy
Human rights Safeguarding policy
Data protection policy
Dignity at wark policy
Equal opportunities policy

Environmental matters Environmental statement Pages 22-23
Product safety policy

Business model Pages 5-6

Non-financial KPis Pages 6-7

Description of principal risks Page 17

Gender diversity, greenhouse gases, social, community and human rights, and employees
We report an these topics in the directars’ report on pages 20 to 26

Risks and uncertainties

The board has overall responsibility for ensuring risk is appropriately managed across the Group and has carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks to the business The top four strategic risks to the Group are regularly reviewed by the board The principal strategic risks
dentified in 2020721 are discussed below These risks are not intended to be an extensive analysis of all risks that may arise but more
impartantly are the anes which we believe could cause business interruption in the period ahead

e Digital selling strategy - as sales through our onhine channel continue to grow, it is now more important than ever that we have a robust
plan in place which ensures we are making product available to our customers tn a manner consistent with modern consumer
expectations/behaviour. We are reviewing our digital selling strategy and the people resources and technology required to dehwer it

s (T strategy and delivery - with a number of significant business projects in play, all of which are dependent on IT support, there s a
requirement for a rabust 1T strategy which enables us to deliver key strategic projects as well as supporting day to day activities We
are keeping the structure of our gtabal IT team under review to ensure the IT support needs f the business can be delivered.

s  Media whilst this remains an area for future growth, it is imperative that exploitation of our IP through media channels does no harm
to our core business Our IP steering team meets every month to discuss ongoing and future exploitation, to ensure that all use of our
1P through all channels, is approved, correct and consistent They are fully supported by our in-house legat team who will act when
needed.

s Socal responsibikity - we don't intend to ‘greenwash’ or to be ‘politically correct’ We believe we are already good corporate ciizens
and we have been making some good progress quietly in the background, We are looking for ways we can support global initiatives
including climate change, diversity and equality and we are documenting a realistic plan to make some prograss, forever

We consider that COVID-19 is not a specific risk that we can mitigate against but we are managing our response to it alongside our
operational risks We also do not consider that we have materia! solvency or liquidity risks
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Section 172 statement
This section describes haw the directors have had regard ta the matters set out in sectian 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 in exercising
their duty to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole.

The hkely consequences of any decision in the long term

To be around forever, it is essential that the board makes decisions which are the best for Games Weorkshop in the long term. These
decisions are focused on long-term success, not shart-term gains. The best example of this is the ongoing long-term capital investment
being made by the business in new production facilities, warehousing space, and global IT infrastructure, all of which will stand us in good
stead for the future.

The interests of the Group's employees
The board actively engages with employees to ensure that the opinions and ideas of staff are always caonsidered, and that staff are kept up

to date and informed. This has been achieved in a number of different ways over the past 12 months:

- Ovrglobal communications forum continues Lo support clear and open communication between the board, senior management and
staff, with representatives from all departments, in all territories around the world The matters discussed at the Games Workshop
Global Communications Forum {GWGCF) are circulated to the board and discussed at board meetings to ensure that the board
understands the views and concerns of employees. Throughout the year, members of the board have attended GWGCF meetings to
ensure ongoing board engagement with employees.

Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, staff have received regutar communications and updates from me to ensure that they are kept up
to date and informed in respect of action being taken by the business and of the impact af the situation on business performance.

The need to foster the Group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Suppliers

The board is briefed or a monthly basis regarding majar investments and angaing relationships with key supphars as required, most
natably in the past 12 months in respect of the ongoing ERP impiementation project, and investment in new production and warehousing
facitities. The board also has cversight of relaticnships with suppliers through regular updates and reports from the executive directors.
Details of how we engage with suppliers can be found in the directars’ report on page 25.

Custamers

The enjoyment of all things Warhammer by aur customers is our priority. The hoard assesses and considers custamer satisfaction and
engagement on a regular basis. Sales and performance information provide the board with good visibility of customer demand on 3
manthly basis. Key performance indicatars in respect of engagement with customers through cur Warhammer Community weabsite, digital
cemmunications, and initiatives ltke Warhammer Schools Alliance are likewise reported to, and assessed by, the board regularly. Any other
significant trends, issues or apinions of our customers are reported up to and discussed by the board when appropriate Details of how we
engage with customers can be found in the drrector’s report on page 24.

The impact of the Graup's operations on the community and the environment

The board recognises the importance of managing the social impact of the business and minimising any adverse impact of our operations
on the environment. Details of the progress made in respect of environmental sustainability and social impact can be found in the
directors’ report on pages 22 ta 24 This is an important subject for the board and the wider business, which will cantinue to be an area of
focus in the next year.

The desirability of the Group mamtaining a reputation for fugh standards of business conduct

The board expects the highest standards of business conduct Nothing else will do. The board receives regular updates in respect of
matters of regulatory comphance, and the business has pclicies, procedures and processes in ptace in respect of modern siavery, bribery
and corruptian, ethical sourcing and tax evasion

The board recognises the importance of good corporate governance. Details of the approach taken by Games Workshop can be found in
cur corparate governance report on pages 27 to 30

The need to oct fairly as between members of the Company

The Company has one class of shares sc all shareholders are treated equaily. Detalls of how we engage with sharehalders can be found in
our corparate governance report on page 29.
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Outlook

I'll repeat the words from the half year, not because I'm lazy, they are still very relevant..'I'm really proud to say that | have seen Games
Workshop at its very best during these uncertain times: our staff have ‘walked the walk’ with a can-do attitude offering wonderful support
lu their work-mates and friends. Our senior team has been on the front foot, not watching but actively managing the constant changes.

We will continue to do what is right for Games Workshop and our customers. We will focus on what is in our control; delivering on our
operational plan rather than worrying abcut, for example, any short term share price volatility or the weather. Most days that's making
sure management is doing the right thing for Games Workshap. Ensuring that we have the right person in the right job helps enarmously
and this is even more impaortant as we continue to grow and we recruit additional senior people. Qur biggest risk is senicr management
becoming complacent. | will continue to do my hest to ensure that does not happen.

I'm mindful of the uncertainty caused by COVID-19 and Brexit. Like every other company we have our internal plans as to our future
performance, which show a range of outcomes which are not shared with the stock market: predicting the future is always a risky business.

To help inform shareholders and foilowers of Games Workshap as best we can, we will continue to provide regular updates of our trading
in each current year (much as we do already).’

Finally, after a tough year we arc delighted that the Warlarnuer hobby and Games Workshop are 1n great shape; thanks to everyone
involved and thanks to everyone that continues to keep us safe and well.

Approved by the board, and signed on behalf of the board

< o

Kevin Rountree
CEO
26 July 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directars present therr annual report together with the audited consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report for
the year ended 30 May 2021.

General infarmation

Games Workshop Group PLC (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries {together the ‘Group’ or ‘Games Workshop'} designs and manufactures
miniature figures and games and distributes these through its own network of retail stores, independent retailers and online via the global
web stores. The Group has manufacturing activities in the UK and sells mainly in Europe, North America and Asia Pacific.

The Company is a public listed company, incorporated and domicried in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Willow
Road, Lentan, Nottingham, NG7 2WS, United Kingdom. The Company's ordinary share capital is listed on the London Stock Exchange

Dividends
Dividends of 235 pence per share {2020: 145 pence per share} were declared during the year (2021: £76.9 million; 2020, £47.3
million} This includes £16.4 million {SO pence per share) paid after the year end.

Directors

The present directars of the Company are listed on page 49. All of the directors were members of the board throughout the year and up to
the date of signing the financial statements with the exception of 5 Matthews, who was appointed on 1 November 2020 and N J Donaldson
who retired from the board on 31 May 2021,

In accordance with the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, all directors are subject to annual re-election. In relation to the non-
executive directors, the chair has confirmed that, following formal performance evaluation, the performance of J R A Brews, K E Marsh,
and S Matthews continues to be effective and they continue to demonstrate commitment to their roles as non-executive directors,
including commitment of the necessary time to board and committee meetings and other duties. £ O’Donnell is considered by the board to
be independent of the Group, as set out in the corporate governance report. The non-executive directors have formally evaluated the
performance of E O'Donnell as non-executive chair and consider her to be effective in her role.

Directors' interests
The interests of the directors i the shares of the Company, together with details of share aptions granted to the directors, are disclosed in
the remuneration report on page 47. None of the directors had a material interest in any cantract of significance to which the Company, or

any of its subsidiaries, was a party during the vear.

Directors’ indemnities
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of 1ts directors, as permitted by section 234 of the
Comparues Act 2006, which were in force during the year and up to 26 july 2021

Information on executive directors

K D Rountree (age 5i), CEQ Kevin oined Games Workshop in March 1998 as assistant group accountant. He then had various management
roles within Games Warkshap, including head of sales for the Other Activities division (including Bfack Library, Licensing and Sabertooth
Games) Kevin was appointed CFO 1in October 2008 During the year ended 29 May 2011, he took on the responsibibty of managing the
Group's service centres globally. Ta refiect this, his title was changed to chief operating officer from chief financial officer He became chief
executive on 1 January 2015. He qualified as a chartered management accountant in 2001 Prior to joining Games Workshop, Kevin was the
management accountant at j Barbour & Sons Limited and trained at Price Waterhouse.

R F Tongue (age 50j, chief fnancial officer Rachel joined Games Workshop in September 1996 as group tax manager She then had various
accounting roles within Games Werkshop and was appamnted company secretary in October 2008 She has also managed the legal ang
compliance functions within Games Workshop since November 2012 She was appointed group finance director in January 2015 and
assumed the role of chief financia! officer in November 2020 Rachel qualfied as a chartered accouyntant in 1995 and as a chartered tax
adurser in 1996 having trained with Arthur Andersen

Information on non-executive directors

E O'Donnell {(age 50). Elaine O'Donnell was appointed to the board on 28 November 2013 2nd became nan-executive chair on 1 January
2021. A chartered accountant by profession, Elaine was previously a corporate finance partner with EY. She 15 also a non-executive director
of Studio Retail Group plc and On the Beach Group plc.

J R A Brewis (age 54). lohn 8rewis was appointed to the board on 20 June 2018. John has over 30 years’ experience in high volume
marnufacturing businesses and had various rales within Reach Plc, formerly Trinity Mirror Ple, including managing director of the Group's
manufacturing division

K E Marsh (age 59). Kate Marsh was appointed to the board on 24 July 2020. Kata has over 30 years’ experience in digital and media
businesses. She is currently non-executive director at Independent Mediahuis Ireland Limited, Elstree Film Studios Limited and is heading
up international development for MGM Studios’ digital networks. Kate has built and managed significant media businesses across Europe
holding senior roles with Sky, GroupM, the BBC, and Sony Pictures Television.
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Information on non-executive directors continved

S Matthews {(age 44). Sally Matthews was appointed to the board on 1 November 2020. Sally has 20 years’ experience in consumer and
ecommerce husiness including Gousto, Tesco.com, Unilever and The Automobile Association. She is currently a director at SCA Investments
timited {trading as Gousto) where she has worked since 2016. Sally qualified as a chartered accountant in 2003 having trained with

Arthur Andersen.

N J Donaldson retired from the board of Games Werkshap at the end of the financial year after more than 19 years as a non-executive
director and more recently non-executive chairman.

Independent auditors

As at 26 Juiy 2021, so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and each
director has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that infermation.

Share capital, share rights and other information

As at 26 July 2021, the Company’s authorised share capital was £2,100,000 divided into 42,000,000 ordinary shares of Sp each nominal
vatue {‘ordinary shares’}. On 26 luly 2021 there were 3.2,/7/6,471 (2020: 32,677,031) ardinary shares in issue. These ordinary shares are
listed on the London Stock Exchange. All ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting rights and the right to receive dividends.
Shares acquired through the Company’s share schemes rank pari passu with the shares in issue and have no special rights. The halders of
ordinary shares are entitled to receive the Company's annual report, to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company, to appaint
proxies and to exercise voting rights. There are no restrictions on transfer or limitations on the holding of any class of share and no
requirements for prior appraval of any transfers. The directars may refuse to register a transfer of shares if there is a failure to comply with
certain requirements of the Company’s articles of association. None of the shares carry any special nights with regard to control of the
Company.

In accardance with the Company’s articles of association, each share {other than those held in treasury) entitles the holder to one vote at
general meetings of the Company on votes taken on a poll. On a show of hands at a meeting, every member present in person or by one ar
mare proxies and entitled to vote has one vote. Unless the directors decide otherwise, if a sharehelder is given notice that he has failed to
pravide infarmation required in relation to any shares pursuant to & notice under section 793 aof the Companies Act 2006, that member will
be unable to vote on those shares both in a general meeting and at a meeting of the shareholders of that class If such shareholder holds
more than G.25% of the issued shares of a class {excluding treasury shares) and is in default of a section 793 notice, the directors may also
state in the notice that: {i) the payment of any dividend shall be withheld; and (ii) that there can be no transfer of the shares held by such
shareholder.

Subject to the provision of law, the Company may by ordinary resolution declare a dividend to be paid to the members according to their
respective rights and interest, but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the directors The directars may also declare and
pay interim dividends. Subject to shareholder appraval, the directors may pay dividends by issuing shares credited as fuily paid up inlieu of
cash dividends If dvidends remain unclaimed for 12 years they are forfeited and revert to the Company

The rules about the appointment and replacement of directors are contained in the Company’s articles of association. The Company’s
articles of association state that a director may be appointed by an ordinary resatution of the shareholders or by the directors, either to fill
a vacancy ar as an addition to the existing board but so that the total number of directors does not exceed the maximum number of
directors altowed pursuant to the Company’s articles of association The Company’s articles of association do not currently specify a
maximum number of directors The Company may by ardinary resolution remove a director from the board of directors

The Company’s articles of association aiso state that the board of directars s responsible for the management of the business of the
Company and in doing so may exercise all the powers of the Company subject to the provision of retevant legislation and the
Company's constitutional documentation The powers of the directors set out in the Company’s articles of association include those in
relation to the issue and buy-back of shares As at 30 May 2021, the Company had an unexpired authaority to repurchase shares up to a
maximum of 3,267,703 shares During the yvear no shares were purchased in the market for cancellation

Changes to the artickes of association must be approved by the shareholders in accordance with the legislatiarn in force from time to time

The Company does not have agreements with any director or employee that would prowide compensation for lass of office ar employment
resulting from a takeover, except that the provisions of the Company’s sharesave scheme may cause options to be exercised in a takeover

Constructive use of the AGM

The chairs of the audit and risk, remuneration and nomination commuttees will be available to answer guestions at the AGM. Separate
resalutions are proposed for substantially separate issues at the meeting and the chair of the Company will declare the number of proxy
votes received both for and against each resolution.

Corporate governance
The Company’s statement on corporate governance is included in the corporate governance report on page 27.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Environment and sacial

This year we have established an environment, social and governance (ESG) steering group consisting of senior managers to drive our
strategy and perfarmance in this area. This group meets on a monthly basis to set goals and keep score. E O'Donnell is acting as our board
sponsor on ESG matters and the steering group provides a quarterly briefing in order to update the board on progress.

Environment
We have detailed below our progress in relation to environmental sustainability.

Renewable energy

Qur primary manufacturing, warehousing and head office sites in Nottingham continue to be powered using renewable energy and we are
contracted to use renewable energy at these sites until October 2021, The solar panels installed in 2017 at our HQ site in Nottingham
operated at 106% of expected renewable energy generation in the year, producing over 356 mWh, which equates to 7% of the annual
electricity required ta power that site.

Since 1 May 2020 our UK retail chain has also been powered by renewable energy, and we are contracted to using renewable energy
throughout our UK retail stores until May 2022

Greenhouse gases

We recognise that our global operatians have an environmental impact and we are committed to monitoring and reducing our greenhouse
gas (GHG} emissions. Qur reporting below meets the requirements of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) legisiation, but
it also helps to increase the transparency with which we communicate about our environmentat impact to our stakeholders.

We report on ali material global emissions in scopes 1 and 2, plus selected scope 3 emissions, using an cperational control approach. The
methodology used to compile our GHG emissions inventory is in accordance with the requirements of the following standards: the WRI
GHG Protocol Corporate Standard {revised version) and DEFRA’s Environmental Reparting Guidelines: Including Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting requirements {March 2019). Qur energy and carbon disclosures for the periad 1 May 2020 to 30 April 2021 are set out
below:

2021 2020 (restated)**

Scope Emissions source UK emissions Non-UK emissions Total emissions Total emissions
Scope 1 Natural gas 325 326 651 250
Company cars 16 - 16 45

Other fuels 4 - 4 4

L Refrigerants 1,169 58 1,228 1,619
Total scope 1 1,514 385 1,899 1,922

Scope 2 Electricity {location based) 2,065 1,243 3,308 4,678
Total scope 2 * 2,065 1,243 31,308 4,678

Scope 3 Air transpart 5,158 1,219 6,377 6,394
Sea transport 848 879 1,727 1,571

Road transport 946 2,666 3,612 2,279

Purchase of goods and services 31,418 2,99% 34,417 28,148

Businass travel - flights 1 4 5 1,708

Business travel - other 19 15 34 100

Waste 22 135 157 144

N - Water 76 7 83 21
Total scope 3 38,488 7,924 46,412 40,365

Total - all scopes 42,067 3,552 51,619 46,965
Total energy usage {mWh) 16,597 15,877
2021 2020

Carbon intensity (tCO2e/£000) scope 1 and 2 0.015 0.019
Carbon intensity [tCO2e/sq. ft.) scope 1 and 2 0.005 0.005

* This work is partially based on the country-specific G2 emission factors developed by the International Energy Agency, CECD/IEA 2019,
but the resulting work has been prepared by Games Workshop and does not necessarily reflect the views of the International Energy
Agency.

** |n 2019/20, (i) refrigerant emissions has been restated due to better data quality and cur total scope 1 has been revised to reflect this,
and (i) sea freight emissions has been restated to 1,571 tCO2e due ta the improvement in data quality and our total scope 3 has been
revised to reflect this.
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Environment continued
Greenhouse gases continued

This year our total GHG emissions for Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 are 51,619 tCO2e. Together, aur total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions
have decreased to 5,207 tCO2Ze in 2020/21, which is a decrease of 21%. Our carbon intensity based on revenue per tonne equivalent of

Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions has also decreased from 0.019 to 0.015 (tCO2e/£000). We have reported on the same Scope 3 emissions

catepories as the previous year including upstream transportation and distribution of our goods, purchased goods and services, business
travel, waste, and water consumgtion.

This year we have used actual consumption data for our operations wherever possible. However, where actual data is not yet available for
all locations or emissions sources, we have created estimates based on extrapolations and reasonable assumpticns. Further details on our
reporting and notable trends are as follows.

» Scope 1-Ourdirect Scope 1 emissions have decreased by 1% from 2019/20, which covers cur operational emissions from all current
sites. The only category within our Scope 1 emissions sources which showed an increase was natural gas emissions, at an increase of
160%. This is due to the inclusion of more actual consumption data {rather than estimates) for mare countries than the previous year.

s Scope 2 - This year, our Scope 2 emissions saw a 29% reduction primarily due to improvement in the data collection from sites for
electricity consumption and updated IEA emission factars for our non-UK stores. While our estimates far non-UK sites still rely on
consumption data from one example store per country, the quality of data has improved to represent actual data. Qur UK sites
provided full electricity consumption data the same as in the prior year. Due to the improved data accuracy for our reported stores, this
makes year on year comparison less straightforward and we therefcre cannct identify the exact variable which may have had the most
considerable impact on the reduction in Scape 2 emissions overall. We will centinue to work with our retail stores outside the UK to
improve reporting in future by obtaining more actuat data for all global stores {where possible) and applying country-specific electricity
emissions factors.

« Scope 3 - This makes up 0% of cur total emissions and is primarily driven by upstream transport of our products and the purchasing of
goods and services in production. This year, air freight contributes 54% of total transport emissions while sea freight contributes 15%.

We welcome the Taskfarce for Climate-related Financial Disclosures {TCFD) and its recommendations as an effective global framewaork for
disciosing chmate-related risks and opportunities. We also support the steps taken by the UK Government in adopting mandatary TCFD
reporting requirements.

We intend to disciose against the TCFD inits entirety in 2022 and over the coming year we shall be conducting both a TCFD gap analysis
and climate scenario analysis in respect of our key risks and opportunities toc allow us to disctose against the TCFD as comprehensively as
possible

Energy consumption

We work hard to reduce our energy consumption and associated carbon emissions through the course of each year The majority of our
Scope 1 and 2 emissions {as detailed above) are fram our manufacturing operations at our Nottingham site and across our retail stores

In line with the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS), Games Worksnop has previously conducted a full assessment of its energy use,
carried out by an ESOS lead assessor and identified opportunities to reduce our energy cansumption further. Qur energy and carben
reduction activities are focussed on energy efficiency measures and staff engagement During the last 12 months we have waorked in the
following areas to reduce emissions

+ Ongoing switching to LED lighting across sites - Across our HQ site we continue ta install replacement and updated LED hghting systems
to increase the electricity efficiency of our buildings Although production has increased {(and thus energy consumption has also
increased overall), the energy efficiency of our site has also increased thes year

s Replacement of air conditioning units - We continue to replace old air conditioning units at our Nottingham facility with significantly
maore energy efficient systems.

= On-site energy campaign {on hold due to COVID-19) - We planned to undertake energy campaigns across our UK sites and stores, with
the aim of improving our energy efficiency. However, this action has remained on temporary hold due to the ongoing impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic, with employees warking from home and many retail store closures We plan to launch this campaign in the year
ahead.

Waste ond recyciing

Our dedicated recycling facility at our new warehouse near Nottingham is due to become operational later this year. This facility will allow
for streamlined sorting and recycling of plastic and cardbeard waste. We are in the process of establishing simgle and accurate waste
metrics to allow us to better understand, track and improve our waste and recycling performance at Nottingham, Memphis and Sydney.

Packaging

We are now implementing the sustainable packaging solutions identified during our product packaging review. The changes are being
introduced on a priority basis. Initial product packaging pricrities include exclusive use of sustainably sourced card certified under the FSC
system and replacement of oil based inks, across our core product packaging material. Initial shinping packaging priorities include the
raplacement of plastic tape, vaid fill and bags with sustainable paper alternatives.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Social
We have detailed befow our work in managing the social impact of the Group.

Customers
Details of how we engage with customers can be found in our corporate governance report on page 30. The effect of this is detailed in aur
section 172 statement on page 18

Product safety

Cur product safety and integrity team work closely with our design, manufacturing and scurcing teams to ensure that all products soid by
Games Workshep are developed, produced and purchased with safety in mind, so that they are safe for use by the intended customer
Qver the past 12 months, we have increased the frequency of product checks and auditing. This programme is in the process of being
expanded, to ensure chacks are taking place at the earliest possible stage and minimising potential disruption to the business.

In the past year, we have had no product recalls.

Health and safety

Our stores are where many of our customers first come to learn about the Warhammer hobby, or chat with fellow hobbyists - it is essential
that they are safe places to visit. Qur store managers know that the health and safety of their customers is paramount. Over the past year
our stares have operated in line with closely controlled social distancing plans to ensure that our in-store COVID-19 control measures meet
or exceed local requirements at all times. We have monitored local guidance throughout the last year to ensure we remain up to date with
these requirements,

Emgployees

Development and training

Our employees are constantly looking for ways to improve. We strive to create a culture and environment that encourages everyone to
achieve their potential.

This year we launched a learning management system (LMS), to add to our ongeing training and development offer. We have added to the
LMS a range of digital learning content which will allow us to support managers with their ongoing development and cffer all employees a
chance to enhance their persanal and professional development. We strive to make sure that everyone feels supported at Games
Workshop and encouraged to grow and the LM5 will provide us with an opportunity to do this consistently on a global scale.

We continue ta rely an our strang partnerships with trusted apprenticeship schemes n the UX These support, complement and enhance
our staff recruitment, retention and development, providing us with ‘home-grown’ employees with the right fit, knowledge and skills for
our business. We currently have apprentices working i positions across our manufacturing and engineering teams

People plan

We continue to carry out a group-wide people plan review on a six monthly basis This plan s used to identify the jobs which are critical to
the ongoing success of Games Workshap and allow us to proactively plan for the future resource needs of the business, mitigate against
any resourcing risks, and sdentify the development needs of our staff The plan s critical to making sure that we have the right people, in
the night jobs, at the right time, both now and in the future

Staff communications

Our glebal communications forum continues to support clear and open communication between the board, senior management and staff,
with representatives from all departments, in all tesritories around the world The forum has the aim of maotivating employees to give therr
best for Games Workshop, whilst contributing towards their own sense of personal wellbeing and achievement Further details of how we
engage with staff, and the effect of this is detailed v our section 172 statement cn page 18.

Lrving wage
The Group maintains the UK national living wage for all UK emptoyees, regardiess of age

Shoresave
The Group aperates an employee sharesave scheme as a means of further encouraging the involvement of employees in the Group's

performance.

Diversity

The board believes that business can benefit from a wide range of perspectives and backgrounds. The Company’s aim as regards
composition af the board is that it should have a balance of attitudes and knowledge to enable each director and the board as a whole to
discharge their duties effectively. A new senior role will be recruited in the coming months to implement and manage the ESG priority list
across the Group. The board and seniar management will be undertaking unconscious bias training in the next few months to help ensure
no bias in respect of gender or ethnic background is allowed to impact doing the right thing and finding the best individual for every

job. The Company does not, however, consider that diversity can be best achieved by establishing specific quotas and targets.
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Employees continued
Diversity continued
As at the end of the finanaial year.

2021 2020
Female Male Total Female Male Total
The board 4 3 7 3 3 &
Senior management - 9 9 1 8 g
Total warkforce 543 1,893 2,436 458 1,733 2,191

Disability

The Group's policy is to consider, for recruitment, disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill, All reasonable adjustrments
will be made for disabled workers, and all necessary assistance with training is provided. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for
retraining employees who become disabied, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities.

Health, safety and wellbeing
Protecting the health and safety of all our employeesis a principle we hold dearly.

During 2020/21, health and safety has of course been dominated by the COVID-19 pandemic. Protecting our emplayees, their families and
the wider communities in which we aperate is a principle that we will not compromise on - and ane which we have maintained
throeughout.

As the situation, in terms of both risk and regulaticn, has evolved; so have our safety measures - with us always meeting, and often
exceeding, local guidance and expectations. Reguiar strategic reviews, audits and inspections of their implementation, and feedback from
team members have allowed us to operate our manufacturing and warehousing facilities throughout the last year in a safe and secure
mannar.

The coming year will see the reintroduction of our Institution of Occupational Safety & Health (I0SH) accredited safety training programme
which we have been unable to deliver in-person over the past year. A key focus of this training is the importance of reporting incidents
before harm is done {we call them undesired circumstances and near misses}, and a key metric to assess the effectiveness of this training
will be seeing an increase, as a ratio, of these types of reports.

During the year, there were two injuries reported under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Cccurrences Regulations 2013
in the UK (2019/20° none) and five reportable cases reported to the US Qccupational Safety and Health Administration (2019/20: eight)

This year our health and safety and wellbeng teams have been combined We continue to support the wellbeing needs of our employees,
including their physical and mental welfare. We are reviewing our global occupational health and employee assistance support across the
business to ensure that we always support our staff whersever they are, whatever language they speak, whenever they need il This year we
have also partnered with a national chain of fitness centres to offer all UK based staff heavily subsidised gym memberships to support therr
physical and mental welibeing.

We are targeting the launch of a new group wide wellbeing programme later in the year, to include initiatives in respect of healthy hving,
mental health, engagement, and personal and professional development

Suppliers
Details of how we engage with suppliers can he found in aur corporate governance report on page 30 The effect of this s detailed in our

section 172 statement on pages 18,

Ethical saurcing

We are committed to implementing effective contrais to ensure good ethical sourcing standards throughout our supply chain Tins
commitment is driven by the board throughout the entire Group and a commitmant is expected of all who work far. or who supply into
Games Warkshop

Games Workshop is 8 buyer member of ar ethica! sourcing audit programme This programme requires suppliers to uphold ethicai sourcing
standards to support the rights and weltbeing of workers. The programme covers workplace safety, wage payments, working hours,
underage labour, freedom of association and the right to collective bargaining, non-discrimination, disciphnary prachices, farced fabour and
environment and chemical safety.

All suppliers of {i) products for resale by Games Warkshop, and (i) components and materials used within products being sold by Games
Workshop, are required to become supplier members of this ethical sourcing programme and to be audited and maintain valid certification
in order to receive orders from Games Workshop. Qur suppliers are subject to an annual audit programme to ensure that ethical sourcing
standards throughout the Games Workshap supply chain are maintained.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Suppliers continued

Anti-slavery

Madern stavery is a crime and a violation of fundamental human rights. Games Workshop has a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery
and is committed to acting ethically to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure modern slavery is not taking place
within Games Workshop or its supply chains. This commitment is driven by the CEO and the board throughout the entire Group and a
commitment is expected of alt who work for, or who supply into, Games Workshaop.

Donations
Games Workshop does not make any danations to charities or political parties. Notwithstanding this, our employees continue to carry out
fundraising events for their chasen charities, and we are fully supportive of the work our employees do

Research and development
The Group does not undertake research activities. Development activities relate to the development of new product lines. The charge to
the income statement for the year in respect of development activities is detailed in note 9 to the financial statements.

Future developments
The future developments for the Group are discussed in the strategic report on pages 3 to 19.

Financial risks
The financial risks facing the Group are set out in note 22 to these financiat statements.

Going concern and viability statement

Assessment of prospects

The Group operates a strategic planning procass which includes monthly reviews of business and financial performance, regutar financial
projections and an annual planning review for the next financial year. Medium term projections (for periods ending two years and three
years hence} are reviewed taking into account known strategy changes in that time frame The three year plan considers the Group's
growth potential, cash flows and key financial ratios This strategic planning process is managed centrally, led by the chief financial officer.

Assessment of viability

The strategic plan reflects the directars’ cautious view cf possible outcomes. It s not used to set targets for performance. The directors
have considered a base case going concern model which takes account of the continued rmpact of COVID-19, reflecting the ability of cur
custamers ta access both our awn retail stores and independent outlets. We modelled the scenarios set out below, both individuzlly and in
combination. Under these scenarios na additional funding is required and there would be no breach of banking covenants as we currently
have no funding facilities in place:

two sclf-imposed two-week perlads of warehouse and factory closures over the next 12 months due to COVID 19 outbreaks, resulting
in a loss of sales in the trade and physical online channels and some angaing disruption in all channels due to supply constraints
patential further disruption to our supply chain, including additional freight and shipping costs and delays, this would resultin
disruption to sales in all channels

The viabihty assessment has been conducted for a period of three years which 1s iniine with the Group's strategic pianning period as
discussed above The board believes that this time frame is the most appropriate as it1s difficult to make meaningful projections beyond
three years This assessment of viability has been made with reference to the Group's current positicn and future prospects, its strategy
and its principal risks and the mitigation in place to manage them In making the viability assessment the principal risks facing the business
have been considered and a number of severe but plausible scenarios assessed for the wnpact of these on the medium term projections
The scenarios tested include thase tested as part of our going concern review, as well as a significant interruption to our manufacturing
operatians due to supplier issues or 15sues on site Stress testing has been performed on the cash projections to determine the extent to
which sales can decline before the Group's cash reserves become depleted to the paint additional funding and cost reductions would be
needed

Viability statement

Based on the hoard’s assessment as described ahove and the Group’s strang balance sheet, the directors confirm that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to cantinue in operation and meet s liabilities as they fall due over the three year
periad ending 2 June 2024, and that there are no matenal yncertainties regarding the ability of the Giuup to operate as a going concern.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonahle expectation that the Company and the Group have adeguate
resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months fram the date of approval of the financial statements. For this
reason they continue to adopt the poing concern basis in preparing the Group’s and Company’s financial statements.

On behalf of the board

\
S
~ R Matthews
Company secretary
26 July 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

An introduction from our non-executive chair

t have pleasure in intreducing the corporate governance report. In this section of our annual report we have set out our approach to
governance and provided further information on how the board and its committees cperate. We recognise that applying sound
governance principles is essential to the successful running of the Group.

As you will see below, we have three principal committees: audit and risk, remuneratior and nomination. Their composition and their
areas of focus are described below.

Regarding board compaosition, we are delighted to welcome Sally Matthews to the board as our newest non-executive director and chair of
the audit and risk committee. John Brewis was appointad senior independent director when | stepped up to become chair of the board on
1 January 2021 Nick Conaldsen retired from the board on 31 May 2021 as planned and outlined in our annual report in 2020.

We also set cut below details of our board effectiveness review, which was conducted this year by internal review. Overall we concluded
that our board functions very well. We will reflect on the detailed feedback for any areas of development in line with aur ethns af
cantinuous improvement. Board and committee effectiveness continue to be impartant considerations for us and next year we will
conduct an external review of this

Alongside enabling maore general board and colleague engagement, in its second year the Games Workshop global communication forum
{GWGCF) has focused on our culture and values over the last 12 months, with members from the senior operational team and board
invited to participate and share their thoughts on what this means to them. We believe that this is a really effective platfarm for staff
engagement and communication with the board.

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) has been adopted as required and this did not require any significant changes to
how we operate from a corporate governance perspective.

At our AGM this year, as usual, all of our continuing directors will be seeking reappointment.

Best regard

A O‘va v M
Elaine O'Donnell
Nen-executive chair

The Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty require sted companies to disclose, in relation to the Code, how they have appled its
principies and whether they have complied with its pravisions throughout the accounting period. The UK Corparate Governance Code can
be found at www.fre org.uk

This statement. together with the remuneraticn report on pages 34 to 47, and further staterments as referenced below, explains how the
Company has applied the principles and complied with the provisians set out 1n the Code.

Reporting requirement Where this is referenced in this annual report

Assessment of value aver the long-term Strategy and ohjectives Page 4
Understanding the views of other key stakeholders, as set outin Section 172 statement Page 18
section 172 o o
Prowvision of means of the workforce to raise concerns in Whistleblowing Page 33
confidence - -
Details of meetings of the audit and risk committee Significant issues considered by the audit and risk Page 31
o committee - B
Assessment of principal risks o Risks and uncertainties Page 17
Manitoring of risk management and internal contro! internal control Page 32
Risk management Page 33
Statement of going concern Going concern and viability statement Page 26

Assessment of the praspects of the Group

The board operates through manthly meetings which senior executives attend on a regular basis. The board is responsible for leading and
controlling the Group and monitering executive management. It considers all issues relating to strategy, management and future direction
of the Company. The board is also responsible for assessing and monitoring culture within the Group. This is achieved through regular
involvement of the non-executive directors with a variety of employees across the Group as well as attendance at the GWGCF meetings.
The board has a schedule of matters reserved to it for decision that is regularly updated; these include decisions on the Group’s strategy,
financial plans, major capital expenditure and dividend policy. The board is updated about operational decisions through the monthly
meetings. It meets at least nine times a year |n 2020/21 the board had 11 scheduled meetings, each of which was attended by all
members of the board. Terms of reference for the board committees (as set out below) are available on the Coampany’s website.

The Company maintains an appropriate level of director and officer liability insurance cover and has agreed to indemnify the directors
against certain liabilities as discussed in the directors’ report on page 20.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

A review of the performance of the Group’s main business activities is included in the strategic review. The board presents this review,
together with the directars’ report on pages 20 to 26, to give a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's position and
prospects.

The board
The board comprises the non-executive chair, the CEQ, the CFQ, and three further non-exetutive directors. It is chaired by Elaine
O'Connell.

The senior independent director is John Brews. The principal responsibilities of this role include:

¢ tobe asounding board for the chair,

+ tobe available to shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels of the chalr, the CEQ or the CFO has
failed to resolve, or for which such contact is not appropriate; and

« toensure that the performance evaluation of the chair is conducted effectively.

The four non-executive directors have a breadth of successful commercial and professional experience and are considered by the board to
be independent of the Group.

Nick Donaldsan retired from the board of Games Workshop at the end of the financial year after mare than 19 years as a non-executive
director and more recently non-executive chairman.

Ali directors bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources {including key appomtments) and
standards of conduct. The board considers that it has been supplied with sufficient timely and accurate information to enable it to
discharge its duties.

All members of the board have access ta the services and advice of the company secretary. There is a pracedure for directors to take
independent professional advice at the Company's expense where relevant to the execution of their duties. The executive directors attach
great importance to ensuring that the non-executive directors are provided with accurate, timely and clear information on the Group. In
addition, the nan-executive directors are actively encouraged to update continually their knowledge of and familiarity with the Group and
the issues affecting it, 50 as to enable them to fulfi! effectively their roles on both the board and its committees.

In 2020/21 the board undertook an internally facilitated review of its performance, in addition to the board’s already established process
for the cngoing assessment of its own performance and that of its committees. A questionnaire was used covering topics including board
composition, dynamics, strategic focus, oversight of risk management, meeting arrangements, board papers and the committees. This was
completed by all board directors. The overal! conclusion was that this s an effective board The board is engaged and commuitted and works
on a basis of trust and openness. Board papers are well structured to enable quality discusstons and informed decision making. There is a
urnversal commitment from the beard to doing what s right for Games Warkshop in the long term but there is & recognition that
communication of this to wider stakeholders could be improved upen There 1s a good balance of tenure, particularly in the executive team
but there 1s a recognition that it will take time for the newer members ta become more fully embedded in Games Waorkshop's culture
Significant progress has been made in identifying and defiming strategic risk appetite but thrs is continually evolving and there is always
more wark to be done in this area. The non-executive chawr and the CEQ are co-developing a plan within the bheoard agenda going forward
to ensure that feedback from this review is considered and appropriately addressed The next externally facilitated review will take place i
2021722

Board committees

The board has three principal committees, alt with written terms of reference which are published on the Company’s website and which
are avarlable on application to the company secretary at the Company's registered office The company secretary serves as secretary to all
three comrmittees The chairs of the audit and risk committee the remuneraticn commrttee and the nomination committee will be
available at the AGM to answer any gquestions

Audit and risk committee

YThe audit and risk committee currently compnises the non-executve directors and s chaired by Sally Matthews who s a chartered
accountant and has significant relevant financial and accounting knowledge and experience. Elaine O'Donnell is not a member of this
committee. The audit and risk committee’s terms of reference include monitoring the integrity of the financial statements and other
announcements relating to the Company’s financial performance including reviewing significant financial reporting judgements, internal
control and risk assessment and keeping under review the scape, results and effectiveness of the extarnal and internal audits and the
independence of the Company's external auditors.

Audit and risk committee report

A more detailed description cf the activities of the audit and risk committee and the internal control and risk management systems that are
in place are discussed in the audit and risk committee report on pages 31 to 33.
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Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee comprises the non-executive directors and is chaired by John Brewis. Elaine G’'Donnell is not a member of
the committee. The remuneration committee normally meets at least three times a year and is responsible for making recommendaticns
to the board on remuneration policy for all execulive directors and senior management (including determining specitic remuneration
packages, terms of employment and performance incentive arrangements). The procedures and guidelines used by the remuneration
committee in determining remuneration are outlined in the separate remuneration report. The remuneration committee held six
scheduled meetings in the year, which were attended by all members of the committee. The committee meets without the executive
directors at least annually to appraise the executive directors’ perfarmance.

Remuneration report
The Company’s palicy on executive remuneration and details of the executive directors’ salaries, profit share and pensions, and fees for the
non-executive directors are set out in the board report on remuneration on pages 34 to 47.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee comprises the non-executive directors and is chaired by Elaine O'Donnell. It is responsible for nominating, for
approval by the board, candidates for appointment to the board. The commuttee regularly reviews the structure, size and composition
{including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the baard and gives consideration to succession planning for directors and
other senior executives, taking into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Group and the skills and expertise needed on the
boardin the future. As CEQ, Kevin Rountree was invited to attend a meeting of the committee and present his current executive team
structure and succession plan. The committee reviewed this plan and satisfied itself that appropriate consideration had been given to
identifying any potential gaps and ansuring that a robust plan was n place to address these. The committee held four scheduled meetings
in the year which were attended by all members of the committee.

Appointments to the board

After announcing the planned retirement of Nick Donaldson in the 2020 annual report and in continuation of the koard's ongoing
succession planning, the nomination cormmmittee ran a process 1o select a new chair of the board. The candidates were limited to the
current pool of nan-executive directors who were asked to apply for the jab. This was because knowledge and understanding of Games
Workshap was considered tc be of utmost importance in the selection precess Elaine O'Donnell applied for the job and was selected by
the committee, as announced in September 2020. She was appointed non-executive chair of the board in january 2021. Nick Donaldson
centinued as a nan-executive director from lanuary 2021 for a handover period and stepped down from the board in May 2021.

Alongside widely advertising the rale, the nomination committee warked with Nurole, the digitat recruitment platform, to conduct a search
for a new non-executive director and chair of the audit and risk committee. After interviewing a number of high quality candidates, Sally
Matthews was cffered the job and joined the board in November 2020.

Newly appointed directors are given training appropniate to the level of their previcus experience. Non-executive directors meet regularly
with members of the executive and other staff within the Group In addition, site visits ensure that the non-executive directors gain first-
hand experience of developments within the Group

Any director appointed during the year 1s required, under the provisions of the Company’s articles of association, to retire and seek
election by the shareholders at the next AGM

Stakeholder engagement
The Company understands the :mportance of engaging with our stakeholders The board seeks to understand the views and interests of
the stakeholder groups detailed helow to ensure that these are always considered as part of any decision making.

Shareholders

We maintain an open dialogue with gur sharehglders On a continuing basis the Campany encourages two way communication with its
institutional and private shareholders and responds promptly to gueries received verbally, n writing or directly through 1ts invester
relations website, investor.games-warkshaop com. In addition to the annual report and half yearly report, the non-executive chair,
committee chairs and the CEQ and CFO are available to meet and do meet with shareholders and potential shareholders to discuss any
questions they may have and ensure that the board has a clear understanding of the views of shareholders. Any issues arising at such
meetings are reported to and considered by the board. In 2020/21 matters discussed were in relation to remuneration policy changes (as
discussed in the remuneration report) and performance of the Group thraughout the year. We try to ensure aur sharehalders have a good
understanding of aur strategy, business model and culture

Qur people

We rely on the hard wark and creativity of employees to make sure we drive the creation of value in the long term. We engage with cur
employees through formal and infarmal meetings, including the GWGCF as well as local newstetters and works councils. The matters
discussed at the GWGCF in particular are circulated to the board and discussed at board meetings to ensure we understand the views and
concerns of employees. Throughout the year, members of the board have attended the GWGCF meetings to help increase board
engagement with ermployees. N

Customers

We engage with our customers through our retail stores, our social media sites, and through warhammer-community.com. This allows two
way communication with our customers. Any recurring topics or points of nate are shared with and considered by the hoard. Senior
management also visits retail stores as well as independent retaiiers to help understand customer views.

29 Games Workshap Group PLC



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

Stakeholder engagement continued

Suppliers

The integrity of our supply chain is an essential part of ensuring we design and make great products. Although as a vertically integrated
group we are in control of large parts of the design and manufacturing process, it is important that our suppliers share the same standards
and ethics as we do. We have strong partnerships with our key suppliers that have been built up aver a number of years to ensure we get
the best materials through a stable and reliable supply chain.

Culture
Companies are run by people. Games Workshop is run by people. How our people get on with the task of running Games Workshop and
how they get on with one anather is vital.

How we behave does matter. Therefore what we are like does matter.

This is why we make such efforts to recruit people who are likely to have the right qualities to be successful at their job. Everything we do'is
far the good of Games Workshop, and thereby our customers and colleagues and shareholders. No one’s personality is bigger than that;
none of us is more important than this ultimate goal. This is a huge challenge and it requires tots of humility, honesty and courage

That is, humility in recognising we must put Games Workshap's needs first, honesty to identify truly those occasions when we are being
driven by our ego or our selfishness, and courage tc do something about it.

it is always better to work amongst nice people and to have fun We love that too But here, what we ultimately mean by ‘good behaviour’
is’

« an ahsolute belief that 1t s better to do what s right rather that what s easy;
« anego-free environment, this leads to people who put the business first and don't have private agendas; and
s an absolute commitment to the niche market business mode! and the quality of cur products and services.

Conflicts of interests

The Company's articles of association take account of certain provisions of the Companies Act 2006 relating to directors’ condlicts of
interasts. These provisians permit the board to consider, and if thought fit, to authorise situations where a director has an interest that
conflicts, ar may possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company. The board has adepted procedures for the approval of such conflicts.
The board's powers to authorise canflicts are operating effectively and the pracedures are being followed

Substantial shareholdings
The following interests in 3% or more cf the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at 30 May 2021 have been disclosed to the Company

No. of shares %
Baille Gifford 2,381,304 73
BlackRack 2,270,650 6.9
Schroders plc 2,140,767 6.5
Aberdeen Standard Investments 1,708,631 532
1P Morgan Asset Management (UK) Lirmited 1,545,096 47
Vanguard 1,358,556 41
Sanfard Deland Asset Management 1,252.25¢ 18

The Company has not been notified of any changes in these interests since the year end The Company has not been notified of any otner
substantsal shareholdings

Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
The Company has complied with all of the provisions set out in the Code, with the exception of compliance with the requirement 1o adopt

a post employment holding requirement for the executive directors as described in the remuneration report on page 38.

0On hehalf of the board

gO@vmr\c)\/\

E O'Donnell
Non-executive chair
26 July 2021
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

The report details the role of the audit and risk committee and the work it has undertaken during the year as well as its meating in Juiy
2021 when this annual report and financial statements were approved.

Committee membership

The audit and risk committee comprises the three non-executive directors and is chaired by Sally Matthews who is a chartered accountant.
Sally Matthews replaced Elaine O'Donnell as chair following her appointment as non-executive chair of the board in January 2021 Elaine
O'Donnell is not a member of this committee but is invited to attend as an observer, The board cansiders that as serving chairs during the
year, both Sally Matthews and Elaine O’Donnell have recent relevant financial experience by virtue of their professional qualifications and
their previous executive roles. Members of the committee can also demonstrate a breadth of experience across the manufacturing, retail,
e-commerce and meda sectors through their current and previous roles.

Significant issues considered by the audit and risk committee

The cormmittee had four scheduled meetings during the year which were attended by all members of the committee. It has an agenda
linked to the events in the Group’s financial calendar. The external auditors met with the committee withaut management being present
and the chair and members of the committee have direct contatt with the audit partner as required. During the year the committee:

s reviewed the half-year and full-year results;

s received and considered, as part of the review of the annual financial statements, reports frem the external auditors in respect of the
auditors' audit plan for the year and the results of the annual audit. These reports included the scope of the annual audit, the
approach adopted by the auditors to address and conclude upen key estimates and ather key audit areas, the basis on which the
auditors assess materiality, the terms of engagement for the auditors and an ongoing assessment of the impact of future accounting
developments on the Group;

&  considered whether the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable. In doing so, the committee reviewed and discussed with
management the content and appropriateness of the information included within the 2021 annual report. This provided the
committee with the supparting detail to ensure that it was in 3 position to report to the board that the 2021 annual report taken as a
whale was fair, balanced and understandable. This was on the basis that the business descripticn, business model and strategy agreed
with its own understanding of the Group, and the balance in the reporting of performance reflected both positive and negative issues
and reflected the Group's activities during the year;

« considered the effectiveness and independence of the external auditors. The auditors specifically demonstrated professional
scepticism and challenged management assumptions with regards to the future plans and performance of the retail store portfotio
and the going concern scenarios modeiled

. made a recommendation to the board to appoint new external auditors,

- ran a formal tender process and made a recommendation to the board to appoint KPMG as external auditors {further details below),

s reviewed the Company's policy on non-audit fees and ensured appropriate safeguards are in place,

*  considered and agreed the internal audit work programme and recewed regular reparts on the key issues artsing from its
implementation during the year; and

. reviewed reports on the key business risks, inciuding a review of the internal control processes used to identify, monitor and mitigate
the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties.

The committee received, reviewed and challenged reports from management and the external auditors setting cut the significantissues in
relation to the 2021 annual report and made their own assessment These issues were discussed and challenged with management during
the year They were also discussed with the auditors at the time the committee reviewed and agreed the auditors’ Group audit plan and at
the conclusion of the audit of the financial statements The 1ssues that were discussed were-

*  the impact of COVID-19 on cash hquidity within the business, going concern and viabiity statement i the light of significant
uncertainties caused by COVID-19, the committee challenged whether the business could withstand vanous downside sensitivities £o
three year forecasts and examined the extent of contingency planning and mitigating factars that could be applied including the
review of whether any store asset impairment would be required The committee was satisfied with the responses toits challenges,
and

®  sccounting for right-of-use assets and lease liabilities under IFRS 16: 1n light of the magnitude of the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilties and the manual nature of some of the processes used to account for this the committee reviewed the accounting and
concluded it was appropriate

The committee calls upen the external auditors, the internal auditor and the executive directors to attend farmal meetings as required.
These meetings dre held at least three times a year. The external and internal auditars are given the opportunity to raise any matters or
concerns they may have in the absence of the executive directors at separate meetings with the audit and risk committee or its chair.
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT continued

Auditors’ independence

The committee reviews the independence of the external auditors by assessing the arrangements for the day to day management of the
audit relationship as well as reviewing the auditors’ report which deseribes their procedures for identifying and reparting conflicts of
interest. To maintain the auditors’ independence, the committee has also established the policy that the primary role of the externat
auditors is to perform services directly refated to their audit respensibifities Any non-audit services are approved by the comrmittee Non-
audit fees paid to the auditors amounted to £6,000 in the year {2% of the total amount paid to the auditors in the year); this relates ta the
varification of retail turngver certificates for certain stores. The Group uses other advisers for taxation advice and other services. The audit
fees are disclosed in note 9.

The avdit and risk committee considers the re-appointment of the external auditors each year, as well as remuneration and other terms of
engagement. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have acted as external auditors of the Group since the 2005 year end. The audit was last put out
to a competitive tender in 2014/15 and the committee agreed it was now an appropriate time to run a competitive tender process.

The committee ran a competitive tender pracess which was completed in March 2021. Prior te the commencement of the formal tender
process, the CMO met with relevant individuals from the other "Big 4' and certam ‘mid-tier’ audit firms to assess the suitability of the
various potential service providers. At the end of this process the audit committee concluded that KPMG, EY and RSM should be invited
to formalty tender. The current auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, were excluded from the process due to the length of their
tenure.

Each of the firms received a formal invitation to tender and were offered access to relevant data as well as sessions with all members of
the audit committee and the CFO. Written tender submissions were submitted in advance and then followed up by a presentation from
each of the three firms to a panel The panel comprised the full audit committee, the CFO, the group reporting manager and the
company secretary.

The panel assessed the written tender document and presentations based on a set of key criteria that had heen arrculated at the start of
the process to all participating partres. The criteria covered effectiveness and efficiency, business understanding, transition
arrangements, independence and governance and fees. On this basis the committee recommend the appointment of KPMG at the 2021
AGM.

There are currently no contractual obligations which restrict the choice of externat auditors. We can confirm that the Company has
complied with The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of the Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial year.

Internal cantrol

The directors recagnise that they have overall responsibility ‘or ensuring that the Group mantains a sound system of iaternal controt to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets, and for reviewing its effectiveness The system is designed to manage risks
that may prevent the Group fram achieving its business cbjectives, rather than to eliminate these risks. However, even the most effective
system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement ar loss

The directors have established an ongoing pracess for :dentifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group, which
has been in piace from the start of the year until the date of approval of this report This process 1s regularly reviewed by the committee
and the board throughaut the year

The effectiveness of the Graup's system of internal canteal s regularly reviewed by the commuttee and the board The review covers all
material controls, ncluding financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. The monitoring of control precedures i1s
achieved through regular review by the CFO and the company secretary, reporting to the committee and to the board This review process
considers whether significant risks have been identified, evaluated and controlied and whether any significant weaknesses are promptly
remedied and indicate a need for more extensive monitoring. Regular reporting by senior management ensures that, as far as possible, the
cantrels and safeguards are being operated appropriately This process is considered by the audit and risk commuttee, alongside the
adequacy cf the risk management and internal control systems, the external auditors’ and internal auditors’ reports. The internai contro:
and risk management systems are considered to be appropriate.

The Group has continued 1ts programme of internat audit reviews during the year. The audit and risk committee agrees an annual internai
audit plan, focusing on business specific issues. Actions agreed by management, in response to recommendations made, are followed up.

The board, with advice from the audit and risk committee, has completed its annual review of the system of internal control and is satisfied
that it has acted appropriately and in accordance with that guidance. During the course of its review of the system of internal control, the
board has not identified nor been advised of any failings or weaknesses which it has determined ta be significant. Therefore a confirmation
in respect of necessary actions is nat considered appropriate

{nternal audit

The internal audit team follows a programme of activities that are closely aligned with principal operational risks. Activities are conducted
either by a dedicated internal auditor, an internal team that is independent of the area under review or by an external party, decided on a
case by case basis. In all cases the review is conducted on behalf of the committee and reports back to them. Reports were discussed with
the committee and a remediation plan agreed by management te improve controls where appropriate, The committee can canfirm that
the guality, experience gnd expertise of the function is appropriate
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Risk management
The committee is respansible for assessing the scope and effectiveness of the systems established by management to identify, assess,
manage and monitar financial and non-financia! risks.

Throughout 2020/21 work has been ongoing to measure the impact of each aperational nisk so as to better understand the
mitigating actions necessary alongside progress against each of these actions. This work will continue into 2021/22.

The continued management of the global COVID-19 pandemic was an excellent test of management’s responsiveness to significant risk and
uncertainty. With the leading principle that the health and wellbeing of our pecple and aur customers come first, the business again closed
the majority of retail shops, only reopening when management were completely confident that it was entirely safe to do 50, with a
comprehensive risk assessment and action plan for each area of the business and always in line with local government guidelines.

Process for preparing consolidated financial statements
The Group has established internal control and risk management systems in relation to the process for preparing the consolidated financial
statements. The key features of these systems are:

+ Managementregularly monitors and considers developments in accounting standards and hest practice in financial reporting and
reflects developments in the financial statements where appropriate. The external auditor also keeps the committee apprised of these
developments.

& The committee and the board review the draft financial statements. The committee receives reports from management and the
external auditor an significant judgements, changes in accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and any other appropriate
changes to the financial statements.

+ The full year financial statements are subject to external audit.

Bribery and corruption

Bribery and corrupt practices are never tolerated in the pursuit of Games Workshop's business objectives or goals, or within business
relationships, or the actions of its employees and associated parties. This commitment is driven fram the chief executive and the board
throughout the entire Group and a commitment is expected of all who work with the Group and who act on our behalf or are employed or
engaged in any capacity by us. The Games Warkshop anti-bribery policy reflects Games Workshep’s zero tolerance approach to acts of
bribery

Suppliers are also required to follow an ethical sourcing audit programme, detailed on page 25, of which Games Waorkshap is a buyer
member.

Whistleblowing

The board s responsible for the review of the Company’s procedures for respanding to the allegations of whistleblowers algngside input
from the audit and risk committee Whistleblowing arrangements are in place to ensure staff may, in confidence, rasse concerns about
passible financial reporting irregularities If an employee daes not feet comfortable reporting any patential, suspected, attempted or actual
breaches of company pcohicy, they car report such activity to Games Warkshap's chair of the audit and risk committee using a dedicated
whistleblowing email address Staff can repart any concerns by email without disclosing their identity should they wish to This
whistleblowing procedure 1s communicated to staff within relevant employee polictes Games Waorkshop endeavours to pratect those who
make disclosures of wrongdaing Any reports made in goad faith will be dealt with in canfidence {to the extent possible), and the reporting
employee shall not be discriminated against as a result of thewr actions

QOn behalf of the board

R N e
S Matthews

Audit and risk committee chatr
25 July 2021
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Introduction

The remuneration report for the year ended 30 May 2021 has been prepared on behalf of the board by the remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Cempanies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, as amended, and meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority and the UK Corporate Governance Code.

This remuneration report consists of two parts:

e Thedirectors’ remuneration policy, which sets out the Company's policy on directors’ remuneration along with the key factors taken
Into account in setting that policy. This directors’ remuneration policy was approved by over 90% of sharehclders who submitted a
proxy vote at the 2018 AGM at which date it became effective. As the remuneration policy is subject to a periodic binding shareholder
vote, with the next vote to take place at the 2021 AGM, the remuneration camnuttee has undertaken a review to ensure that our
directors’ remuneration policy remains valid and aligned to the Company’s strategy and culture. The outcomes and changes asscciated
with the review are dentified in this report.

+ The annual report on remuneration, which sets out payments made to executive directors and nan-executive directors and details the
relationship between company performance and remuneration for the 2020/21 financial year. The 2020/21 report is subject toan
advisory vote at the 2021 AGM.

2020/21 overview
Remuneration in ¢ COVID-19 year
While the global pandemic presented many challenges during the financial year, it should be noted that

® No government financial support ar subsidies were utilised during the year. In line with our earlier announcement regarding repayment
of furtough suppoart and other government subsidies, we also cancelied the UK expanded business rates retail discount scheme far
2020/21.

® Ng temporary pay cuts were implemented in response to the pandemic. In line with the rest of the workforce, the executive directors’
base salaries also remained at 100%, throughout the year.

e The previously signalied pay freeze for the wider workforce was reversed and a 3% pay increase was applied to all staff with the
exception of the two executive directors. The increase was backdated to the Group's normal pay review date of 1 June 2020

&  Nosignificant redundancy programmes were carried out during the year.

&« Dividends continued to be paid - at record levels

Company performance
The Company entered 2020/2_ after delivening record sales performance of £221 millionin 2017/18, €257 milhon in 2018/19 and £27C

millian 1n 2019/20.

Despite restrictions to aperations and the requirement to implement many additional cantrols to protect the health of staff, their famunes
and customers, the Company again delivered growth, delivering record sales of £353 million and profit befare tax of £151 milhon We do
not take this spectacular performance for granted, 1t1s the result of a great deal of effort and skill, delivered throughout the organisation

Group-wide remuneration

Group Profit Share scheme

Under the existing remuneration poficy, all eligible employees (including the executive directors) are included within the Greup Profit Share
scheme Targets are set annually, and any pay-out 1s determined by the remuneration committee, based on those targets The 2018 policy
describes a maximum potential value of £1,000 per person per year, paid equally to alf ehgible employees. Awards are payable in cash

in line with this and previous years, we paid £1,000 each to all staff - in total £2.6 million {2020. £2.4 million} in December 2020 and May
2021 Tofurther reward exceptional performance in helping to increase profitability in the first half of the year, we also paid all employees
a discretionary bonus of £2,000 each in December 2020 {with the exception of the two executive directors) - 3 total of £5.3 mulhion {2020
£nil). A final discretionary payment of a further £2,000 was paid in May 2021 to each emplioyee {with the exception of the two executive
directors) - a total of £5.3 mithon {2G20. £nil).

tn summary, for 2020/21, the two executive directors were each awarded £500 as eligible members of the Group Profit Share scheme All
other eligible employees were paid £1,000 plus £4,000 additional discretianary payments, which amounted to a combined figure across the
workforce of £13.2 million over the course of the year.
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Group-wide remuneration

Group Profit Share scheme continued

During the year, the remuneration committee undertook a review of the executive director remuneration policy, referencing the
experience uf Lhie wider workforce and including consideration of the Group Profit Share scheme. This review stimulated the committee to
agree changes to the Group Profit Share scheme under the existing 2018 AGM approved policy, as follows:

e Toimplement changes to the terms of the Group Profit Share scheme, to apply from June 2021 enwards. The revised scheme replaces
the maximum potential value of cash payments fram £1,000 per person per year to a share of up to 10% of group operating profit
before rovalties receivable.

« The proportion of operating profit before royalties receivable paid out continues to be subject to the discretionary approval of the
remuneration committee.

*  Payments will continue to be made in cash and paid equally to eligible employees.

o All other existing Group-wide banus schemes including those ralating to retail performance have been suspended.

o From June 2021, the two executive directors are excluded from the Group Profit Share scheme.

Senigr management bonus

As a result of discussions between Kevin Rountree and the committee, the committee agreed to support a discretionary bonus payable in
cash, to a number of individual managers whao contributed to the Company's outstanding performance. The committee was delighted to
support this proposa! in recognition of the extraordinary effort and skill reguired to deliver these results in an unusualiy challenging
envircnment

Exceptional Bonus Award

In 2018, in consultation with shareholders, the committee undertoak to articulate exceptional performance and to appropriately exercise
its discretion in making any Exceptional Bonus Award in future years. The 2018 AGM approved policy allows the committee to award an
exceptional bonus, with a maximum award of 100% of base salary ta each of our two executive directors. This bonus is payable in cash with
a requirement that 50% of any bonus {net of tax) will be invested in Company shares, which are expected to be held for a period of not less
than two years.

For the financial and operational performance reasons outhined above, particutarly the growth in sales from £270 million in 2019/20 to
£353 million in 2020/21 and growth in profit before taxation from £89 million in 2019/2C to a profit befare taxation of £151 million in
2020/21 during the COVID-19 pandemic, the committee agreed that the threshold for ‘exceptional performance’ had been reached in
2020/21 Therefore, the committee deemed it appropriate to exercise the discretion granted at the 2018 AGM to award each of the
executive directors an Exceptional Banus Award of 100% of 2020/21 salary In accordance with the approved policy, the executive directors
are required to invest 50% of this bonus award (net of tax) into Company shares, which are expected to be held fer a minimum of two
years.

Review of executive directar remuneration

in 2020, the committee also undertook an assessment of executive director total remuneration under the 2018 AGM approved policy.
stimulated by the judgement to restare the pay review to the wider warkforce, which had imtially been frozen as a respense to the
pandemic This review, which included a benchmarking exercise carried out by independent remuneration consultants Alvarez & Marsal,
identified that our executive directors’ remuneration had falten “significantly below market positioning’. The review was subjected to open
and independent dabate within the committee to ensure that the judgements made were ours. not those of consultants

To begin to address this situation and in line with current remunerat:on policy, Kevin Rountree’s salary was increased fram £525,000 to
£675,000. Further to this review and in reflection of her promotion to the role of CFO, Rachel Tongue’s base salary was increased from
£300,000 to £450,000 These new rates were appled on 1 Novernber 2020. As stated above, the two executives also each receved £500 as
members of the Group Profit Share scheme, but not the additiona! discretionary payments made to all other eligible employess Going
forward. the executive directors will no longer be part of the Group Profit Share scheme

The cammittee naw propases to revise the terms of the Exceptional Bonus Award, apphczable to the two executive directors, from June
2021 onwards, subject to approval of the updated policy at the 2021 AGM

Under the revised policy proposal, the maximum annual Exceptional Bonus Award opportunity wilf increase from 100% to 150% of base
salary for each of our executive directors. Banus witl be payable in cash with a requirement that 67% (previously 50%) of any bonus {net of
tax) will be invested in Company shares, expected ta be held for an increased period of not less than three years (previously two years)
There are no proposed changes to the mechanics of the award, which continues to be at the independent discretion of the remuneration
committee. The remuneration committee will retain the discretion to assess ‘exceptional’ going forward and reallinms its promise ta

exercise its discretion appropriately and to explain the circumstances where an Exceptional Bonus Award is paid.

The committee does not propose to make any other changes to the policy, previously approved at the 2018 AGM.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

2020/21 Executive director remuneration propasal context
As described above, the remuneration committee made decisions during the year - under the 2018 AGM approved policy - to change the
base salaries of our executive directors and to alter the terms of the Grougp Profit Share scheme.

The committee alse undertook a thorough review of the overall remuneration palicy, as this is subject to approval, on a three year cycle, at
the 2021 AGM. As described above, the committee proposes to make only one change to the policy, relating to the terms of the annuat
Exceptional Banus Award apphlicable to the two executive directars.

Overall, the aim of the remuneration committee is (¢ cperate a remuneration policy designed to,

s attract, retain and motivate high gquality management and to reward them fairly and consistently;

« balance the interests of our stakeholders, particularly shareholders and the experience of the wider workforce,;

+ support the Company’s strategic statement, particularly the phrases ‘we intend to do this forever’ and ‘our decisions are focused on
long term success, not short-term gains’; and

+ reflect the Company's culture. This s of great significance as we believe that Games Workshop's culture is fundamental to the
company’s success

Total remuneration

As aninitial response to the pandemic, a group-wide pay freeze was announced for 2020/21. This was subsequently reviewed in the light of
the Group's financial performance and a pay review of 3% was implemented and back-paid to all staff {with the exception of the executive
directors} on the standard pay review date of 1 June 2020.

The reinstatement of the pay review for the wider workfarce stimulated the remuneration committee to review executive pay. This
coincided with the promation of Rachel Tongue to the role of CFO, a rcle with additional scope compared to her previous position as group
finance director.

Qur existing policy, approved at the 2018 AGM states: ‘Increases out of line with the workforce are carefully cansidered but may be
awarded taking all relevant factors into account, for example, increases in scope and responsibility or saiary falling significantly below
market positioning’

In line with this policy, the remuneration committee,

s reviewed CEQ Kevin Rountree’s remuneration to consider ils market position, taking into account changes to the scale and valuation of
tne Company; and

s reviewed FD Rachel Tongue's remuneration to censider its market positign, taking into account changes to the scale and valuation of
the Company and also to reflect the increased scope of her role following her promubion to CFC

After considering the service offering of a number of remuneration cansultants, the committee commussioned Alvarez & Marsal to conduct
a benchmarking exercise, which included companies based on turnover, market capitalisation and bespoke characteristics The outcome of
this exercise was considered independently by the remuneration committee, with addittonal references to spectfic individual companes
which we deemed to be relevant comparatars

The committee considered the relative position of our executive directors’ pay. In conducting the review, we cansidered the various
elernents of executive benefits - base salary, fixed pay, variable pay and total remuneration

Base salary and fixed pay

The committee noted that the executive directors’ remuneration packages include a pension contribution percentage of base salary
equivalent 1o that available to the wider waorkforce. At 7.5%, this s half the median pension contribution percentage paid to FTSE 250
directors identified in the benchmarking exercise, reviewed by the committee. This is important when considering total fixed remuneration
rather than base salary alone Moreover, the potential impact of an increase to base salary has a lower muitiplier effect than that typical
for other FTSE 250 directors.

The committee took note that Games Warkshop's directors’ remuneration does not include Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs}, so the
potential impact of an increase to base salary has a lower multiplier effect than that typical far other FTSE 250 directors.

The benchmarking exercise established that the total remuneration of gur executive directors was less than half that of the peer group set

and therefore “significantiy below market poasitioning’. This stimulated the committee to consider how to address this issue in the short and
tong term, in line with our culture and how to establish a new rate to retain and motivate our executive directors going forwards
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Base salary and fixed pay continued

We concluded that we should alter base salary during 2020 under the existing policy and use the pracess for the tri-annual policy review,
which is to be approved at the 2021 AGM, to consult with shareholders and seek approval for further modifications to directors’
remuneration.

Having considered a fixed remuneration market rate that might be required to recruit successors, the committee concluded it was unfair
not to award this market rate immediately to an established executive team who have delivered amazing results.

As a result, we increased Kevin Rountree’s base salary from £525,000 to £675,000 and Rachel Tongue's base salary from £300,000 to
£450,000. These increases were applied on 1 November 2020, the date of Rachel’s promotion to CFO.

Variable pay
The remuneration policy is also intended to ‘'maotivate’ our management to delwver a high level of performance.

The committee noted that our remuneration pohcy differs from that in many other companies within the FTSE. This is a reflection of our
belief that, culturally, our managers and colleagues want to deliver a high level of performance and the use of complex and formulaic
incentive programmes might have unintended consequences and do more harm than good.

Having reviewed our position, the committee confirmed its opinion that the remuneration package for our executive directors shauld not
include LTIPs. We believe that LTIPs could have the potential to unbalance the organisation with people being incentivised to behave
selfishly to achieve their personal goal, at the expense of the wider arganisation.

The committee confirmed its belief that the recognition of exceptional performance has a potential motivational impact on teams and on
individuals and agreed that the structure of the existing Exceptional Bonus Award, designed to recognise and reward exceptional
performance of our executive directors, remained fit for purpose.

In order to reflect our aim of addressing the total remuneration package of our executive directars, we propose to increase the guantum of
the maximum award from 100% of base salary to 150% of base salary.

In order to reflect alignment with shareholder interasts, the committee proposes to increase the proportion of the award required to be
invested by our executive directors {post tax) in Company shares from 50% to 67% and to increase the manimum period that these shares
are to he held from two to three years.

The committee nated that there may be more tax efficient mechanisms to achieve this share purchase, but the executives choose not to
employ these alternatives, believing it inappropriate to use the Company’s tax resources for the benefit of two individuals

in arder to further promate alignment with the expenence of the wider workforce, the committee’s judgements around the proposed
changes tc the Exceptionat Bonus Award were made in tandem with the changes to the terms of the Group Profit Share scheme described
earlier

in applying discretion to both the Exceptional Bonus Award and the Graup Profit Share scheme, the committee is preventing formuiaic
outcomes and strengthening the alignment of experience between awards to the executve directors, shareholders and the wider
waorkforce

When considering the potential payment of an exceptional bonus, the committee applies discretion to a sute of financial indicators
including growth, margin, Group profit, earmings per share, cash generation and dividend payments made |f performance against this
basket of criteria 15 exceptionai, the Group will have generated sufficient profit and cash to have paid dividends to sharehalders and
approprate cash payments to all staff under the Group Profit Share scheme Each of these stakeholders are considered by the comm ttee
hefore making bonus payments to our executive directors

There are no elements of executive vasiable pay that are assigned to the achievemnent of specific non-financial goats. The committee’s view
15 that progress with the implementation of strategic abjectives, completion of particular projects or progress with £5G elements are
fundamental to our executive directars’ roles and the isclation of particular elements to attract specific reward might distract from the
performance of the business in the round or inadvertently emphasise the pnornties of a particular stakehoider

The exceptional bonus daes not contain a mechanism to pay out for ‘on target’ performance. This may amplify compiexity when comparing
with other FTSE companies where threshold payments are applied, but cur position is that performance that is in line with expectations is
covered by the base salary element of the remuneration package.

The committee notes the recent initiatives of other companies to use ESG targets as a mechanism to trigger bonus awards. Qur decision
not to do this should not be interpreted as a lack of commitment to ESG. In fact, Games Workshop's lang-established strategic statement
emphasises our intention "to do this faorever’. This is such an entrenched part of Games Workshop's ethos that there we do not believe that
we should introduce specific targets which might distract from or emphasise particular elements of this intent. Our expectation is that ESG
progress is covered by the base salary element of the remuneration package.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

We are aware that the Code states that remuneration schemes should promaote long-term shareholdings by executive directors to support
alignment with shareholder interests.

Our position remains that the benefits of granting LTIP share awards for this purpose are outweighed by the potential negative impact of
LTIPs an the unique culture of Games Warkshop and the potential to widen the multiple of CEO and CFO remuneration, when compared to
the wider workforce.

In asscciation with the remuneration committee’s judgement to retain a policy without LTIP share awards, we have also decided to
maintain our pasition where the executive directors are not subject to in-employment nor post-cessation minimum shareholding
regquirements.

We have chosen not to impose these conditions as, an the basis of their conduct, long service and consistent outstanding performance, the
committee is satisfied that our executive directors’ behavigur is focussed on the long term and is aligned with shareholder interests.

The established Exceptional Bonus Award enables the committee to reward and recognise the executive director’s effectiveness in a way
that promotes overall sharehalding and the alignment of interests with shareholders. Going forward, the committee will require the
executive directors to invest 67% (previously 50%) of any bonus awards {net of tax) into Company shares at market anice, which are
expected 1o be held for a minimum of three years {previously two years).

At the time of writing, both executive directors have significant shareholdings, all of which have been purchased from their personal post-
tax resources

Conclusion
The board takes seriously its responsibilities in applying the principles of UK corporate governance - properly incentivising executive
directors and senior management forms part of this responsibility.

The committee and the board’s philosophy to pay and reward remains the same, believing that the main focus of the remuneration policy
should be on the fixed elements of pay. The committee has discussed and is very mindful of the risks of incentive plans and complex bonus
schemes driving short-term and/or individual behaviour which are not in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. As such, the
committee has no intention of introducing any form of long-term incentives at this time However, the committee undertakes to seek to be
appropriately informed on market dynamics and to listen ta the Company’s key stakehglders, in order to ensure that the executive
directors are appropriately rewarded, retained and motivated

As a hoard we have high performance expectations and the executive directars are even more demanding of themselves and of their
teams Consequently, due to the stretching nature of underlying performance criteria for the Exceptional Bonus Award that the pohicy
allows, the committee does not necessarily anticipate that awards will be made under the Exceptional Bonus Award each and every year

The remuneration committee notes that our pohcy will never fully address the shortfall in total remuneration compared to the majority of
FTSE peers because neither the commuttee nor the executives themselves helieve that LTIPs are in line with Games Workshop’s culture and
values

Looking to the future, the cammittee will continue to monitor the consistency of the remuneration policy across the Group with a view to
ensuring that an appropriate reward structure exists to recognise and retain our key executives As part of this process the committee will
continue to keep under review and discuss regularly the effectiveness of the company’s approach to remuneration and its compenent
parts

The commttee will continue te engage key stakeholders during the years ahead in order to consider any modifications which shauld be
made beyend the recent changes te base pay and Group Profit Share scheme and the proposed changes to the Exceptional Bonus Award
described within this report, which we submit to shareholders for approval at the 2021 AGM

W

John Brewis
Chair
Remuneration committee
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Annual report on remuneration
This part of the report sets out the directors’ remuneration palicy, subject to approval by shareholders at the 2021 AGM.

The aim of the Group's remuneralion policy is to reward fairly and to attract, motivate and retain high quality management. The total size
of the remuneratian package for executive directors is jJudged by and compared with the remuneration packages of similar companies,
having regard to:

+ the size of the company, its turnover, profits and number of people employed
* the diversity and complexity of the business

s the geographical spread of the business

* the growth and expansion profile

The remuneration committes 15 able to employ remuneration consultants to provide reference and advice, which is subject to independent
evaluation by the committee. During 2020, the committee cormmissioned Alvarez & Marsal to conduct an exercise to benchmark the
remuneration packages of aur two executive directors, This consultancy has no other connection with the company nor any of its directars

Fees of £10,000 were paid on a fixed fee basis to Alvarez & Marsal for the benchmarking exercise.

The Company’s non-executive directars are remunerated with fees in line with market rates. They do not receive any pension or other
henefits, other than the reimbursement of reascnable expenses, and they do not participate in any bonus or share schemes.

Remuneration policy table
The table below summarises each of the companents of the remuneration package for directors of the Company which comaprise the palicy
proposed for approval at the 2021 AGM. The commuittee may make minor changes to the palicy, which do not have a material advantage to
the directors, to aid its operation or implementation, taking account of the interests of shareholders but without the need to seek

shareholder approval.

Camponent  Purpose and hink to strategy Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics
Salary Core etlement of fixed Reviewed annually and usually There is no prescribed Not applicable,
remuneration, reflecting the fixed for 12 months from 1 june  maximum annual increase in although the
size and scope of the role. There is no entitlement to an szlary. individual’s
annual increase cantribution and
Purpesea is to recrurt and Salaries are reviewed taking overall performance is
retain directors of the calibre Takes into consideration the into consideration salary one of the
required for the business director’s role and attitudes. Increases across the Group. considerations in
determining the level of
Takes into account prevailng In¢reases vul of ine with the any salaryincrease
market conditions and 15 aligned  waorkforce are carefully
with staff pay reviews considered but may be
awarded taking all relevant
Externally benchmarked by factors into account, for
independent remuneration example, increases in scope
consuitants fram time to time and responsshility or salary
against campames of a similar falling sigmficantty below
size and complexity. market positioning.
Benefits Ensures the overall package 15 The executive directors each Set at a level which the Nat applicable
competitive receive life assurance cover committee considers
appropriate against the
Purpose s to recruit and The Sharesave scheme is a market and provides a
retain directors of the calibre HMRC approved monthly sufficient level of benefit
required for the business savings scheme facilitating the based on individual
purchase of shares at a discount  ¢ircumstances.
Participation in the Sharesave
scheme creates staff Where appropriate other Sharesave contributions are
ahgnment with the Group and  benefits may be offered as permitted in accordance
promotes a sense of including atlowances for with the relevant tax
ownership. refnration and other expatriate tegislation.
benefits.
Pension To pravide cost effective Participation in a group personal  Upto 7.5% of salaryup to a Not applicable.

retirement benefits,

pension scheme.

maximum of £4,300 per
annum. Subject to changes in
pensian tapering by HMRC,
any excess between 7.5% of
salary and £4,000 is paid as
additional salary {net of
employers’ national
insurance}.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Component

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Group Profit
share

Rewards performance against

annual targets linked to core
business operating profit.

Targets are set annually, and
any pay-out is determined by
the committee, based on
performance against those
largets.

All eligible staff participate
equally in the scheme — with
the exception cf the two
executive directors who are
excluded.

Awards are payable 1n cash.

Maximum potential value is
an equal share of up to
10% of operating profit
befere royalties

receivable.

Pay-out is subject to the
independent discretion of
the remuneration
committee taking into
account a basket of
financial indicators

Payments to eligible
employees range from nii
to an equal share of up to
10% of operating profit
before royafties
receivable.

The two executive
directors will no longer be
eligible to receive
payments under the
Group Profit Share
scheme from lune 2021
onwargs.

Exceptional
Bonus Award

Rewards exceptional
performance

Any pay-out is determined by
the committee after the year
end, based on performance

Awards are payable in cash
with 67% of the net amount
required to be invested in the
Company’s shares, with an
expectation that these are
held for at least three years.

Maximum potential value is
150% of base salary.

The payment is at the
discretion-of the
committee based on
exceptional financial and
operational performance
being achieved during the
year.

Nan-
executive
directors’
fees

Sole element of non-
executive director
remuneration is set at a level
that reflects market
conditions

Changes to the remuneration policy
As described in the first section of this remuneration report, under the policy approved at the 2018 AGM the remuneration committee
revised the terms of the Group Profit Share scheme. applicable from June 2021 and the base pay of the executive directors from 1

November 2020.

Fees are reviewed annually
taking inta account time
commitment, respansibilities
and fees paid by comparatle
campanies

Additional fees are paid to the

senior independent director te

refiect additional
responsihilities

Non-executive directors are
entitied to ctaim reasonable
out of pocket expenses in
connection with the
perfarmance of their duties.

Fees are based on the Jevel
of fees pa d to non-
executive directors serving
on boards of listed
companies of a similar size
and complexity

Not applicable

Going forward, the committee seeks approval for the sole change from the remuneration policy approved in 2018, which is to increase the
maximum bonus opportunity for the Exceptiona!l Bonus Award for our two executive directars from 100% to 150%, with an associated
increase in the requirement to invest any cash payment, net of tax, from 50% to 67% and for the extension of expectation that these
shares will be held from two to three years
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Explanation of the performance metrics chosen
The perfarmance measures selected are aligned with the Company’s strategy and business objectives. The remuneration committee
considers a basket of financial measures when applying discretion to any payments under the terms of this policy.

Iflustration of applicatian of the policy

The charts belaow show the relative split of remuneration between fixed pay {base salary, benefits and pension) and variable pay
{exceptional bonus award) for each executive director an the basis of minimum remuneration, remuneration receivable for performance in
line with the Company's expectations and maximum remuneration.

Minimum In line with expectations Maximum

Fixed pay Fixed elements of salary, benefits and pension As per minimum As per minimum
Salary is at 30 May 2021 and the value of
benefits has been assumed to be equivalent to
that included in the single figure remuneration
table on pages 42 and 43.

Exceptional Bonus Award Nl Nil 150% of salary

Differences in policy from the wider employee population

The Company aims to provide a remuneration package that s market competitive, complhes with any statutory requirements and is applied
fairly and equitably across the wider employee population. Where remuneration is not determined by statutory regulation, the Group
aperates the same core principles for the wider employee population as it does far the executive directors, namely.

= toremunerate people ina manner that allows for stability of the business and the opportunity far sustainable long-term growth
s toseek tg remunerate fairly and consistently for each rale with due regard to the market-place and internal consistency

¢ toapply the profit share equally to ali employees {excluding the executive directors)

+ toencourage employees to own shares through the cperation of the sharesave scheme

As 15 common practice, the Company has introduced elements of variable pay through an Exceptional Bonus Award which is focused on the
executive directors to ensure that the overall remuneration policy remains market competitive

Remuneration poticy for new directors

When setting the rermuneration package for a new executive director. the committee would seek to apply the same principles and
implement the policy framewark as set out above. Base salary will be set at a level appropriate for the role and the experience of the
director being appointed Benefits, pension, prefit share and the Exceptional Bonus Award will be 1in line with the stated policy. Any duy
aut award, should one be required, would be limited to the amount of salary that would be forgone

Non-executive director fees will be set at a competiive market level, reflecting the skills, knowledge, expenence, responsibilities and time
commitment

Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment

Executive Date of contract Unexpired term of contract Notice period
K D Rountree 25 February 2009 Rolling contract 12 months

R F Tongue 25 March 2015 Rolling contract 12 months
Non-executive Date of appcintment Date of last re-election at an AGM Notice period
N J Donaldson* 18 April 2002 18 September 2020 6 months

£ ¢'Donnell 28 Movermnbper 2013 18 September 2020 6 months

J R A Brewis 20} June 2018 18 September 2020 & manths

K E Marsh 24 july 2019 18 September 2020 & months

S Matthews 1 November 2020 - 6 months

*retired on 31 May 2021

41 Games Workshop Group PLC



REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Directors’ service contracts and letters of appoaintment continued

In accordance with best practice and as set out in the Cade, notice periods in new service contracts for executive directors are set at one
year. Non-executive director appointments are made through letters of appointment for a one-year term, subject to election and re-
election by the Company’s shareholders in accordance with the Company's articles and the Code. The letters of appointment may be
inspected at the Company's registered office.

Policy on payment for lass of office

If an executive director’'s employment is to be terminated, the committee’s policy in respect of the service agreement (in the absence of a
breach of the service agreement by the director) 15 to agree a termination payment based on the value of base salary and contractual
pension and other benefits that would have accrued to the director during the contractual notice period. Depending on the particular
circumstances, a director may work the notice pericd, be placed on garden leave for same or all of the notice period or receive a payment
in lieu of notice in accordance with the service agreement. The committee will consider mitigation to reduce the termination payment to a
leaving director when appropriate to do 5o, having regard to the specific circumstances

Nen-executive directars’ appointments may be terminated without compensation but with six months’ notice

External appointments
The executive directars may 2ach accept one external appointment with the prior approval of the board, from which any fees may be
retained. At present, neither of the executive directors hold any outside directorship.

No additional non-axecutive directorships have been accepted by any of the directors during the year.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
The Group aims to provide a remuneration package to all employees that (s market competitive, complies with any statutory requirements
and 1s applied fairly and equitably across the employee population, taking inta account local employment market conditions

The committee takes into account the generat basic salary increase being offered to employees elsewhere in the Group when annually
reviewing the salary increase and remuneration of the executive directors. Employees are not consulted in respect of board remuneration
The committee also reviews general workforce remuneration and the alignment of incentives with Games Workshop's culture to ensure it
remains appropriate.

Engagement with the workforce in relation to explaining how executive remuneration policies align with the wider company pay policy
took place through attendance by committee members at the Games Workshop Global Communications Forum meetings

Consideration of sharehalder views

The cornmittee takes into account shareholder feedback recewed on remunerstran matters, including comments .n relation to the
resolutions at the AGM in addition to any addwional comments In correspondence direct with the Company The committee would seek 10
engage directly with major shareholders shoutd any material changes be made to the policy

Annual report on remuneration {(subject to audit}
The tabies beiow set out in a single figure the total remuneration, including each element, for each person who served 35 a director of the

Company during the financial years ended 31 May 2020 and 30 May 2021

Year ended 30 May 2021

Pension Exceptional
related Total fixed Sharesave Bonus Total
Salary/fees benefits pay option gamn Award Protit share vanable pay Tatal
£0060 €000  £000 £000 __£0C0 £00C £000 - £000
K D Rountree 648 4 653 122 613 735 1,388
R F Tongue 409 4 413 117 388 505 918
N J Donaldson* 103 103 - - 103
E O'Donnelt 93 93
I R A Rrewis 55 - 55 -
K E Marsh 52 - 52 -
S Matthows** 30 - 30 - - - -
Total 1,391 8 1,399 239 1,001 - 1,240 2,639

*N ] Danaldson retired from the board on 31 May 2021
**S Matthews was appointed on 1 November 2020
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Year ended 31 May 2020

Pensian

related Exceptional Total variable
Salaryftees benefits  Total fixed pay  Bonus Award Profit share pay Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
K D Rountree 552 9 S61 105 i 106 667
RF Tangue 312 9 321 60 1 61 382
N ) Donaldson 140 - 140 - . , 140
C § Myatt* 18 - 18 - - 18
£ O'Donnelf <8 - 58 58
) R A Brewis 52 - 52 52
K E Marsh** 44 - 44 , . . 44
Total 1,176 18 1,194 165 2 167 1,361

*C ) Miyatt retired from the board at the 2019 AGM
** K E Marsh was appointed on 24 july 2019

The figures in the single figure tables above are derived as follows:

Salary/fees - the amaunt of salary/fees received in the year including any additionaf salary dug in excess of the pension tapering hmits.
Pension related benefits - the cash value of pension contributions received by the executive directors. This includes the Company's

contribution into the group personal pension scheme

Sharesave pption gain - the difference hetween the share price on the date of exercise and the option price multiplied by the number cf

shares exercised.

Exceptional Bonus Award - 100% of salary was accrued in relation to performance in 2020/21 and 20% of salary was accrued in relation ta

performance in 2019/20.

Profit share - the amount of profit share earned in the year A payment of £500 each was paid in 2020/21 and £1,000 each was paid in

2019/20 to K D Rountree and R £ Tongue (n tine with the rules of the scheme.
No taxable benefits were paid

During 2020/21 and 2019/20 there were no payments made for loss of office

CEOQ remuneration

Total remuneration % of maximum exceptional
Year U & 1 _ £000 . banusaward paid
2021 K D Rountree - 1,388 7 100
2020 K D Rountree 667 20
2019 K D Rountree 1,077 20
2018 K D Rountree 438 100
2017 K D Rountree 401 nfa
2016 K D Rountree 402 n/a
2015 K D Rountree 168 n/a
2015 THF Kirby* 291 n/a
2014 THFKirby 511 n/a
2013 THF Kirby 132 n/a
2013 M N Wells** 774 n/a
2012 M N Welis 319 n/a

% of maximum profit share
_paid**
50

100

100

100

100

54

48

*THF Kirby stepped down as CEC on 31 December 2014 and K D Rountree was appointed CEQ with effect from L January 2015
“*M N Wells resigned on 31 January 2013 and so all of tus remuneration for 2012/13 including the payment far compensation for loss of

office, 15 included in this table.
***Maximum profit share pard was between £1,000 and £250
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Percentage change in directors’ remuneration

The table below shows how the percentage change in the directors’ salary/fees in 2020/21 compares with the percentage change in the
average remuneration and profit share of all emplayees within the Group. The committee has selected the Group’s entire staff population
{excluding the directors) as these represent the most appropriate comparator.

Salary/fees o Exceptional Bonus Award Profit share/discretionary payment
K D Rountree +17.7% +483.8% -50%
R F Tongue +31.2% +546 7% -50%
N J Donaldson (i) -26.2% n/a n/a
£ Q'Donnell (ii) +62.0% n/a n/a
J R A Brewis {iti} +6.4% n/a n/a
K E Marsh (v} +16.9% nfa nfa
$ Matthews {v) ’ - nfa nfa
Wider warkforce +7.2% +78.2% +400%

(i} N ] Donaldsan retired from the board on 31 May 2021

(i} £ O'Donnell was appointed as non-executive chair on 1 January 2021

(i) J R A Brewis was appointed senior independent director on 1 january 2021
{w) K E Marsh was appointed on 24 July 2019

{v] S Matthews was appointed on 1 November 2020

The profit share payment to the CEQ was £1,000 in 2015/20 and £500 in 2020/21 i accordance with the remuneration policy The wider
workforce was paid a profit share payment of £1,000 in both years. An additional £4,000 discretionary payment per employee was paid to
the wider workforce in 2020/21 only.

Remunaration cost and profit share/discretionary honus for the wider workforce have been calculated using the average exchange rates
for the year ended 31 May 2020 for both periods.

CED pay ratio

We publish our CEQ pay ratio in accordance with the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018. In order 1o calculate our CEQ
pay ratios for 2020/21, we opted for Option A s this s the most statistically accurate method For Option A, the total FTE remuneration for
all the Group’s UK employees for the relevant financial year is determined and those employees are ranked from low te high, based an
their total FTE remuneration The employees whose remuneration places them at the 25th 50th (median) and 75th percentile points are
then identified

2020/21
. CEC 25" percentile 50" percentite 750 percentile
Payratio 611 49:1 341
Pay data (£000) 1,388 23 28 41
2019/20
CEO 25% percentile 50" percentile 75" percentile
Pay ratio T T T T T 34 1 76:1 19-1
Pay data (£00Q) 667 20 25 14

To calculate these ratios, we determined the full ime equivalent pay and benefits for all UK employees in the financial year 2020/21 basen
on actual earnings reports as at 30 May 2021, The pay and benefits used to calculate the ratios include basic salary, pension, bonus
payments, profit share, sharesave option gain and additional payments in relation to their role Where an emplayee joined part way
through the year, the menthly FTE pay was calculated and applied to the months before they joined.

In the year, the CEO was awarded an Exceptional Bonus Award of £613,000 compared to £105,00G in the prior year. In addition, the CEO

also received an increase 1n salary during the year from £525,000 to £675,000. The warkforce received a discretionary payment of £4,000
each in 2020/21 (202G nil).
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CEO pay ratio continued
The multiple of the CECY's remuneration, compared to percentiles within the workforce was considered by the committee when making
Jjudgements around executive reward. The committee acceats that the result of the proposed remuneration policy will lead to the
executive diedlurs’ 1emuneratlon being a consigerable multiple, compared to other elements of the crganisation. In reviewing executive
remuneration and the CEQ multiple, the cammittee has taken a number of themes into account.
¢ One of the guiding principles of our policy is that in order to ‘attract and retain’ talented staff we need to have remuneration, which is
in ling with what Games Workshop employees could earn in a braadly similar role in a broadly similar organisation. As this is true
throughout the arganisation it must also apply to cur executive directors. The amount our executive directors could earn in other
organisations is available for all to read in the publicly available report and accounts published by other companies in the FTSE. In fact,
the absence of LTIPs means that the potential total remuneration available to cur executive directors is significantly lower when
compared to other companies within the FTSE 250.
¢ Games Workshop has an established track record of internal promotion, blended with external recruits who fit with the organisation
and bring additional expertise. While the remuneration packages of cur two executive directors are significant, the fact that they have
both achieved these positions after more than twenty years’ service with the Company is evidence that others could do too
e This multiple 1s clearly largest when compared to employees at the lower end of the pay spectrum, but this is moderated to some
extent by the Company’s decision to:
-pay the minimum living wage, regardless of age
-ensure that Cxceptional Bonus Awards are not made to executive directors uniess the Group Profit Share Scheme is also paid
-award the Group Profit Share equally, tc all staff, which represents a higher percentage payment te lower paid staff

We are satisfied that the ratios accurately reflect our approach to pay and benefits.

Share price changes
The directars’ remuneration does not vary depending on share price appreciation or depreciation.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in dividends, profit attributable to owners and employee remuneration for the year
ended 30 May 2021, compared to the year ended 31 May 2020:

2021 2020
£m £m % change
Total staff costs 99.9 316 +22.4%
Profit attributable to owners 122.0 713 +71.1%
Dividends declared and paid 60.5 47 3 +27 9%

Statement of voting at the last AGM
At the last AGM, sigrificant vates on remuneration and nomination related resolutions were cast as follows

Votes for % of vote Votes agamnst % of vote Yotes withheid % of vote
To re-appoint N | Donaldson 14,030,878 659 5,140,662 24.2 2,112,821 9.9
To approve the remuneration report 20,434 999 965.0 785,639 37 63,723 03

N J Donaldsan retired from the board on 31 May 2021 The board of Games Workshop remains fully commutted to shareholder
engagement and welcomes ongoing dialogue with all investors

Implementation statement
A summary of the remuneratian arrangements in 2020/21 and naw the palicy will be applied during 2021/2215 set out below

Fhe structure of the remuneration policy 1s clear

The remuneration committee has an open and robust dialogue with our executives, who clearly understand the policy The chair of the
remuneration committee has directiy communicated and consulted with all shareholders wha hold 2% or more of the Company's shares
For those shareholders who agreed to an online meeting, he was joined by Elaine &' Donnell, to demonstrate the full engagement of the
board with matters of remuneration Separately, John attended the Games Workshop Communications Forum to discuss the gperation of
the remuneration policy and answer any guestions from amployee representatives

The structure of the remuneration pelicy is simple:

The fixed element of our executive’s remuneration is made up of a fixed base salary with a defined percentage pension contribution, which
is equal to the percentage contribution available to the wider workforce. Qur policy avaids the use of additional benefits ar allowances.
The variable element of executive remuneration is made up of a single Exceptional Bonus Award, which is awarded at the independent
discretion of the remuneration committee in the event that proven, exceptional performance has been defivered.

The structure of the remuneration palicy avoids risks
Our remuneration policy avoids the potential for reputationat risks from excessive rewards and the behavioural risks that might arise from
target-based incentive plans simply and effectively - by not including any target-based incentives.

The remuneration policy has predictable outcomes:

The outcomaes of the potential rewards are subject to clear limits and caps. The Exceptional Bonus Award s directly related to base salary
alone, with a maximum potential bonus payment of 100% {going forward 150%) annually to each of our two executive directors.

45 Games Workshop Group PLC



REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Implementation statement continued

The remuneration pokicy reflects a focus on delivery of our strategy and is aligned to company purpose, values and culture:

A focus on the long-term is deeply embedded in the strategy of the company and the behaviours and values of our two executive directors.
Our mission is to ‘make the best fantasy miniatures in the world, to engage and inspire our customers, and to sell our products globally at a
profit. We intend to do this forever' ‘Forever’ is a very important word ta us and afl of our decisions are focussed on the long term success
and not short term gains.

As such, the main focus of our remuneration policy continues to be on the fixed elements of pay. The Exceptional Bonus award is just that -
a reward far delivering proven, audited, performance that is viewed as ‘exceptional’ by the independent judgement of the non-executives
on the remuneration committee. There is no potential for formulaic outcomes, which might reward pcor performance

In order to align with the experience of shareholders, the executive directors are required to invest 50% (going forward 67%) of these
bonus payments {post tax} in the Company’s shares on the open market, after the results have been published There s no dilution of
shares, 1o Lompensation for taxation issues and Exceptional Bonus Award payments to the executive directors are subject to clawback.

The Group Profit Share Scheme allows up to 10% of Group Operating Profit, before rayalties receivable, to be paid, equally, to all staff
{other than the two executive directors). These payments are also subject to the independent discretion of the remuneration committee,
ensuring the variable alements of the executive directors’ remuneration are completely aligned with the experience of the wider
workforce.

Salary and fees

In 2020, the committee undertock a benchmarking exercise performed by external remuneration advisers This reviewed the salaries of the
executive and non-executive directors in order to assess how they compared with prevailing market levels of remuneration. Changes to
salary were therefore made in 2020

The remuneration policy for the non-executive directors 1s determined by the board and is reviewed every year. Fees were externally
benchmarked, taking account of the duties and responsibilities placed on the non-executive directors. The non-executive directors do not
participate in the Group's Sharesave scherne or profit share scheme nor do they receive any benefits or pension contributions.

An mcrease to the non-executive director base fees of 3%, in ne with pay rise apphcable to the wider employee population, 1s proposed
from 1 June 2021

Profit share
Pay-out is subject to the independent discretion of the remuneration committee taking into account a basket of financial indicators
Payments to ehgible employees range from nil to an equa! share of up to 10% of operating profit before royalties recewvable The executive

directors do not participate in this scheme

Exceptional Bonus Award

The maximum Exceptional Bonus Award is up to 150% of base salary for the two executive directors, per year The performance criteria are
at the discretion of the remuneration committee The committee is of the opinion that disclosing detailed performance criteria in advance
would not be in shareholder interests. A discussion of performance attnbutable to any future awards will be included in the annual report
an remuneration for that year, so that shareholders can fully assess the basis for any payouts

Sharesave
Afurther award of options will be made under the new sharesave scheme during the year which is on the same basis as previous years

Fension

Executive directors will continue to receive up to 7.5% of salary subject to 2 maximum of £4,000 per annum and the tapenng restrictions
set out in the remuneration policy Any excess between 7 5% of salary and £4,000 is paid as additionai salary {(net of empioyer’s natianat
Insurance}.

Remuneration and nomination committees

The remuneration committee is appointed by the board and comprises John Brewis {chair], Kate Marsh and Sally Matthews. The
remuneration committee is responsible for setting the remuneration packages of the executwe directors as well as approving their service
contracts. The nomination committee camprises Elaine O'Donnell, John Brewis, Kate Marsh and Sally Matthews. The nomination
committee is responsible for the composition of the board. The terms of reference for both committees are available on the Company's
investor relations website.

Advisers

In 2020 the committee was assisted in its work by Alvarez & Marsal who were appointed by the Company in consultation with the
committee. The committee assessed whether Alvarez & Marsal was independent and objective in the provision of its remuneration advice
and concluded that it was independent and objective.
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Directors’ interests in shares of the Company
The directors' interests {including their families) in the shares of the Company were as follows:

As at 30 May 2021 As at 31 May 2020
Ordinary shares of 5p each Ordinary shares of 5p each

Beneficial Non-beneficial 8eneficial Non-beneficial
K © Rountree 7,689 - 5,899
RF Tongue 6,860 - 5,314 -
N J Donaidson* 6,700 2,000 13,400 3,300
E C'Donnell 2,500 2,593 3,300 1,793
JR A Brewis 214 - - -
K E Marsh -
S Matthews - - - -

*N J Danaldson retired from the board on 31 May 2021

Share options
Share options granted to the directors under the sharesave scheme were as follows:

Number as at Exercise dates Exercise

At 1 June 2020 Exercised Granted 30 May 2021 Commencement  Expiry price

K D Rountree 1,376 1,376 - - Nov 2020 Apr 2021 £13.0774
K D Rountree - - 252 252 Nov 2023 Apr 2024 £71.4267
R F Tangue 1,376 1,376 - - Nov 2020 Apr 2021 £13.0774
R F Tongue . - 252 252 Nov 2023 Apr 2024  £71.4267

The options above were granted under the Games Workshop Group PLC 2015 Sharesave Scheme which grants options at a 20% discount
on the market price at grant. Participants save a fixed amount monthly for three years in arder to fund the exercise of the option. At
exercise an individual may chaase to exercise their option or have their savings repaid to them This scheme is open tao all eligible
employees and directors who satisfy 2 service qualification of at least three months There are no performance targets associated with
these options. No other directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Company.

There were no movements in directors’ interests in shares of the Company between 30 May 2021 and the date of this report with the
exception of K D Rountree who acquired 32 shares from the dividend reinvestment plan on 5 July 2021

Perfarmance graph

The graph below represents the comparative total shareholder return performance of the Campany against that of the mdex of the FTSE
250 companies during the previous ten years The index of the FTSE 250 compames has heen used because the constituents of this index
mast appropriately reflect the Company’s size when campared to aiternative indices

Qn behalf of the board
St
J R A Brewis

Chair

Remuneration committee
26 July 2021
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparnng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements far each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the
Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006. Additionally, the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules require the
directors to prepare the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with the international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC} No 1606/2002 as it applies to the European.

Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or ioss of the Group and Company for that peniod. In preparing the financral
statements, the directors are required to:

s celect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

« state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) no 1606/2002 as it applies in Evropean Union have
heen followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasgnable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis unless it is inappropriate tc presume that the Group and Campany wilt
cantinue in business

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsibte for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the directors’ remuneration report comply with the Cornpames Act 2006.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation i other jurisdictions

Directors” confirmations

The directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
wurmation necessary for sharehaolders to assess the Group’s and Company’s position and performance, business mode!l and strategy.

Each of the directers whose names ang functions are listed in the directors’ report confirm that to the best of their knowledge

» the Group and Company financial statements, which have heen prepared 1 accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and international financal reporting standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it apphes in the European Union grive a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financal position
and profit of the Group and Company; anda

» the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and perfaormance of the business and the position of the Group and
Company. together with 2 description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

On behalf of the board

R F Tongue
CFO
26 July 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Games Workshop Group PLC
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Cpinion
In sur apinion, Games Workshop Group PLC's group financial statements and company financial statements {the “financial statements’).

s pgive a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 30 May 2021 and of the Group’s and Company’s
profit and the Group’s and Company's cash flows for the year then ended,;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006; and

+ have heen prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements, included within the annual report {the ‘annual report’), which comprise: balance sheets as at 30
May 2021; the consolidated income statement, the statements of comarehensive income, the consolidated and Company cash flow
statements, the consolidated statement of changes in total equity and the Caompany statement of changes in total equity for the year then
ended; and the notes tc the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting palicies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting 1o the audit and risk committee.

Separate opinion in relation to international financial reporting stondords adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC} No 1606/2002 os it
applies in the European Union

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the Group and Company, in addition to applying international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, have also applied international financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation {EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union

In our opinion, the Group and Campany financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international financial
reporting standards adapted pursuant to Regulation {(EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {“15As (UK}") and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under 1SAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to prowide a basis for our opmion

independence

We remained independent of the Group n accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financal
statements 1n the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to Listed public interest entities, and we have fulfitiea our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

To the best of our knowledge and behef we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided
Cther than those disclosed in the audit and risk committee repart, we have provided no non-audit services to the Company or its
controlled undertakings in the penod under audit

Our audit appraach

Context

Sales volurnes of the Group have continued to ncrease year on year which bas resulted in ar increase in profit before tax This increase s
despite the COVID-19 pandemic which affected retail sales volumes during the current year. partially offsetting the sales growth in trade
and online sales volumes The Group's performance in the year has resulted in an increase tn the levels of matenality used to audit the
Graup financial statements

Overview

Materiality e Querall Group materiality £7.5 million (2020: £4.5 million), based on 5% of consolidated prafit befare tax

« DOverall Company materiality. £0.6 miflion {2020: £0 4 million), based on 1% of total assets

» Performance materiality; £5.6 million {(Group) and £0.45 million {Company).

Audit scope * Full scope audits were perfarmed on five separate reporting units and were all conducted by the Group engagement
team. The reporting units audited included the four largest trading units in the Group and the Company.

= Specified procedures were perfarmed by the Group engagement team over certain balances in a further 2 reporting

units
e The audited reporting units accounted far 82% of consclidated revenues and 90% of consolidated profit before tax.
Key audit s Accounting for IFRS 16 {Group)
Imatters ¢ Impact of COVID-19 (Group and Company)

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.
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Cur audit approach continued
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financia!
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal misstatement {whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Capitalisation of product development costs, which was a key audit matter [ast year, is no longer included hecause of the value of internally
generated development costs capitalised in the current year is not significant in relation to the current year materiality. Otherwise, the key

audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key oudit matter

How our oudit addressed the key audit matter

lAccounting for IFRS 16 {Group)

Refer to page 31 (audit and risk committee regort).

[Fotal right of use assets of £46m and total lease liabilities of
l£47m were recogrised as at the year end date. These values
are significant in magnitude in relation to materiality.
Management caleutated the value of the right of use assets
and lease liabilities using a spreadsheet modet. Given the
manual nature of the spreadsheet used by management, there
is an inherently heightened risk of error. This has the potential
o resultin matenial misstatement given the magnitude of the
right of use assets and lease fiabilities recognised under IFRS
1€ at the year end.

Management's mode! does not contain significant levels of
judgement or estimation.

We have assessed the appraopriateness of management's model in
determining the values of the right of use assets and lease liabilities. We
found the model methodology to be consistent with IFRS 16.

We have recalculated the accounting entries and confirmed the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations within management’s madel.

We tasted a sample of lease data in management's model to the prior
year audited modet or our testing of new and modified leases, and
confirmed there have heen noinappropriate changes made to the lease
data in management’s model.

Impact of COVID-19 {Group and Company)

Refer to page 31 (audit and risk committee report)

Durrng the financial year, the COVID-19 pandemic has had a
lsignificant impact on the Group. Lockdown measures resulted
in a large number of retail stares closing globally for a period
of time during the year which had a significant impact on the
revenue and profit results of the retal segment for the year
Management have considered implications for the Graup’s
aing concern assessment, potential impairment of certain
assets and approgriate disclosure in the financial statements,
by developing downside scenarios to model potential impacts
IThe results of these scenarios did hot indicate a material
uncertainty Qver gaing concern or any patential material
impairment indicators Management have provided disclosure
in the financial statements relating to the risks and impact
assooated with COVID-19

There was no significant impact on the systems or contrals of
tthe Group

| - We assessed whether management’s mitigating actions are reasonable

In respect of going concern:

- We evaluated management's base case and severe but plausitle
downside scenanos including challenging the key assumptions included in
the forecast cash flows. We further sensitised management’s forecasts to
understand the impact of more prudent assumptions and whether this
would impact the conclusion drawn by management

- We assessed the integrity and mathematical accuracy of management’s
model, as well as agreeing underlying data inputs to supporting
documents

and within their control based on our understanding of the business,
including the nature of its cost base |
We obtained evidence 1o support disclosures within the financiat :
statements and checked that the disclosures within the annual report are |
consistent with the financial statements, management's base case and !
downside scenarios and the knowledge gained during the audit I
We found the scenanos, assumptions and mitigating actions to be
reasonable and in line with cur knowledge of the Games Workshop
business and current CGVID-19 situation Our conclusion in respect of
going concern s included in the "Conclusions relating to geing concern’
sectian below.
in respect of asset impairment.
- We considered management's assessment of indicators of impairment,
specifically in relation to the impairment of inventory, property, plant and
equipment, right of use assets, trade and other recewables and intangible
asseets, il validated that management's asscssment is consistent with
other forecasts, for example the base case scenario for the going concern
assessment.
- We further sensitised management’s assessment for indicators of
impairment to understand the impact of more prudent assumptions and
whether this would impact the conclusion drawn by management.
- We assessed the integrity and mathematical accuracy of management’s
assessment, as well as agreeing underlying data inputs to supporting
documents.
- We found management's assessment far indicators of impairment to be
reasonable and do not consider there to be any indicatars of material
impairment as at the balance sheet date or subsequently {for disclosure
only).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we perfarmed enough work to be able to give an opimon on the financial statements as a
whole, taking 1ato account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which
they operate. .
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinien an the financial statements as a
whale, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which
they operate.

Qur Group scoping is based on the Group's cansalidation structure. We define a companant as a single reporting unit which feeds into the
Group consolidation. We identified five reporting units which, in our view, required an audit of the complete financial information both
due to size or risk characteristics. The audits of the five reporting units 1n full scope were all conducted by the Group engagement team.
The reporting units audited included the four largest trading units in the Group and the Company.

We identified a further 2 reporting units with certain balances to be targeted for audit due to size. Specified procedures were performed by
the Group engagement team over these balances. This approach ensures that appropriate audit coverage has been cobtained over all
finanzial statement line stems.

The audited reporting units and balances accounted for 82% of consolidated revenues and 0% of consolidated profit before tax. The
Company is comprised of one reporting unit which was subject to a full scope audit for the purpases of the Company financial statements.

Materiality

The scope of aur audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiafity. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope af our audit and the nature, timing anc extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement tine items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually
and in aggregate on the financial statements as a3 whaole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

- Group financial statements Company financial statements
Dverall materiality £7.5 million {2020: £4.5 million). £0.6 million {2020: £0.4 million).
How we determined it 5% of cansolidated profit before tax. 1% of total assets.
Rationale for benchmark applied | Profit before tax is the primary measure The Company does not trade and
used by the shareholders in assessing the therefore total assets 1s considered to be the
perfermance of the Group and is a generally accepted | most appropriate benchmark.
auditing benchmark I

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a matenality that is less than our overall Group matersality The range of
materatity allocated across components was between £600,000 and £6,750,000

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low levei the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds averall materiahty Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our audit and the
nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and gisclosures, for example in determinimg sample sizes Our
performance matenahty was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to £5,600,000 for the Group financial statements and £450,000 for the
Company financial statements

in determining the perfarmance materiality, we considered a numbes of factors  the history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that ar amount at the ugper end of our normal range was appropriate

We agreed with the audit and risk committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £375,000
(Group audit) (2020, £160,000) and £30,000 (Company audit} (2020 £19,000} as well as misstaterments beiow those amounts that, 11 our
view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Conciusions relating to going concern
Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue te adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

- Assessment of forecast profit and cash flows for a period of at least 12 months from the signing of the financial statements, including
consideration of severe but plausible downside scenarios and the procedures as described in our Impact of COVID-19 key audit matter
above.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events ar conditions that, indwiduaily

or coflectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going cancern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Conclusions relating to going concern continued
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not @ guarantee as to the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In relation to the directors' reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing matenal to add or
draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The directars are responsible for the other information Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other infarmation and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required
to perfarm procedures to conclude whether there 1s a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based an the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a maternal misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the strategic report, directors’ report and corporate governance report, we also considered whether the disclasures
required by the UX Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audst, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and matters
as described below.

Strategic report and directors’ report

in our opinion, based on the work undgertaken in the course of the auvdit, the information given in the strategic report and Durectors’ report
for the year ended 30 May 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
reguirements

In fignt of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their emvironment obtained in the ¢caurse of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the strategic report and directars’ report

Directors’ Remuneration
In our gpinion, the part of the remuneration repert to be auvdited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us ta review the directors’ statements in relation to going concern, langer-term viability and that part of the
corporate governance statement relating to the Company’'s comphance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review Our additional responsibilities with respect 1o the corporate governance statement as other information are
descrnibed in the Reporting on ather information section of this ~eport

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following etements of the corporate governance
staternent, included within the carporate governance report is matenally consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge
obtzined during the audit, and we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to.

*+ Thedirectors’ confirmation that they have carried out a robust assessmant of the amarging and principal risks,

= The disclosures in the annual repart that describe those principal risks, what procedures are in place to identify emerging risks and an
explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated,

« The directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group’s and Company's ability to continue to
do so over a period of at least twelve maonths from the date of approval of the financial statements;

s The directors’ explanation as to their assessment of the Group's and Company's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why
the period 1s appropriate; and

s The directors’ statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to continue 1 operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of its assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptians.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

Cur review of the directors’ statement regarding the longer-term viability of the Group was substantially less in scope than an audit and
only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting their statement; checking that the statement is in
alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code; and considering whether the statement is cansistent with
the financia! statements and our knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit.

In addition, based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have conciuded that each of the following elements of the corporate
governance statement is matenally cansistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

s The directors’ statement that they consider the annual repart, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the
information necessary for the members to assess the Group’s and Company's position, performance, business mode! and strategy;

e The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal contral systems; and

« The section of the annual report describing the work of the audit and risk committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of aur responsibility to report when the directors’ statement relating to the Company’s compliance
with the Code does not properly disclose a departure fram a relevant provision of the Code specified under the Listing Rules for review hy
the auditors

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also
responsible for such internat cantrol as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financizi statements, the directers are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Campany’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to hquidate the Group or the Company or to cease aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
but s not a guarantee that an auai conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal f, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasgnabiy be
expectad to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

Irregutarities, ncluding fraud, are instances of non-campliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line with our
respansibilities, outlined above, ta detect maternial misstatements in respect of irregulanities, including fraud The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting reregularities, including fraud 1s detailed below

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-comphance with laws and regulations
related to UK and overseas tax legislation, employment laws, environmental regulations and unethical or prohibited business practices. and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements We afso considered those
laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated managemant's
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including the risk of overnide of controls) and
determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue  Audit procedures performed
by the engagement team included-

+ Discussions with management, including consideration of known ar suspected instances of nan-compliance with laws and regulation
and fraud,

» Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations; and

¢ (hallenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their accounting estimates and judgements.

There are inherent limitations in the audit pracedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that are not clasely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements Also, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery ar intentional misrepresentations, er through collusicn

54 Games Warkshop Group PLC



Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing technigues.
However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing camplete populations. We will often seek
to target particular items for testing based on their size o1 risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enabie us to
draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financia! statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www. fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2606 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any

other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may came save where expressly agreed by our

prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Campnanies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

= we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+« the Company financial statements and the part of the remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
recards and returns.

We have no exceptions to repart arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Foflowing the recommendation of the audit and risk committee, we were appointed by the members on 17 January 2005 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 29 May 2005 and subsequent finanaial periods. The penad of total uninterrupted engagement s 17
years, covering the years ended 29 May 2005 to 30 May 2021

, .
C{ (/C/O aa 1 ALl 4

Gillian Hinks {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Fast Midlands
26 Juty 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 33 May 1020
Notes £m £m
Revenue 4 T 353.2 269 7
Cost of sales {96.3) (89.1)
Gross profit 256.9 180.6
Qperating expenses 4,5 {121.5) 1107.4)
Other operating income — rayalties receivabie 16.3 168
Operating profit 4 151.7 900
Finance intome 7 0.2 0.1
Finance costs 8 {1.0) (0.7}
Profit before taxation g 150.9 89.4
Income tax expense 10 {28.9) (18.1)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 122.0 713
Earmngs per share for profit attributable to the owners of the parent during the year {expressed i pence per share)
Notes Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
Basic earnings per ordinary share 11 372.7p 218 7p
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 11 370.5p 217 8p
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020
e Notes fm __fm £m £m
Profit attributable ta owners of the parent 122.0 713 78.7 46 4
QOther camprehensive [expense)fincome
Iterns that may be reclassified to profit or 1oss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operabians 28 3.1} 03
Other comprehensive [expense)/income far the year T [3.1) as o
Total comprehensive income attributable ta owners of the parent T Y T s 78.7 46.4

As permitted by sechion 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company’'s income statement has not beer included 1 these financial statements

The notes an pages 60 1o 81 are an integral part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS

Group Company
Restated
30 May 2021 31 May 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020
Notes £m Em £Em fm
Non-current assets ’
Goodwill 13 1.4 1.4
Other intangible assets 14 23.7 176
Property, plant and equipment 15 49.8 42.0
Right-of-use assets 16 46.0 368
Investments in subsidiaries 17 - 30.6 306
Deferred tax assets 18 10.1 89
Trade and other receivables 20 6.3 7.5 39 19
137.3 114.2 34.5 345
Current assets
Inventorios 14 27.5 207
Trade and other receivables 20 306 1986 5.9 39
Current tax assets 1.1 Q.2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 21 85.2 52.9 20.2 0.2
144.4 93.4 26.1 4.1
Total assets 281.7 207.6 60.6 38.6
Current liabilities
Lease hahilities 23 (8.6} (8.5) - .
Trade and other payables 24 (35.4} (30.3) (1.9] C8)
Current tax habilities {0.1) {2.8) -
Provisions for other habilities and charges 26 [0.6] {1.7) -
[44.7) {43.3) {1.9) {C.8)
Net current assets 99.7 50.1 24.2 33
Non-current liabilities
Lease habitities 23 {38.4) (28 5) -
Gther non-current liabilities 25 {0.6) {05) {0.2) (01
Provisions for ather liabilities and charges 6 {1.7} 116) {0.1) {C.1}
o {40.7) {30.6} . {o.3) 02
Net assets 196.3 133.7 58.4 376
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 27 16 16 1.6 16
Share premium arcount 27 14.5 138 14.5 131
Other reserves 28 21 512 01 ol
Retained earnings 178.1 113 8 a2.2 228
Total equity o T 1063 133 7 584 376

The Company's profit after taxatwan for the year ended 30 May 202115 £78 7o (2020 £46 4m)

Comparative finanaial infarmation tor nght-af use assets, nan-current lease liabilities and current lease iabilities has beer restated See note 16 far further

infarmation

The notes on pages 60 1q 8L are anintegra! part of these finanoial statements

The financial statements on pages 56 1o 81 were approved by the board of directars or 26 july 2021 and were signed on +ts hehalf by

<. ook

K D Rountree, Director

Registered number 2670969
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY

Share
Called up premium  Other reserves Retained Total
share capital accaunt {note 28) earnings equity
£m £m £m £m Em
At 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2015 1.6 123 4.7 87.9 106.5
Profit for the year ta 31 May 2020 - 713 713
Exchange differences on translation of fareign operations 0.5 - 0.5
Total comprehensive income for the year 05 71.3 71.8
Transactions with cwners:
Share-based payments - 0.5 05
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme {note 27} [0} 08
Deferred tax credit relating to share options 0.1 0.1
Current tax credit relating to exercised share options 1.3 13
Dividends declared and paid to Company sharehalders . 147.3) (47 3}
Total transactions with owners - ¢.8 - {45.4) {44 &)
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 16 131 52 113.8 1337
Profit for the year to 30 May 2031 - 122.0 1220
Exchange differences on translation of foreign aperations - {3.1) - (3.1}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {3.1) 122.0 1189
Transactions with owners:
Share-based payments 1.2 1.2
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme {note 27} 14 - 14
Deferred tax credit relating to share options 0.1 o1
Current tax credit relating ta exercised share options 1.5 15
Dividends dectared and paid to Company shareholders {60.5) {60.5}
Total transactions with owners - . 1.4 . {57.7) {56.3}
At 30 May 2021 1.6 14.5 2.1 178.1 196.3
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY
Share
Called up premium  Other reserves Retamned Totat
share capital account {nate 28) garnings gquity
L o £m £m _fm Em ~gm
AL 2 fune 2019 and 3 June 2019 1 123 01 232 372
Profit for the year to 31 May 2020 S 46 4 46 4
Total comprehensive income for the year 46 4 46 4
Transacoons with awners
Share-hased payments [V 2D
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme {note 27} 08 C8
Bividends declared and paid to Company shareholders (47 4) {47.3}
Total transactions with owners - 08 {46.8) o {46.0)
At 31 May 2020 and 1 fune 2020 16 131 01 228 376
Profit for the year 1o 30 May 2021 o B 78.7 187
Total comprehensive income for the year B 78.7 78.7
Transactions with owners-
Share-based payments 1.2 1.2
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme (note 27) - 1.4 - 14
Dividends declared and paid to Company sharehoiders - (60.5) (60.5)
Total transactions with owners - 1.4 (59.3} (57.9)
At 30 May 2021 1.6 14.5 0.1 42.2 53.4

The notes on pages 50 to 81 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020
Notes £fm £m £m fin
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 15 164.8 1272 79.1 46.2
UK carporation tax paid {28.8} (20.8) -
Querseas tax paid (3.3} {1.9)
Net cash generated from operating activities BEETY; 104.5 1.1 46.2
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {17.4) {16.3) -
Purchases of other intangible assets {2.9) (2.3
Expenditure on product development 14 (9.7) (68.0) -
Interest received 0.2 0.1 -
Net cash used in investing activities (29.8} {24.5)
Cash flows from financing activities N
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 27 1.4 08 1.4 o8
Repayment of principal under leases 23 {10.9} (10.3) - -
Dwvidends declared and pard to Company shareholders 12 (60.5) (47.3) {60.5) (47.3)
Net cash used in financing activities {70.0) {56.8) [59.1} (46.5)
Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivatents 32.9 232 20.0 {¢.3)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 52.9 294 0.2 0.5
Effects of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents {0.6) 03
Closing cash and cash equivalents 21 85.2 529 20.2 az

The nates on pages 60 to 81 are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Generalinformation

Garnes Workshop Group PLC (the ‘Company') and 1ts subsidiaries (togather the ‘Group’) designs and manufactures miniature figures and games and
distributes these through its own network of retail stores, independant retaiters and online via the global web stores The Group has manufacturing activities
in the UK and sells mainly in the UK, Continental Europe, North America, Australia, New Zealand and Asia.

The Campany is a public hsted company, limited by shares, incorporated and damiciled m the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office 1s Willow
Road, Lenton, Nottingham, NGT 2WS, United Kingdem.

The Company’s ordinary share capetal is isted on the London Stock Exchange.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applhed in these financial statements are set out below. These pelicies have been consistently applied to all the periods
presentad, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared under the going concern basis and in accardance with both international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation {EC} No 1606/2002 as it apphes
in the Furopean Union The Group and the Company have presented these financial statements rounded to the nearest £0.1m

The consolidated and Company finangial statemeats are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention

Basis of consalidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its subsidhary undertakings drawn up for the year ended 30 May 2021 and the year ended
31 May 2020. The year end date 1s defined as the nearest Sunday to 31 May each year. Subsidsaries are all entities aver which the Group has caontral The
Group controls an entity where the Group is expased to, or has rights to, variable returns fram s involverment with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consohdated from the date on which controlis transferred to the
Graup They are deconsofidated from the date that control ceases

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised garns and losses an transactions between group companies are eliminated or cansahidation
Accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group. Special purpose reperting information prepared under IFRS from
all subsidiaries to 30 May 2021 and 31 May 2020 has heen used for consclidation purposes.

Goodwiil

Goodwill ansing on acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition aver the fair value of the Group's share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for tmpairment, or when an indicater of impairment
arises, and s carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Pravision is made far any impairment by comparing the value in use ta the net carrying
value. Goodwill 15 aliocated to cash generating umits for the purpose of impairment testing

Other intangible assets

Development costs

Costs incurred in respect of product design and development activities are recognised as intangible assets when they meet the criteria of 1AS 38 “Intangible
Assets’ and are whaolly attributable to specific projects Product development costs recagmised as intangible assets are amortised on a reducing balance basis
with rates ranging fram 50% to 80% to match the expenditure incurred to the expected revenue generated from the subsequent product release However,
there are same desigr costs which do not meet the recognition criena and are therefore not capitalised and are shown in note 9

Camputer software

Acquired computer software ticences and related deveiopment expenditure are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use
the specific software Computer software licences are held at cost and amortised on a straight ne basis over the expected useful lves of the assets. Costs
associzted with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs that are diectly attributable to
the design and testing of identifiable and urigue software products centrolied by the Group are recognisec as ntangible assets when they meet the cniteria
of 1AS 38 Intangible Assets’

Other development expenditure that does not meet these criterg 15 recognised as an expense as ncurred

Development casts previously recognised as an expense 4re not recogrused as an asset n a subsequent pernod The principat annual amortisaticn rates are

o W % of caost
Core business systems computer software 10-33
Web store computer software 20
Other computer software 33-50
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipmentd
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated deprecation and any provision far impairment The cost of property, plant and
equipment 15 their purchase cost, together with any incidental casts of acquisition

Depreciation is calculated over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned to write down to the asset’s residual value and commences from
the date the asset is available for use. The principal annual depreciation rates are:

Straight line % Reducing balance %
of cost of net book value

Freehold buildings 2-4
Flant and equipment and vehicles 15-33
Fixtures and fittings 20-25
Moulding tools — product specific - 50
Moulding tools — non-product spec fic 25 -

Leasehold impravements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful ecanomic life of the asset or the period of the lease These assets ase included
within fixtures ond fittings. Frechold land is nul deprediated

{mpairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped together a1
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Giscount rates reflecting the asset specific risks and the time value of money are
used for the value in use calculation

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value, which is typically the original invoice amount, and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less loss allowance The Group applies the IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ simplified approach to measuring expected credit lesses, using a hfetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit losses by the Group

Contract assets
A contract asset is the nght to consideration in exchange for goads or senvices transferred to the customer If the Graup performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment s due, a contract asset s recognised for the earned consideration that s

cenditional.

Leases

Atthe lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease habihity on the balance sheet The nght-of-use asset s measured at
cost, which 1s made up of the initial measurement of the iease hability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs 1o dismantie
and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the iease commencement date {net of any incentives received)

Right af-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earber of the end of the nsaful Hife of the nght-of-use
sset or the end of the lease lerm The Group also assesses the night-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist under 1AS 36 ‘Imparment of
Assels

in deterrmiming the fease term, management conswders all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension opticn ar not
exercise a terminatien option Fxtension optians (or peninds after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease 15 reasonably certain
ta be extended {or nat terminated)

At the commencement date. the Group measures the lease liability at the present va ve of the ease payments unpaid at that date discountec using the
Group s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the indradual lessee would have to pay to barrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of simlar
value to the nght-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions

Subsequent to nitial measyrement, the habtihty will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest tis remeasured (o reflect any reassessment
or modification, ar if there are changes inin substance fixed payirents When the lease lability s remeasured, the corresponding adjusiment s reflected in
the right-of-use asset on the balance sheet, orincome statement if the night-of-use asset 15 already reduced 1o z2ro

The Group has calculated and applied the incremental borrowing rate {iBR’) toits future cash flows to determine the lease habibty Theincrementa!
borrowing rate has been defined by the standard as ‘tbe rate of interest that a lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with simiar
security, the funds necessary to abtain an asset of 3 similar value to the nght-of-use asset in a similar environment’ The Group has no external barrowing,
therefare a credit risk spread epproach has been used to calculate the IBR, which combines the risk-free secunity rate and o carporate secunty rate in each
aconomic environment in which the Group has a lease, inked to the hfe of the underlying lease agreement

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Graup has efected not 10 recagnise right-of-use assets and lease liahilitios for short-term leases that have & lease tern of 12 muniLhs of 1855, 3nd leases
ot low-value assets The lease payments assaciated with these leases are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis gver the lease term.

inventories

Inventaries are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost s determined using a standard costing method takeng Into account vanances in
respect of finished goods, cost includes raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads based on a narmal level of
production. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of husiness, less applicable variable selling expenses Where necessary,
prowsions are made for chsolete, slow moving and defective inventories,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Campany’s functicnal and presentation currency. Items included in the financial
statements of each of the group entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {the functional
currency). Manetary assets and liabilities expressed in cusrencies that are not the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies prepared in functional currencies other than sterting
are translated into sterling as follows:

Assets and habilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance
Income and expenses are.translated at the average rate for the year,
- Aliresulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and bank and cash bzlances, net of overdrafts where

there is a legally enforceable right of offset.

Trade payables
Trade payabies are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Contract liahifities

A contract hability ts the pbligation to transfer gqgods ar services 10 a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services te the customer, a contract tiability 15
recognised when the payment is made or the payment 1s due (whichever is earlier) Contract habilities {deferred income) are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.

Other employment benefits

Pension costs

The Group cperates defined cantribution schemes and a group personal pension plan Pension contributions are charged to the income statement as they
accrue There are no further obligations to the Group once payment has heen made

Long service benefits

The Group operates a long service iIncentive scheme under which employees receive 2 one off additional heliday entitlement of two weeks when they reach
10, 20 and 30 years’ service [Veterans scheme} The costs of these henefits are accrued over the penad of employment based on expected staff retention
rates and the antiopated future employment costs discounted to present value,

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled employee sharesave schemes The fair vaiue of the employee services received under such schemes s
recogmised as an expense in the (ncome statement with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period The fair value of the employee services
recerved, measured at grant date i exchange for the grant of the awards, 15 recognised as an expense, with the corresponding credit being recarded in
ratained earnings within equity The totai amount to be expensed over the vesting period 1s determined by reference Lo the fair value of the awards granieg
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of awards that are expected to vest The Group recogmses the impact of the
revision of griginal estimates, If any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity, 10 penods in which the estimates are revised The
proceeds recesved net of any directiy attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premium when the options are exercised

Investments
Shares and loans m subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less grovision for imparment

Revenue

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and sales between group companies, represents the invoiced value of goods supphed (net of trade discounts tor
sales to independent retailerst Revenue 1s recognised on dispateh of goods to the customer for sales via the global web stare and for sales to ndependent
retalers This represents futfitment of the performance abligation of the contract with the customer For revenue earned through the Group’s retail stores
and for dignal products. revenue 1s recognised at the point of sale Payment of the transacticn price 1s dug ir ine with agreed customer credit terms
Revenue for magazine subscriptions s recognised on a straight ine basis gver the subscriphon penad

Revenue on goads sold te customers on a sale ar return basis (which includes boaok sales) is recognised after making full prowision for the level of expected
returns, based on past experience. The tevel of returns s reviewed an a regular basis and the provisior s amended accerdingly. Revenue on a sale or return
basis represents no more than 3% of consohdated revenue (2020 no more than 3%)

Royalty income

Royalty income represents amounts invoiced to licensees for use of the Group's intellectual property. This includes both mimimum rayalty guarantees
charged on granting use of the intellectual property to licensees, and additional royaity iIncome earned as a share of the licensee’s sales of games and
products which include use of the Group’s IP. Minimum royalty guarantee income is recognised in full at incepticn of the contract. This represents the paint
at which the performance abligation of the contract s met 10 granting use of the Group’s intellectual property. Additional royalty income is recognised in the
income statement when it can be reliably measured by reference to the underiying licensee perfarmance as natified to the Group by the ticensee and
following validation of the amounts recervable by the Graup

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segmants, has been identified as the executive
directors
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Taxation
The charge far current tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessabie or disallowed. It 1s calculated using rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the balance sheet liability methad in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxzble profit. In principle, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for ali taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised \f the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognitian {other than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in 3 transaction which affects neither
the tax profit nor the accaunting profit,

Deferrad tax lizbilities are recognised for taxabie temparary diferences arising on investments 1n subsidiaries except where the Group s able to centrol the
reversal of the tempoarary difference and it 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the fareseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at
the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability is settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates
to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities cn 3 net basis.

Dividends
Dividend distributions are recognised in the financial statements in the pericd in which they are paid.

Provision for liahilities and charges

Provisions are recognised 1n accardance with |AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabitities’. Provisions are made for property dilapidations
where a legal abligation exsts and when the decision has been made to exit @ property, or where the end of the lease commitment is imminent and a
relizble estumate of the ext hahility can be made The estimated emplayee benefit liability arising fram the Veterans incentive scheme is classifted within
provistons Amounts relating to employees whao reach 10, 20 or 30 years' service in more than ane year are ¢lassified as non-current Provisions are made for
redundancy costs once the employees affected have a valid expectation that therr rales will become redundant.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds

Financial instruments
All financial assets are classified as ‘financial assets at amortised cost' and finanaial habilities as 'financial habihtes at amortised cost' in accordance with IFRS
9 Management determines the classification of #ts financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assurnpuions that affect the reported amounts of
revenyes, expenses, assets and tiabilities, and disciosure of conungenoies at the balance sheet date. f in future such estimates and assumptions, which are
based on management’s best judgement at the date of the consolidated finanoial statements, dewiate from actual arcumstances, the ariginal estimates and
assumptions will be madified, as appropniate, in the penod in which the circurmstances change

rManagement do nos consider there to be any critical accounting estimates o judgements that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and habifities within the next financial year

3. Change in accounting policy

The Graup has apphed amendments 1o 1AS 1 and 1AS 8 (‘Defimbion of Material') for the first time i the financial statements The application of these new
standards and amendments did not have a material impact on the financial statements The Group cansiders that there are no new accounting standards,
amendments or interpretations issued by the 1ASB, but net yet applicable, which have had, or are expected ta have a significant effect on the financial
statements The Group have considered the IFRIC agenda decision on configuration or custamisatian casts in a claud computing arrangement and the
application of this agenda decision did not have a material impact on the finanzial statements

4 Segment information

As Games Workshop 1s a vertically integrated business, management assesses the performance of sales channels and manufacturing and distnbution
channels separately At 30 May 2021, the Group 1s organised as follows

Sales channels: these channels sell product ta external customers, through the Group's network of retail stares, ndependent retailers and online via
the global web stores. The sales channels have been aggregated into segments where they sell products of a similar nature, have simitar production
processes, similar customers, similar distribution methods, and if they are affected by similar economic factors. The segments are 35 follows:
- Trade: this sales channel sells globally to independent retailers, agents and distributors 1t also includes the Group’s magazine newsstand
business and the distributor sales from the Group’s publishing business {Black Library).
- Retail: this includes sales through the Group's retail stores, the Group’s visitor centre in Mottingham and global exhibitions
Online: this includes sales through the Group's global web stares and digital sales through external affiliates
Design to manufacture: this includes manufacture of the praducts and incorporates the production facility and the design studios. This includes
adjustments for the profit in stock ansing from inter-segment sales.
Merchandising and logistics: this includes the warehauses, logistics costs and charges for inventory provisions.
Group: this incluges the Company overheads.
Operations and support this provides support services (marketing, 1T, accounting, payroll, personnel, procurement, legal, heaith and safety,
customer services and credit contral) to activities acrass the Group and undertakes strategic projects, including animation costs for brand marketing.
Licensing: this is royalty income earned from thied party licensees after deducting associated licensing costs. including the development of digital
content far animaticn and TV,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

4. Segment information continued

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of each segment based on operating profit, excluding share aption charges recogrised under
IFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’, charges in respect of the Group's profit share scheme and the discretionary payment to employees . This has been reconcileg
to the Group's total profit hefare taxation balow.

The segment information reported to the executive directors for the years included in this financial information is as follows

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

. £m £m
Trade 194.8 140.0
Retail 70.7 78.0
Aanhne 87.7 51.7
Total external revenue 353.2 269.7

Segment revenue and segment profit include transactions between business segmenls; these transactions are eliminated on consolidation Sales between
segments are carried out at arm's length. The revenue from external parties reported to the executive directors is measured in 2 manner consistent with
that in the income statement. For information. external revenue is analysed further below:

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

£m £m
Trade
UK and Continental Europe 82.3 61.9
North America 85.4 59.4
Australia and New Zealand 10.2 57
Asia 5.0 65
Rest of world 5.6 41
Black Library 2.3 2.4
Total Trade . S _ 1%4.8 1400
Ratail
UK 13.3 23.0
Cantinental Europe 16.4 165
North America 28.2 252
Australia and New Zealand 10.3 16
Asia . R . 2.5 .7
TotalRetail o L : - o R 07 780
Online
ux 22.2 124
Continentd’ Europe 18.0 11
North America 30.6 167
Auystrala and New Zealand 5.5 25
Asia 0.5 05
Rest of world 1.3 09
Digital o 9.6 74
Total Online - T ] - 877 517
Total external revenue T 353.2 265.7

Jperating expenses by segment are regularly reviewed Oy the execulive directars and are prowided below

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

o o Em £m
Trade - T 9.1 93
Retail 0.7 556
Online 7.5 55
Design to manufacture 1.8 1.7
Merchandising and logistics 2.2 21
Qperations and support 31.5 26.5
Group 3.5 2.7
Licensing 1.3 11
Total segment operating expenses 107.1 104 5
Share-based payment charge 1.2 05
Profit share scheme charge 2.6 24
Discretignary payment to employees 10.6 -
Total group operating expenses 121.5 107.4
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4. Segmentinformation continued

Taotal segment operating profit is as follows and is reconciled to profit before taxation below:

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
£m £m
Trade 6.4 4.6
Retail 2.8 29
Online 2.6 1.7
Design to manufacture 222.6 1343
Merchandising and logistics . 147.3) (36.2)
Operations and support {32.9) (27.4)
Group {3.5) (2.7)
Licensing 15.0 157
Total segment operating profit 166.1 529
Shareg-based payment charge (1.2} (05}
Profit share scheme charge {2.6) (2.4}
Discretinnary paymant to employees (10.6} -
Tota! group operating profit 151.7 900
Finance income 0.2 a1
Finance costs (1.0} 0.7
Profit hefore taxation 150.9 89.4
Operating profit as reported above includes impairment, depreciation and amortisatron charges as follows.
Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
fm £m
Retail 10.8 115
Qnline 0.2 Q4
Design to manufaciure 10.9 108
Merchandising and logistics 2.1 09
Operations and support 2.6 2.0
Total group charges for impairment, depreciation and amortisation 26.6 25.6
External revenue analysed by customer geographical location is as follows
Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
e o o R £m £m
UK T 80.5 58 8
{ontinental kurope 82.1 65 0
North America 145.5 104 8
Austraba and New Zealard 26.1 16 i
Asia 12.1 99
Rest of world o L i 6.9 51
External revenue 353.2 168.7
The Group is not reliant on any one individual customer
Non-current assets [excluding deferred tax and non-current finanoal instruments) are located rmn the following countnes
Restated
Year ended feac ended
39 May 2021 31 May 2020
o B e e £m Em
S14 100.0 739
All other countries 27.2 31.4
Total nan-current assets {excluding deferred tax and non-current financial instruments} 127.2 105 3

Tangible, intangible and right-of-use asset additions included within the UK were £45.2m (2020 £35.5m) and all other countries were £8 1m {2020 £35.1m.

restated for prior pernod adjustment as per note 16}
Other non-cash charges and significant casts included in operating prafit are as follows

Charge to inventory provisians

Redundancy costs and compensation

for loss of office

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

30 May 2021 31 May 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020

Em Em £m £m

Trade - 0.1} -
Retail - {0.1) {0.1)
Online - (0.2} -
Design to manufacture {0.9) (6 4) - -
Merchandising and logistics - - (0.1) .
Operations and support - - {0.7} (0.1)
Total group charge {0.9) (6.4) 1.2} (0.2)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

5. QOperating expenses

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
£m £m
Selling costs 63.9 80.5
Administrative expenses 57.6 46.9
121.5 107.4
6. Directors and employees
Group Comgpany
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 pMay 2020 30 May 2021 31 May 2020
£Em fm £m £m
Total directors’ and employees’ costs:
Wages and salaries B6.8 70.7 P 16
Social security €Osts 8.2 7.1 0.3 0.2
Other pension costs 3.7 3.3
Share-based payment 1.2 0s - -
999 81.6 2.8 18

Details of capitalised salary costs, included in the above, are provided in note 14 Redundancy costs and compensation far loss of office, notincluded in the
above, are providedin note 9

Total dweztors’ and employees’ costs above include the impact of foreign currency movements o the year. Total dwectors’ and employees” costs for the
Greup for the year ended 30 May 2021 calculated using the average exchange rates for the year ended 31 May 2020 are £100 ém. This includes
perfarmance related elements of salary costs, payments under the Group's profit share scheme and the discretionary payment 1o employees of £16.1m
(2020 £4.5m}.

Highest paid director
The above includes remuneration of £1.4m {2020: £0.7m) in respect of the highest paid director Total remuneration of the highest pad director 15 detailed
i the remuneration report (page 42)

Key management compensation
The directors of the Group are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group The remunerancn of the duectors of the Group 15 set out
betow in aggregate for each of the categories specified in 145 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’

Year ended Year endec

30 May 2021 31 May 2020

) o £m o fm

Short-term employee benafits o o .28 1<
- 2.6 14

Further information relating 1o chrectors” emaluments, shareheldings and share optrons s disclosed 10 the remunegration report on pages 34 to 47
Employee numbers

Year ended fear ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

Group . o e No. No
hMaonthly average number of emplayees (inc uding directars) by actiaty
Design and development 308 286
Production and warehousing 565 514
Sefhng
Fulltime 932 344
- Part time 65 81
Admtnistration i . ) 413 364
- 2,283 2,188

The monthly average number of employees for the Company was 9 (2020 8)

7. Finance income
Year ended Yedr ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

£m £m
interest tncame:
- On cash and cash equivaients 0.2 0.1
a.2 0.1
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8. Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
Em £m
Interest expense:
- interest expense on lease hatilities 0.9 0.7
- Qther 0.1 -
1.0 a7
9. Profit befare taxation
Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
£m Em
Profit before taxation 15 stated after charging/{crediting)”
Depreciation:
- Owned property, plant and eguipment 9.2 8.8
- Right-of-use assets 110 10.1
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 0.1
Impairment of right-of-use assets 02
Amortisation:
- Qwned computer software 1.2 12
- Development costs 4.8 4.9
impairment of computer software 0.4 0.3
Naoa-capitalised development costs 77 3.9
Net fareign exchange {losses)/gains {4.3) 16
Staff costs (excluding capitalised salary costs shown in note 14 and non-capitalised development staff costs) 93.9 69.6
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales 55.8 352
Inventory provision creation (nate 19) 0.9 €4
Lass on dispasal of intangible assets 01 03
Redundancy costs and compensation for loss of office 1.2 a2
Nei credit to property provisions - (0.3)
Auditors’ remuneration and services provided
Servicas pravided by the Graup’s auditors and astwark firms are analysed as follows
Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020
. £m _ £
Audit services
Audit of the Group and Company’s financial statements 0.1 01
Other services
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation e 0.2 o .h2
Total services provided B 0.3 a3
Nan-audit fees paid 1o the auditors grmaunted 1o £6,000 {2020, £6 000} in the year for the venfication of retail turnover certificates
10, Income tax expense
Year ended Year endeg
30May 2021 31 May 2020
7 o . . fm £m
Current UK taxanon - i a o
UK corporation tax on profiis for the year 28.1 153
Adjustments to tax charge i respect of prioi years . o o o ~ los) O
T ST 275 156
Current overseas taxation
Overseas corpofation tax on profits far the year 29 25
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years . . o {0.3) 0.2
Total current taxation . . B 30.1 183
Deferred taxation- - %
Origination and reversal of tming differences {2.0 01
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 08 (0.3}
Tax expense recognised in the income statement 28.9 18.1
Current tax credit relating to sharesave scheme {1.5) (1.3}
Deferred tax credit relating ta sharesave schemne {0.1) 0.1}
Credit taken directly to equity {1.5) (1.4}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

1G. Income tax expense continued
The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs in both years presented from the standard rate of carparation tax in the UK as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

£m £m
Profit before taxation 150.9 89.4
Profit before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% {2020: 19%) 28.7 17.0
Effects of:
Items not assessable for tax purposes (0.3) (0.1}
Higher tax rates on cverseas earnings 0.5 0.9
Tax rate changes 0.1 01
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years (0.1) 0.2
Total tax charge for the year 28.9 18.1

Cn 3 March 2021, the Chancellor announced that the main UK corporatian tax rate will be sncreased from 19% to 25% from Apri! 2023. This change had
been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and its impact has therefore been included in these financial statements.

Itermns not assessable for tax purposes include the release of provisions no longer considered a risk ta the Group as well as tax relief for gther taxes paid.

11.  Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average nurnber of ordinary shares in 1ssue

during the year

Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

Profit attributabie 1o owners of the parent (£m) 122.0 71.3
Weighted average number of ardinary shares in issue {thousands} 32,733 32,602
Basic earnings per shate [pence per share} 372.7 218.7

Difuted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share has been based an the profit attributable to owners of the parent and the weighted average number of shares
in1ssue throughout the year, adjusted far the dilutive effect of share options cutstanding at the year end
Year ended Year ended
30 May 2021 31 May 2020

Profit attributable to owners of the parent {Em) - o 122.0 713
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue [thousands) 32,733 32,602
Adjustrment for share opticns (thousands) ) } 194 134
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earmﬁgs per share (thousands} S 32,927 32,736
Diluted earnings per share {pence per share) o 370.5 217.8

12, Dividends per share

Drwidends of £5 Bre (30 pence per sharel, £16 3rm 190 pence per share], £19 7m {60 nencas per shara) and £14 7m {45 pence per shars) were declared ard
paid during the Lurrent year A dividend of £16 4m (S0 pence per share) was declared during the year and paid after the year end

Dwrdends of £5.8rm (30 pence pe- share) £11 4m {35 pence per sharel £11 4m {35 pence per share) and £14 7m [45 pence per share] were declared and
paid guring the prior year

Far the purpose of demanstrating that there were sufficient distributable reserves for dividend payments, intenm financial statements for the Company
were prepared and filed at Companies House relating to Octobes 2020 and February 2021

13. Goodwill

2021 2020
Qroup £fm £m
Cost
At the beginning of the year 2.4 2.4
At the end of the year 2.4 2.4
Accumuiated amertisation
At beginning of year {1.0) (1.0)
At the end of the year (1.0} 1.0
Net book value at beginning of year and end of year 1.4 1.4

The Company had no goodwill at either year end.
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13, Goodwill continued

Impairment tests for goodwill

In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 36 Imparment of Assets’ the Group completed a review of the carrying value of goodwill as at each year end.
The impairment review was perfarmed to ensure that the carrying value of the Group’s assets are stated at no mare than their recoverabie amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to seli and value inuse The key assumptions for the recoverable amount of the goodwill are the long term growth rate and
the discount rate. The long term growih rate used is purely for the impairment testing of goodwill under 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ and does not reflect
the long term pianning assumptions used by the Group for any other assessments. in determining the value 1n Use, the calculations use cash flow projections
for a period no greater than three years based on plans approved by management and, for the Group’s cash-generating unit concerned, assumes a long term
growth rate no higher than 2% (2020: 0%). The estimated future cash flaws expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets were calculated using a
risk adyusted pre-tax discount rate of 1.29% (2020: 051%)

Management reviewed the planned sales growth and gross margin on the investment in future product releases and imtiatives currently being undertaken,
to deliver the expected future performance. Goodwiil is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) for impairment testing. All of the current
goodwill arises in the product and supply segment Sensitivity analysis has not been disclosed in these financial statements since management consider that
there is no reasonably possible change in the key assumptions that would cause the carrying value of goodwill to fall below its recoverable amount

14.  Otherintangible assets

Computer Development

software costs Total
Group £m fm fm
Cast
At 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2019 186 40.8 594
Additions 23 6.0 83
Disposals (0.1) (1.7} (1.8)
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 208 451 659
Additions 2.9 a7 126
Exchange differences (0.2} - (0.2)
Disposats {1.1) (7.1} (8.2)
At 30 May 2021 2.4 47.7 70.1
Accumulated amortisation
At 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2019 {12.3) (31.1) {43.4)
Amortisation charge {12) {4.9) (6.1}
Impairment {03} - {0.3)
Cisposals o - e 0.1 14 15
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 {13 7) {34 6) {48 3)
Amortisation charge {12} {4.8) {6 0)
Exchange differences 02 02
Impairment (0 4} {0 4}
Disposals o e L 11 o 7.0 81
At 30 May 2021 {14.0} {32.4) 146.4)
Net book amount
31 May 2020 o o R |- 176
30 May 2021 ’ 8.4 153 23.7

Amortisation of £5 1m {2020 £5 1m} has been charged in cost of sales and £0 9 {2020 £1 Ombin operating expenses

The net book amount of internally generated intangibic assets s £21 0m (2020 £15.9m) and acquired intangible assetsis £2 7m (2020 £1 7mj The net
book amount of internally generated development costsis £13 3m (2020 £8 7m)and £12 1m (2020, £7 9m) < capetalised salary costs

salary costs of £6 Om (2020° £4.5m) were capitahised as part of development costs and £0 1m 12020 £0 3m) were capitahsed as part of computer software
during the year

Assets n the course of develgpment, and not amortised, amount to £0 1m (2020 £0 2mj with current and prior year amaunts both being included withie
computer software

Ansmpairment loss of £0 4m (2020 £0 3m) has been recapnised in retation to alterations required to previously capitalised elements of the ERP saftware
This has been charged to gperating expenses

The Company had no other intangible assets at either year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

15. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Plant and Fixtures

land and equipment and Moulding

buildings and vehicles fittings tools Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost '
At 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2018 216 307 25.5 34.8 1126
Additions 17 3.7 4.1 40 155
Exchange differences - 0.1 0.3 - 04
Disposals - (1.4) 07 (1.3} (3.4)
At 31 May 2020 and 1 june 2020 253 331 29.2 375 125.1
Additions 4.1 7.2 1.7 47 172
Exchange differences - {05} (1.5) - {2.9)
Disposals - {3.9) {2.1} - {6.0)
At 30 May 2021 29.4 359 27.3 42.2 134.8
Accumulated depreciation
At 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2019 (7.1) (19.8) {20.4) 30.0} {77.3)
Charge for the year 0.4) {2.3) (1.7} (3.4} {8.8)
Exchange differences - (0.1) {02} 0.3}
impairment charge 01} - - - 0.1}
Disposals - 1.3 08 13 3.4
Ak 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 (7.6) (21.9) {21.5) {32.1) {83.1)
Charge for the year {0 5) (3.3) {2.0} {3.4) 9.2}
Exchange differences - 0.4 10 14
Dispasals - 38 21 - 59
At 30 May 2021 (8.1) {21.0) {20.4) (35.5) [85.0)
Net baok amount
31 May 2020 o177 11.2 2.7 5.4 420
30 May 2021 1.3 14.9 6.9 6.7 49.8

Depreciation expense of £6.2m (2020° £6 2m} has been ¢hargedin cast of sales, £1 5m (2020 £1 4m}in selbng costs and €1 5m {2020 £1 2m}in
administrative expenses

Freahald land amounting to £8 3m {2020 £5 6m) has not been depreciated

Assets i the course af construction and not depreciated. amount to £10 Om (2020 £9 7} £2.4m (2020, £1 3m] of these are inctuded in Moulding tools,
£5 5m (2020° £3 3m) s included in plant and equipment and vehicles, Eml {2020. £2 7m) s included in freehold land and buildings, and £2 1m {2020 £2 6m)
s included in fixtures and fittings above

“he Company held no property. plant and equipment at either year end

16. Right-of-use assets

Hestated

2021 2020

Group o B o o o - £m £m
Buildings o T T T 456 367
Plant and aquipment and vehicles e e 0.4 Qi
46.0 368

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the finarciat year were £23 0m {2020 £46 8m inciuding £33 6m of assets recognised on transitign 12 IFRS 16
restated from prior year as described below)

The comparative nght-of-use assets and correspaonding iease labilities have been restated ta reflect the extensian of the lease an our warehouse In
Memphis, US. The lease renewal was signed in the year ending 31 May 2020 but was not recognised as an addition under IFRS 16 Accordingly, a prior year
adjustment has been made to restate the 2020 balances to therr correct amounts The impact of the adjustment was to increase right-of-use assets by
£4.9m and increase current lease liabilities by £0.2m and non-current lease liabilities by £4.7m The impact to the income staterment and cash flow
statement is below £0.1m and has therefore not been adjusted There was no impact on any period prior to 2020,

The Company held no right-of-use assets at aither year end

Depreciation charged on right-of use assets during the year was as foflows:

Year ended Year ended

30 May 2021 31 May 2020

£m Em

Buildings 109 10.0
Prant and equipment and vehicles 0.1 01
11.0 10.1
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17.  Investments in subsidiaries

2021 2020
Campany £m £m
Shares in group undertakings — cast
At beginning of year 30.6 306
Additions - -
30.6 30.6

At end of year

Investments in group undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

A list of subsidiary undertakings s given below,

Interests in group undertakings

name of undertaking

Registered address of undertaking

Description of
shares held

Proportion of nominal
value of issued shares
held by:

Company

Subsidiary
company

Principal business activity

Games Workshop Limited
Games Workshap RetailInc

Games Workshop {Queen
Streat) Limited

EURL Games Warkshop
Games Workshop SI.

Games Workshop Oz Pty
Limited

Games Workshop Deutschiand
GmbH

Games Workshop Limited

Games Waorkshop [talia SRL

Games Woaorkshop
International Limited
Games Workshap US Lirmited

Games Workshop US
{Heldings) Limited

Games Workshap Good
Hobby (Shanghai) Commercial
Zo Ltd

Games Workshop Trustee
Limited

Games Workshop Stockholm
AB

Games Workshop Hong Kong
Limited

Games Workshop Hobby Pte
Linited

Games Workshop Malaysia
Sdn Bhg

Games Workshop interactive
Limited
Warhammer Oniing Limsted

Citadel Miratures Lirmited

Garmes Warkshep 5tep One
Limited

willow Raad, Lentan, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

6721 Baymeadow Drive, Glen Burnie, MD
2101, USA

3251 Yonge Street, Toronto, Ontario,
MAN 215, Canada

10, Rue loseph Serlin, Lyon, 69001, France
Aragdn 208-210, plantad puerta 1 08011
Barcelona, Espana

23 Lwerpool Street, Ingleburn,

New South Wales 2565, Austraha

Am Wehrhahn 32, 40211 Dusseldorf,
Deutschland

80 Queen Street, Auckland, 1010,

New Zealand

Viale Castro Pretorio 122, 00185 Roma,
Italia

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2W5, UK

153-155 Xupahui Road, Huangpu Area,
Shanghal, 200021, China

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingharm,

NG7 2WS5S, UK

Master Samuelsgatan 67, Stockholm 11121,
Sweden

3806 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Red House #01-04, 63 East Coast Road,
128776, Singapore

_evel 10 Menara LGB, 1 Jalan Wan Kadir,
FTaman Tun Dy ismail, 80000 Kuala Lumpur.
Malaysia

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

Witllow Rgad, Lenton, Nottingham,

NG7 2WS, UK

E1 crdinary
51 common
stock

Can 81

eurgl
euro 1

Aus 51
eurol
NZ 51
euro 1
£1 ordinary
£1 ordinary
L1 ardinary

Owners capitat

t1 ordinary
SEX 100

HK $1 ordinan,
5G 51 ardinary

MYR ] ardinary

=1 grdinary
£1 ordinary
1 ordinany

£l ordinary

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

130%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

tanufacturer, distributor and
retailer of games and miniatures
Distributor and retaiter of games
and miniatures

Retailer of games and miniatures

Retailer of games and miniatures
Retaller of games and mipiatures

Distributor and retailer of games
and miniatures
Retailer of games and miniatu-es

Retailer of games and miniatures
Retaiter of games and miniatures

Halding company Tor gverseas
subsidiary companies

Holding campany for US subsidiary
companies

intermediary holding company for
US subsidiary companies
Distrsbutor and retailer of games
and miniatures

Trustee

Retailer of games and miniatures
Distnibutor and retailer of gamas
and mimnatures

Distributor and retailer of games
and miniatures

Distributor and retader of games
and miniaturas

Dormant

Doarmant

Bormant

Not yet 1n use

All of the above entities are included in the consolidated financial statements for the Group and 100% of the voting rights of all entitres is held.

All of the above comgpanies operate principally in their country of incorparation or registration

The directors consider the value of the investments is supportad by the underlying assets of the relevant subsidiary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

18. Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 15 3 legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax habilities and when the
deferred taxes reiate to the same fiscal authority The amounts are as follows:

Group
2021 2020
£m £m
Oeferred tax assets:
- deferred 1ax asset ta be recovered after more than 12 manths 23 16
- deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 7.8 6.3
10.1 8.9
The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
Group
2021 2020
_ £m m
Beginning of year 8.9 85
Credited to the income statement 1.2 0.2
Credited directly to equity 0.1 0.1
Exchange differences [0.1} -
end of year 10.1 8.9
Analysis of the movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities 1s as follows
Losses
Accelerated Profit available
depreciation it stock for offset QOther Total
Group £m £m Em fm £m
Al 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2019 15 4.0 03 28 8.6
Credited/{charged] to the income statement 03 0.7 06 0.2
Credited directly to equity - - - 0% 0.1
Exchange differences - . - - -
At 31 May 2020 and 1 June 2020 18 33 0.3 35 89
[Charged}/credited to the income statement 0.3} 14 {01) 02 12
Credited directly to equity - 01 01
Exchange differences - - - {0.1) {0.1)
At 30 May 2021 1.5 4.7 0.2 3.7 10.1

Other deferred tax assets imcdlude deferred tax on adjustments for inventory provisigns of £0 4m (2020 £0 7). tax relef an exercise of share options of
£2 0m (2020 £1 Bm), tax relief onintangibile assets of £0 107 {2020° £0 1m) and tax rebef on the long service incentive scheame of £0 4m (2020 £0 4m)

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax [osses and temporary differences Lo the extent that the reahsation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits 1s probable This s based on a review of the track record of profitability in the country concerned There was no unrecogn sed
deferred tax at 30 May 2021 or 31 May 2020 in either the Group Or the Company

The Graup did not obtain a current tax benchit from previously unrecognised fax losses in erther of the years presented

Company

Deferred tax assels of the Campany in respect of accelerated depreciation and other temporary differences were less than £0 1m throughout tre years
from 2 June 2019 to 30 May 2027

19 Inventories

2021 2020
Group L e _ £m £m
Raw materials 0.3 06
Work tn progress 2.0 12
Finished goods and goods for resale L 25.2 189
27.5 20.7

The Group holds no inventories at fair value less costs to sell
During the year, the Group utilised aninventory pravisicn of £2 9m {2020: £4.6m] and £0.9m (2020: £6.4m) has been charged to the income statement.

The Campany hekd no inventortes at either year end

72 Games Warkshop Group PLC



20. Trade and other receivables

Group Campany
1021 2020 201 2020
£m £m £m [441]
Trade receivables 8.1 8.0 -
Less allowance far expected credit lossas {0.3) {0.5) -
Trade receivables - net 7.8 7.5 - -
Prepayments and accrued wncome 9.9 6.7 -
Other receivables 19.2 12.9 0.1 0.1
Receivables from group companies - - 5.8 3.8
Loans to group companies - - 3.9 39
Total trade and other receivables 316.9 271 9.8 78
Non-current receivables
Other recewables 6.3 75 -
Loans to group companies - - 3.9 39
Non-current portion ) 6.3 7.5 3.9 3.9
Current portion N 30.6 19.6 5.9 3.9
included within prepayments and accrued income are contract assets relating to uninvoiced rayalty income amaounting to £1.2m {2020: £0.8m)
Trade recevables are recorded at amartised cost, less allowance for expected credit losses The fair value of trade and other receivables does not differ
materially from the book value. There is na significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
customers which are internationally dispersed. The maximum expasure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of each class of asset
ahave. The Group does not hotd any collateral over these balances
Included within other receivables isinyoiced royalty income of £11 5m (2020: £9.8m) of which £5.4m (2020: £6.3m) is non-current, being in respect af
guarantec instalments due 1n over one year Royalties receivable have been assessed for impairment and are recognised less allowance for expected credst
losses
Recervables due from group companies to the Company are interest free and immediately repayable on demand Recevables fram group companies have
been assessed based on lifetime expected credit losses. As all balances are repayable on demand, and the Company expects to be able to recover the
outstanding intercompany balances if demanded, no provision has been recogrised in the year ended 30 May 2021 (2020: £nil).
Loans due to the Company from subsidiary undertakings are interest free and have no fixed repayment date
Loss allowances are established using the IFRS 9 simphified approach to expected credit losses A hfetime loss allowance 15 calculated based on historical
credit lnsses and is applied ta trade recevables held acrass the Group The ageing analysis of the Group's past due trade recewvables is as follows
2021 2020
Grossvalue  Loss allowance Net Gross value Loss allowance ret
Group e £m £m £m £m . £m Em
Up to 3 months past due o 02 i - 0.2 R {01) 0.2
3 to 12 months past due 0.2 {0.1) 0.1 04 a2 032
Over 12 months past due o 0.2 (0.1) o Ga . L
0.6 {0.2) 0.4 07 (0.3} 0.4
'n addition to the above there is 3 10ss allowance of £0 1m against current debt {2020 €0 2m)
Loss allowance against trade receivables
Movements o0 the 10ss allowance against trade recevables are as follows
Group . : e in
At 2 June 2018 and 3 June 2018 ST o o 32
Zharge for the year .4
Recevables written off during the year as uncoliectible _ 01
AT 31 May 2020 and 1 Junc 2020 T T - __' T s
Charge far the year
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible {C.2)
At 30 May 2021 i 0.3
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other recevables ars denomimated i the following turrencies
' 021 2020
£m £m
Sterling 13.4 8.7
Euro 7.2 39
US dollar 13.2 116
Other currencies 3.1 29
Total trade and other receivables 36.9 27.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

21. Cash and cash equivatents

Group Company
2021 2020 0 2020
£m fm £m £m
Cash at bhank andg in hand 85.2 52.9 20.2 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents 85.2 529 20.2 0.2

The Graup's cash and cash equivalents are repayable on demand
There were ng utihsed borrowing facilities at 30 May 2021 or 31 Way 24020

22. Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it Lo a variety of financial risks: market nsk {including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk, capital risk and
credit risk. The Group’s financial nsk management olyective is to understand the nature and impact of the financial risks and exposures facing the business.

Foreign CUFrency rish
The majority of the Group’s business 1s transacted in sterling, euros and US dallars The principal currency of the Group s sterling.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk principally via

- transactional exposure arising from the future sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the

transacting company.
- translation exposure arising on investments in fareign operations, where the net assets are denominated in 3 currency other than steriing.

- loans 1o non-UK subsidiaries

The Group does nat use foreign currency borrowngs or farward foreign currency contracts to hedge foreign currency nsk. The level of the Group's expasure
ta foreign currency nisk is regularly reviewed by the Graup's finance director and the Group's treasury policies, including hedging polictes, are reviewed to
ensure they remain appropriate

Fareign exchange sensitivity
The impact on the Group's financial assets and liabities from foreign currency volatility 3s shown in the sensitivity analysis below

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared based on all matenal financial assets and habitities held at the balance sheet date and does not reflect alt the
changes in revenue or expenses that may result from changing exchange rates The analysisis prepared for the euro and US dollar giver: that these represent
the major foreign currencies in which financial assets and liabilities are dencminated The sensitivities shown act as a reasanable benchmark considening the
movements In currencies aver the last two financial years

The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis
financial assets and habilties {including financil instrumaents) are anly cunsidered sensitive ta movements in fareign currency exchange rates where they
are not in the functionai currency of the enuity that holds them

translation of resu'ts of overseas subsidiaries is excluded

Jsing the abave assumptions, the following table shows tha senstivity of the Group's income statement to movements in foreign exchange rates an US
dollar and euro financia’ assets and habilities

2021 2020

Income gain  Income gain/(loss!

L e o Em _Em

15% apprecation of the US dolar (2020 15%) S B 32 22
15% appreciatian of the eurn {2020. 15%) - (1.2}

A depreniation of the stated currencies would have an equal and apposite effect
Thereg 15 nowmpact on eguity gains or losses

interest rate risk
The Group has no sigmibcant exposure tonterest rate sk and hence no interest rate sensitivity kas heen shown

Credit risk

Creait risk anses trom cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions as well as credit exposures to independent retailers.

The Groug controls credit risk from a treasury perspective by only entering into transactions mvelving financial instrurmnents with authorised counler-parties
willy g crgdle rating of at least 'A%, and by ensuring that such positions are monitored regulasly Credit risk on cash and short term deposits is imited because
the counter-parties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

There is na significant concentration of credit risk with respect 1o trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers that are internationaily
dispersed. Policies are also in place to ensure the wholesale sales of products are made to custorners with an appropriate credit history and credit limits are
periodically reviewed. Amounts recoverable from customers are reviewed on an ongoing basis and appropriate provision made for bad and doubtful debts
{note 20) Prowsian requirements are determingd with reference to ageing of invoices, credit tustary and other available information. Trade receivables are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as whea the customer has been declared inslvent

Sales made through our own retail stores or our globa! web stores are made in cash or with majar ¢credit cards.
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22, Financial risk factors continued

Capital risk

The capital structure of the Group consists of net funds (see note 30) and owners equity {see notes 2/ to 28). The Group manages its capitat to safeguard
the ability to aperate as a going cancern and ta optimise returns to shareholders The Group’s ohyective 15 not to use long term debt to finance the business
Overdraft facilities will be used to finance the working capital cycle if reguired.

The Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes to economic conditions and its strategic objectives. Te maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, buy back shares and cance! themn or issue new shares The Group uses return
on capital employed to assess capital asset perfarmance.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity 1s managed by maintaining sufficient cash balances to meet working capital needs Cash flow requirements are monitored by short and long term
rolling forecasts both within the local gperating units and for the overall group. in addition, the Group's liguidity management palicy invaives projecting cash
flows in the major currencres and considers the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, manitoning working capital levels and liquidity ratios.

The undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's financiat liahilities, including interest charges where applicable, are shown below. All trade payables
are cantractually due within 12 months and therefere the fair values do not differ from their carrying values.

Restated
2021 2020

Between Between More Between Between Mare

Within tand 2 2and5 than Within land 2 2ands than

1 year years years 5 years 1 year ¥ears years 5 years

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Trade and other payables 24.6 - - - 17,6 - -

Lease habilities 9.3 8.7 15.7 16.5 9.2 83 14.1 7.8

339 8.7 15.7 16.5 26.8 8.3 14.1 7.8

Within Within

1 year 1 year

2021 2020

Company £m £m

Trade and other payables 1.9 o8
Financial instruments by category

Group Company

Financial assets at
amortised cost

Firnancial assets at
amortised cost

0 2020 2021 020

. . £m __ Em £m £m
Financial assets as per balance sheet
Trade receivables 7.8 75
Accrued income 1.2 08
Other receivables 13.8 129 0.1
Recewables from group companies 5.8 38
Loans to group companies 19 39
Cash and cash equivatents o . e §5.2 . 528 20.2 Q2
Total T 108.0 741 30.0 79

Graup Company

financiat habinties at
amortisad ¢os:

Financial liabilities ar
amortised cost

Restated
2021 2020 2021 2620
_ - ___&m B Em Em £m
Financial liakilities as per balance sheet
Trade payables 121 63 0.1
Other payables 4.4 6.8 0.1 0.2
Accruals 8.1 45 13 04
Pavables to group companias E E 0.4 a1
Lease liatniities 47.0 37.0 - -
Total 71.6 54.6 1.9 Q.7

Prepayments, deferred income batances end other taxes and social security payahles have been excluded from the above a5 they are not financial assets or

liabilities.

Fayables due to group companies by the Company are interest free and immediately repayable an demand
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

22. Financial risk factors continued

Financing arrangements
The Graup had access to the fallowing undrawn borrowing faciities at the end of the financial year:

2021 2020
£m £m
Floating rate
- Expiring within one year {bank overdraft facility} - 25.0
23. Llease liahilities
Lease liabihties are presented in the statement of financial position as follows
Restated
2021 2020
Group £m £m
Current 8.6 85
Non-current 38.4 28.5
47.0 37.0

The comparative lease tiabihties and corresponding right-of-use assets have been restated to reflect the extension of the lease on our warehouse in
mMemphis, US. The impact of the adjustment was tg increase right-of-use assets by £4.9m and increase currant tease habilities by £0.2m and nen-current
lease habilities by £4 7m See note 16 for more information

The Group's teasing activity consists of leases on property, production equipment, IT equipment and motor vehicles. The majonty of these leases relate to
retail stores. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of tow-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a nght-of-use
asset and a lease lability

tease abilities inciude the net present value of the following lease payments

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives recewvable;

-variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the cammencement date, and
- lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension optiens

Variable lease payments not dependent on an mdex ar a rate (such as turnover rent) are excluded from the measurement of the lease hability and asset

ceases of retail property generally have a lease term ranging from 1 year to 10 years with a break option after no more than 5 years. Leases of other
property, which includes warehouses and offices, generally have a lease term ranging from 2 years to 10 years Leases of production equipment generally
1ave a lease term ranging from 1 year 10 S years Leases of vehicies ang (T equipment are generally lmitad to a lease term of 1 1o 3 years

Amounts recognsed In the income statement relating to leases

Year ended Year ended

30 May 2021 31 May 2020

£m Em

nterest on igase habilities 0.9 a7

£xpenses relating to short-term leases and low-value assets 0.7 06
Amaounts recogrmised in the statement of cash flows relanng to leases

Year ended vear enged

30 May 2021 31 May 2020

Graup - o S o o - Em £m

Total cash outflow for leases - o 10.9 103

The lease hatnhities are secured by the related underlying assets Future mimmurm lease payments as at the dalance sheet date were due as follows

Restated
2021 2020

Between Between Mare Between Between Maore

Within 1and?2 Zand5s than within land? 2and 5 than

1 year years years 5 years 1vyear vears years S years

Group £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Lease payments 9.3 8.7 15.7 16.5 9.2 83 14.1 78
Finance charges (0.7} {0.8) {1.1) {0.8) {0.7) {0.5) {0.9) (0.3)
Net present value 8.6 8.1 14.6 15.7 85 7.8 13.2 75

The Company held no iease liabilities at either year end.
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24, Trade and other payables

Group Company
- 2021 2020 2011 2020
_ . £m Em __  fm £m
Current -
Trade payables 121 6.3 01 -
Other taxes and social security . 1.9 28 - 0.2
Other payables 8.9 10.6 0.1 Q.2
Accruals 10.5 7.0 1.3 03
Deferred income 2.0 36 -
Payables to group companies - - 0.4 0.1
35.4 303 1.9 0.8
The farr value of trade and other payables does not materially differ from the book value.
Payables due to group companies by the Company are interest free and immediately payable on demand.
25,  Qther non-current liabilities
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m £m
Accruals 0.6 as 0.2 0.1
The fair value of other non-current liabilties does not materially differ from the book value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables and other non-current liabilities are denominated in the following currencies
1021 2020
£m £rm
Sterling 172.7 186
Euro i0.3 3.4
US dallar 5.5 56
Other currencies 2.5 32
Total trade and other payables and other nan-current liabilities 36.0 30.8
6. Provisions for other liabilities and charges
Analysis of total provisians
Graup Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
fm £m £m _Em
Curcent o T S a.6 17 -
Noen-current e 1.7 i6 L 0.1 0t
o T 13 33 0.1 01
Employee
nenefits Other Total
Group ) ) £m Em £m
At 1 June 2020 ceh T rmeem 21 12 - T _ﬁ
Charged/{credited)] to the incame statement
Addiional provisians 4 34
Unused amounts reversed {01 i1 21 13
Utihsec o o . o o oy Q1)
At 30 May 2021 - 23 23

The fair value of provisions does not differ from the book value

Employee benefits

The Group operates a long service incentive scheme under which employees receve a one-off addiional hohiday entitlemnent of two weeks when they reach
10, 20 and 30 years of employment (Veterans scheme). The cost of this benefit is accrued over the period of employment based on expected staff retention

rates and the anticipated employrment costs and are utilised once an employee reaches 10, 20 or 30 years of employment,

Other

In the previous year, there was an eneraus contract provision i respect of inventory purchase commitments where the value of orders is in excess of the
expected utibsation of those materials as a result of revised forecasts This provision was released as a result of higher than farecast demand fallowing the

resumption of business after the COVID-19 lockdown

77 Games Warkshop Group PLC



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

27. Share capital

Yotal calied up
share capital

NMumber of Called up Share and share

shares share capital premium premium

{thousands) £m £rmn £m

AL 2 June 2019 32,502 1.6 123 139
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 173 _ - Q.8 0.8
At 31 May 2020 32,675 1.6 131 14.7
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 101 1.4 1.4
At 30 May 2021 32,776 1.6 14.5 i6.1

During the year 101,271 ordinary shares were 1ssued (2020: 172,976) The total authorised number of shares is 42,000,000 shares (2020: 42,000,000 shares)

with a par value of 5p per share {2020: 5p per share). Allissued shares are fully paid

28. Other reserves

2021 2020
Capital Capital
redemption  Translation Other redemption Translation Other
reserve reserve reserve Total reserve reserve reserve Tatal
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Beginning of year 0.1 6.1 {1.0} 5.2 01 56 {1.00 47
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - (3.1} - (3.1) 0.5 - 0.5
End of year 0.1 3.0 (1.0} 2.1 .1 6.1 (1.0} 5.2
The other reserve was created on flotation fallowing o payment to the previous holders of the Company’s ardinary shares
As at 30 May 2021, the Campany’s capital redemption reserve was £0 1m (2020: £0.1m) The Company had no other reserves in addition 1o the capital
redemption reserve at either year end.
29.  MNotes to the statement of cash flows
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) to net cash from operating activities
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
o o . £m ~ £m £m __fm
Operating profitf{lass) o 151.7 90 Q T3.3) {29
Depreciation of property plant and cquipment 9.2 8.8
Deprectation of nght-of-use assets 11.0 101
Netmparment charge of property, plant and equipment 0t
Met impairment charge of night-of-use assets 02
Net impairment charge of intangible assets 0.4 o3
Loss an disposal of intangibte assets (sea below!) 0.1 03
Amortisatran of capitalised development costs 4.8 49
Amaortisabion of other intangsbles 1.2 L2
Share-based payments 1.2 05 -
Ovidend incame from mvestments in subsichary undertakings 81.3 48
Changes in working capita
{increase)/decrease in inventorias (6.2) i?
iincrease)/decrease intrade andg other recevables {10.8) {5 13 [0.2) 12
Increasc/(decrease) in trade and other payables 3.1 107 1.3 (10
{Decrease)/increase in provisions o _ {o9) 15 )
Net cash from operating activities 164.8 127.2 79.1 46 2

The Company sold no property, plant and equpment during either year

The Group disposed of intangible assets with net baok amount of £0.1m {2020: £0.3mj. There were no proceeds on disposal in either year and hence a foss

on disposal equivalent to the net book value was recorded.

The Company sold no intangible assets during either year.
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30.  Analysis of net funds

Restated
Group 2021 2020
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 85.2 529
Lease liahilities o {47.0) (37.0}
Net funds 38.2 15.9
2021 2020
Company £m Em
Cash at bank and in hand 20.2 02
Net funds 20.2 0.2
Restated
tizbilities from Restated
financing activities Cash at bank Total
Groupg - Em £m £Em
Net funds as at 2 June 2019 and 3 June 2019 - 29.4 294
Recognised on adaption of IFRS 16 {32.9) - {32 9)
Cash flows 103 232 335
Acquisition - leases {13 B) - {138}
Interest expense {07} - {0.7)
Remeasurerment adjustments 0.1 - 0.1
Foreign exchange movement - 03 0.3
Net funds as at 31 May 2020 and 1 june 2020 {(37.0) 528 15.5
Cash lNows 10.9 32.9 43.8
Acquisition - leases (22 4) {22 4)
Interest expense {0.9) - 0.9}
Remeasurement adjustments 01 c.1
Foreign exchange mavement 23 (0.6} 1.7
At 30 May 2021 {47.0) 85.2 i8.2
The Company haolds no tease babilities and had no cash flows arising fram financing actiwties during either year
31, Commitments
Capital cammitments
Capnal expenditure contractad for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred 15 3s follows
2021 2020
Group e o L o _ . ) £m o £Em
Property, plant and equipmenl T T C 2.8 14
Intangible assets 0.7 Q.4
Leases

The Group leases vancus retail stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellabie lease arrangements The liabilities far these leases are
recorded an the Group's balance sheet when the Group obtains control of the underlying asset The Group has addimional commaitments relateng 1o leases
where the Group has entered into an obligation but does not yet have cantrol of the underlying asset The future lease payments to which the Group 5
committed pver the expected lease term but not recorded on the Graup s balance sheet are as foliows

2021 2020
Group im _fm
Whthin 1 year o o T T T T e, 7 7 H
Between 1 and 5 years mclusive 02 1.8
N Qver S years - 61
T T 0.2 110
The Campany had no capital commitments or commitments to leases al either year end
tnventary purchase commitments
2021 2020
Group £m tm
Finished goods 2.9 2.5
Components 1.0 1.4
Raw materials 0.6 -

The Company had no mventary purchase commitments at either year end.

Pension arrangements
The Group and Company operate defined contribution schemes. Commitrrents in respect of pensions are included within prepayments and accruals
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

32. Contingencies
The Company provides indemnities to third parties in respect of contracts regarding their use of the Group’s intellectual property, under commercial terms
in the normal course of business,

The Company has also guaranteed the bank overdrafts of certain Group undertakings. There were no amaounts outstanding under these arrangements at
gither year end

Far the year ended 30 May 2621, the subsidiary companies listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 refating ta the audit
of individual financial statements by virtue of section 479A. As a result, the Company guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary companies
are subject.

Country of incorporation

Name of undertaking _ of registration Company registraticn number
Games Waorkshop Limited England and Wales 1467062
Games Workshop internaticnal Limited England and Wales 1924330
Games Warkshop US Limited England and Wales 7462505
Games Workshop US {11oldings) Limited England and Wales 4428814
Games Workshop Step One Limited England and Wales 12448253

The Group has provided a guarantee of £0.1m (2020: £0 1m) to the Canada Revenue Agency in relation to the non-resident sales tax returns of Games
Warkshop Limited

33. Related party transactions
Ouring the year the Company provided management and similar services to Games Workshop timited, a subsidiary undertaking

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been ehminated on consclidation for the Group

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below

2021 2020

Subsidiary Nature of transaction £m £m

Games Workshop Limited Recharges 0.2 01

Dividend received 78.0 485

Games Warkshop International Limited Dividend received 3.3 -

Recewables/(payables) autstanding between the Company and s subsidiaries are shown below

Amount owed by subsidiaries Amaunt owed to subsidranes

2021 2020 2021 2029

Subsidary S £im £m £Em £m
Games Workshop Limited T o 57 37 0.3}
Games Workshop Retall inc 0.1 0.1 -

Games Workshop Deutschland GmbH e - (0.1} {01}

5.8 13 (0.4} 0.1}

Non-current loans outstanding between the Company and its subsidianies are shawn belaw

Amount owed by sunsidiaries

2021 2020

Subsidiary 7 . o Em Em
Games Warkshop interactive Limited ' ' o ' T ” Y'Y 68
Less provision for impairment {6.8) 6 8)
Games Warkshop Limited . o 3.9 39
3.9 ER:]
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34. Share-based payments

Options to acquire share capital of the Group have been granted to eligible employees who enter into @ Sharesave contract Participation in the Sharesave
scheme is offered to all employees of the Group who have been employed for a continuaus period determinad by the board. Under the sharesave contract,
participating employees save a regular sum each month up to a maximum of £500 per month for three years, ar for two years for the US At the end of this
penod, employees are granted a share option, giving the future nght 10 purchase shares in the Group at a 20% discount on the share price at the time of the
invitation. On completion of the contract, employees immediately have six months to exercise their options

Share options outstanding at the year end date have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

Share options outstanding

2021 2020
Scheme Grant date Expiry date Exercise price : i No, . NO.
2016 Scheme - Rest of world 21 Sept 2016 1 May 2020 £4.18 - 859
2017 scheme - Rest of world 27 Sept 2017 1 May 2021 £13 08 275 95,973
2017 5cheme - France 27 Sept 2017 1 May 2021 £14 85 - 334
2018 Scheme - Rest of world 26 Sept 2018 1 May 2022 £28.59 58,086 59,330
2018 Scheme - France 26 Sept 2018 1 May 2022 £31.77 529 529
2018 S5cheme - USA 1 0ct 2018 10ct 2020 £33.22 - 4,369
2019 5cheme - Rest of world 25 Sept 2019 1 May 2023 £34.38 78,173 80,911
2019 Scherre - fFrance 25 Sept 2019 1 May 2023 £35.87 612 612
2019 Scheme - USA 1 0ct 2019 1 Oct 2021 £39.87 3,858 4,249
2020 5cheme - Rest of worid 23 Sept 2020 1 May 2024 £71.43 53,502 -

2020 Scheme - France 23 Sept 2020 1 May 2024 £76.99 570
2020 Scheme - USA 1 0ct 2020 1 Oct 2022 £85.65 2,415 -
198,021 247,166

The following table summarises the movements in Sharesave options gunng the year-
2021 2020

Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
No. of options price No. of optians price
Quistanding at beginning of the year 247,166 £24.66 342,635 £1188
Granted 58,661 £72.08 89,668 £3469
Exercised {101,271) £14.00 {172,576} £4 40
Forfeited [6.535) £40.85 (12,161} £2703
Oulstanding at end of year 198,021 £43.51 247,166 £24.66
Exercisable at end of year 275 £13.08 859 £419

Atl opuions granted will be equity settled

The weighted average market price of Games Workshop Group PLC shares at the date of exercise of Sharesave Scheme aptions during the year was £98 17

(2020 £45 76)

The assessed faur vaiues at grant date of opuons granted during the year were as follows

Scheme

2020 Scheme  Rest of world
2020 Scheme - France

2020 Scheme - USA

E34 72
£3209
_ £32.23

The faw value at grant date1s independentiy deterrnined using an adjusted form of the Black-Scholes madel that takes into account the exercise price, the
term of the oahan, the share prce at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield. and the risk-free interest

rate for the term of the aption
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

- £m Em £m £m __Em

Revenue 351.2 269 7 71866 2213 158.1
Operating profit - pre-exceptional items and royalties receivable 135.4 73.2 69.9 64.7 30.8
Royalties receivable 16.3 16.8 113 9.6 7.5
Operating profit 151.7 30.0 812 743 383
Finance income 0.2 0.1 0.1 01 01
Finance casts (1.0} [0.7) {0.1) -
Profit before taxation 150.9 89.4 B1.3 74.3 38.4
Incame tax expense B {28.9) (181) {15.5) (14.8) (7 9)
Profit attributable tc owners of the parent 122.0 713 65.8 59.5 30.5
Basic earnings per ordinary share [pence per share) 172.7p 218.7p 202 9p 184.3p 95.1p

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual general meeting
Annauncement of half year rasults
Finanaal vear end

Announcement of final results
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the annual general meeting of Games Workshop Group PLC {the ‘Company’) will be held at Trent Vineyard, Unit
1, Easter Park, Lenton Lane, Nottingham, NG7 2PX, at 10.00 am on 15 September 2021 for the following purposes

Ordinary business
As ordinary business to cansider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions 1 to 11 as ordinary resolutions

Resalution 1

To receive the Company's annual financial statements for the year ended 30 May 2021 together with the directors’ report, the
remuneration report and the independent auditors’ report on those financial statements, the auditable part of the remuneration report
and the directors’ report.

Resolution 2
To re-elect K D Rountree as a director.

Resolution 3
To re-elect R F Tongue as a director.

Resolution 4
To re-elect E O'Donnelf as a director.

Resolution 5
To re-elect ] R A Brewis as a director

Resolution 6
To re-elect K E Marsh as a director.

Resolution 7
To elect § Matthews as a director

Resolution 8
To appoint KPMG LLP as independent auditers to hald office until the canclusion of the next general meeting at which financial statements

are laxd by the Cumpany

Resolutian 9
To authorise the directors to fix the auditors remuneratian

Resclution 10
To approve the remuneration report (excluding the directors’ remuneration policy set out on pages 39 to 411 for the year ended 30 May
2021

Resclution 11
To approve the directors remuneration policy as set out on pages 39to 41

Special business
To cansder and, i thought fit, pass the foliowing resolutions, of which resolution 12 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution and
resoluttons 13 and 14 will be proposed as special resclutions

Resolution 12

That the directors of the Campany be generally and unconditionaliy authorised wn accordance with section 551 of the Comparues Act 2006
(the "Act’) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot Relevant Securities {as defined below) up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£540,812 provided that this authority shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company, expire an 14 December 2022 or, if earlier,
the date of the next annuat general meeting of the Company save that the Company may, before such expiry, make offers or agreements
which would or might reguire Relevant Securities to be allotted and the directors may allot Relevant Securities in pursuance of such offer
or agreement notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this resolution has expired. This resofution revokes and replares all
unexercised aulhwrilies previously granted to the directors to allot Relevant Securities but without prejudice to any allotment of shares or
grant of rights already made, offered cr agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities.

Relevant Securities means: i} shares in the Company other than shares allotted pursuant to an employee share scheme (as defined by
section 1166 of the Act), a right to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of the nght itself constituted a Relevant Security or
3 right to convert securities into shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant Security; (ii} any right to
subscribe for or to convert any security nto shares in the Company other than rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares
allotted pursuant to an employee share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the Act). References to the allotment of Relevant Securities
in this resclution include the grant of such rights.
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Resolution 13

That subject to the passing of resolution 12 ahove, the directors of the Company be given the general power pursuant te sections 570 to
573 of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act’) to allot or make offers or agreements to allot equity securities for cash, either-pursuant to the
authority conterred by resolution 12 above or by way of a sale of treasury shares, as if section 561{1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shali be imited to.

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue so that for this purpose ‘rights issue’ means an offer of
equity securities open for acceptance for a period fixed by the directors to holders of equity securities on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion {as nearly as may be) to their respective holdings of such securities or in accordance with
rights attached thereta but subject to such exclusions ar other arrangements as the directors consider necessary or expedient
in relation to treasury shares, fractional entitiements or any legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory, and

() the alfotment of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £81,941,

The power granted by this resalution will expire on 14 December 2022 or, if earlier, the conclusion of the Company's next annual general
meeting (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company prior to or on such date} save that the Company may, before such expiry
make offers or agreements which would or eight require eyuity securilies to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may alflot
equity securities in pursuance of any such offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this resolution has expired. This
resoflution revokes and replaces all unexercised powers previously granted to the directors to allot equity securities as if either section
89(1) of the Caompanies Act 1985 or section 561{1) of the Act did not apply but without prejudice to any allotment of equity securities
already made or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities. For the purposes of this resolution the expression ‘equity securities’ and
references 1o ‘allotment of equity securities’ respectively have the meanings given to them in section 560 of the Act.

Resclution 14

That the Company be and is hereby granted generai and uncanditional authority for the purpaoses of section 701 of the Companies Act
2006 (the "Act’) to make market purchases (within the meaning of section 633(4) of the Act} of ordinary shares of 5p each in the capital of
the Company {‘ordinary shares’) on such terms and in such manner as the directors may from time to time determine provided that

{a} the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion af the next annual general meeting of the Company or on 14
December 2022 whichever is the earlier;

(b} the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares that may be purchased s 3,277,647,

(] the minimum price {excluding expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share is 5p;

(d) the maximum grice {excluding expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share1s the higher of {1) an amount equa!l ta 105

per cent of the average market value of an ordinary share in the Company for the five business days priar to the day on which
the purchase 1s made; and (1) the value of an ordinary share calculated on the basis of the higher of the price quoted for: {a)
the last independent trade of; and (b) the ighest current independent bid for any number of the Company's ordinary shares
an the trading venue where the purchase is carried out, and

(&) the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authonty hereby conferred prior to the expiry of
such authanty which will or may he executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority. and may make 2 purchase of
ordinary sharaes in pursuance of any such contract

==
By order of the board -
R Matthews
Company secretary
26 July 2021
Registerad office
wWillow Road, Lenton
Nottingham
NG7 2WS
Registered in England and Wales under number 2670969
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Notes

We continue te monitor the COVID-19 situation and all assaciated guidance and restrictions. Our priority remains the health and safety of our staff,
customers and sharehalders, and, with this in mind, we recommend that sharehalders do not attend the Annual General Meeting in person this year.
Shareholder participation is important to Games Workshop, and we therefore:

i)
(i}

encourage 2l shareholders to vote on all resolutians in advance of the AGM by registering their proxy votes;

invite shareholders to submit any questions to our board of directors by email to investorrelations@gwplc.com by 10am an 13 September 2021
and we will publish questions received from, and responses provided to, shareholders as appropriate on our investor relations website at
investor.games-workshop.com in advance of the AGM.,

If you do wish to attend the AGM in parson you will be able to do so, but you are asked to register your intention to attend in advance by sending an
email to investorrelations@gwplc.com as soon as possible, and no later tham 48 hours prior to the meeting. Any sharehoiders attending the meeting in
persan shall be required to adhere to all government guidance and restrictians and all site rules at the venue of the AGM.

All arrangements in respect of our AGM remain subject to all applicable COVID-19 guidance and restrictions. Should the situation change and we consider
it no longer possible for shareholders to attend the meeting, we will notify shareholders on our Investor Relations website and by way of a regulatory
announcement.

o

10
11

12

13.

14.

Only those members registered on the Company's register of members at 6.30 prm on 13 September 2021 or, if this meeting is adjourned, at

6 30pm on the day twa days prior te the adjourned meeting, shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting

If you are a member of the Company at the time set out in note 1 above, you are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of your rights to
attend, speak and vote at the meeting and you should have received a praxy form with this document You can only appoimnt a proxy using the
procedures set Qut in these notes and the nates 1o the proxy form.

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting 1o represent you. Details of how ta appeint the chair of the
meeting or another person as your proxy using the proxy form are set outin the notes to the proxy form. If yau wish your proxy to speak on your
behalf at the meeting you will need to appoint your own choice of proxy (not the chair) and give your instructions directly to them.

You may appaint more than ane proxy provided each proxy 15 appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares You may not appoint more
than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share Details of how to appoint mare than one proxy are set gut in the notes to the proxy
farm

The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy to vote on each resclution or withhold their vote. A vote withheld is not a vote m law,
which means that the vote will nat be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution.  no voting indication is given, your proxy
will vate or abstain fram voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote (or abstain from voting) as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other
matter which 1s put before the meeting

To appeint a proxy using the proxy form, the form must be completed and signed and sent or delivered ta the Company's registrars, equinib
Limited, 3t Aspect House, Spencer Road, tancing, BN99 60A 50 as ta be received no later than 48 hours befare the time fixed for holding the
meeting Any power of attorney or any other authority under which the proxy form is stgned [or a duly certified copy of such power or authority)
rmust be included with the proxy form In the case of a member which is 3 company, the proxy form must be executed under its comman seal or
signed on its behalf by an aofficer of the Company ar an attorney tor the Company.

in the case of joint holders, where more than one of the jaint holders purports to appoint 3 proxy, only the appointment submitted by the most
senior holder will be accepted. Sentority 1s deterrmined by the order i which the names of the joimt halders appear in the Company's repistor of
membersan respecl of Lthe Jolnt holding (the tirst-named being the most seniar)

To change your proxy instructions simply subrit a new proxy appointment esing the metkods set out shove The cut-aff time for receipt of proxy
appointments (see above) also applies in relatian to amended instructians, any amended proxy appomtment received after the relavant cut-off
time will be disregarded if you submit mare than one vald proxy appointment. the appointment receved Iast betore the latest time far the recaipt
of proxies will take precedence

In order to revoke a proxy 1astruction you wil need to infarm the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearly staung your intention to
revoke your proxy appamtment to the Company's registrars Equiniti Limited, at Aspect Hause, Spencer Road, Lancing, BNS9 6DA In the case of a
member which s a company, the revocation notice rmrust be executed under its comman seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of the Company or
an attorney for the Company. Any power of attorney or any other authonity under which the revocation notice s signed (ar a duly cerlfied copy of
such power or authority] must be included with the revocation notice The revacation notice must he raceived by the Campany's registrars, Equiniti
amited, 3t Aspect House Spencer Road. .ancing, BN9S 6DA nolater than the time fixed for holding the meeting 1f you attempt to revoke your
oroxy appaintment but the revacation is received after the tme specified then, subject to the paragraph directly below your proxy appointment
will remain valid

Appointrnent of a proxy does not preciude you from attending the meeting and voting in person

A corporation which 1s a mmember ¢an 2ppoint one or maore corporate representatives who may exercise onits behalf. all its powers as a member
provided that no moere than one carparate representative exercises powers over the same share

As at 26 luly 2021 (being the last practical date prior to the publication of thes notice), the Company's issued share capial comprised 32,776,471
ordnary shares of 5 pence each. Each ordinary share carries the right 1o one vote al a general meeting of the Company and, therefore, the total
number of voting nghts in the Company as at 26 July 202175 32,776,471 The website referred ton nate 21 will include information on the number
of shares and voting rights

tt you are a person who has been nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy infarmatian rights {a ‘"Mominated Perscn’) you
may have a right under an agreement between you and the member of the Company who has nominated you {a 'Relevant Member'j tc have
mformation rights to be appornted ¢r to have someone else appainted as a pravy for the mecting. If you either Ju nol Have such a night or it you
have such a right but do not wish to exercise it, you may have a right under an agreement between you and the Relevant Member to give
Instructions to the Relevant Member as to the exercise of vating rights. Your main point of contact in terms of your (nvestment in the Company
remains the Relevant Member (or, perhaps, your custodian or broker) and you should continue to centact them {and nat the Company] regarding
any changes or queries relating to your personal details and your interest in the Company (including any adrinistrative matters) The only
exception to this s where the Company expressly requests a respanse fram you.

You may not use any electranic address provided erther in this notice of annual general meeting or any related documents {including the praxy
form), to communicate with the Company for any purpeses other than those expressly stated.
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Notes continued
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16.

18

20
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24

Under section 338 of the Companies Act 2G06, a member or members meeting the qualification cnteria set out at note 18 below, may. subject to
conditions, require the Company to give to members notice of & resolution which may properly be moved and 15 intended to be moved at that
meeting. The conditions are that: {a) the resalution must not, if passed, be ineffective {whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or
the Company’s constitution or atherwise}, (b) the resolution must not be defamatory of any person, frvelous or vexatious; {c) the request may be
in hard copy form or in electronic form (see note 18 below), must identify the resolution of which notice is tc be given by either setting out the
resolution in full or, if supporting a resolution sent by another member, clearly identifying the resolution which 1s being supported, must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it [see note 19 below), and must be receved by the Company nof later than 6 weeks before the
meeting to which the request relates.

Under section 3384 of the Companies Act 2006, a member or members meeting the qualification criteria set out at note 18 below, may, subject to
conditions, require the Company to include in the business to be dealt with at the meeting a matter {other than a proposed resolution) which may
properly be included in the business {a matter of business). The congitions are that: (a) the matter of business must not be defamatory of any
person, frivolous or vexatious, {b) the request may be 1n hard copy form or in electronic form (see nole 19 below}, must identify the matter of
business by setting 1t out en full or, f sUpporting a statement sent by anather member, clearly identify the matter of business which 15 being
supported, must be accompanied by a statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the persons or persen making it
{see note 19 below) and must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the meeting to which the request relates

Pursuant to Chapter 5 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 200€ {sections 527 to 531), where requested by 3 member or members meeting the
quahfication criteria set out at note 18 below the Company must pubhsh on its websile, a statement setting out any matter that such members
propose to raise at the meeting relating to the audit of the Campany’s hnanciat statements (inciuding the audhtors’ report and the conduct of the
audit} that are to be lsid before the meeting Wiere the Campany 15 required to publhish such g statement onits website t may not require the
members making the request Lo pay any expenses incurred by the Company 1n camplying with the request st must forward the statement to the
Company's auditars no later than the time the statement 1s made available on the Company’s website, and the statemant may he dealt with as part
of the business of the meeting The reguest may be i hard copy form or i electronig form (see note 19 below), either set out the statement in full,
o if supparting a statement sent by another member, clearly identsfy the staterment which «s being supported, must be suthenticated by the person
or persons making it {see note 19 below), and be receved by the Company at least ane week before the meeting

In arder to be able to exerase the members’ night 1o require circyiation af a resolution to be proposed at the meeting {see note 15), a matter of
business to be dealt with at the meettng (see note 16} or the Company to publish audit concerns {(see note 17), the relevant reguest must be made
by 3 member or members having a right to vate at the meeting and holding at least 5% of total voting rights of the Company, or at least 100
members having a right to vate at the meeting and holding, on average, at least £100 of paid up share capital For information on voting rights,
including the total number of voting nghts, see note 12 above and the website referred to in nate 21

Where a member or members wishes 10 request the Company to circulate a resolution to be proposed at the meeting (see note 151, inc.ude a
matter of business to be dealt with at the meeting {see note 16) ar publhsh audit concerns (see note 17] such reguest must be made in eccardance
with one of the following ways (a} a hard copy request which is signed by you, which states your full name and address and is sent to Ross
Matthews, Games Workshop Group PLC, Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingiam NG7 2WS; or (b} a request which states your full name and address, and
s sent Lo ross matthews@gwplc .com. Please state 'AGM’ in the subject line of the e-mail

Under section 319A of the Companies Act 2006 the Company must answer any question you ask relating to the business being dealt with at the
meeting unless answernng the question would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential
information, the answer has already been given an a website in the form of an answer to 3 question orit s undesirable in the interests of the
Campany or the good arder of the mecting that the question be answered.

Information regarding the meeting, including the information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, 1s available from
htip:finvestor.games-workshop com.

The following documents wil! be available for inspection for at least 15 minutes prior to the meeting and during the meeting: (a} copies of the
service contracts of executive directors of the Company and (b} copies of the service agreements of the independent directors of the Company
CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by utilising the
procedures described in the CREST Manual on the Euroctear website {www.euraclear.cam). CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored
members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer ta their CREST spansor or voting service
orovider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behaif. In order for a proxy appointrment made by means of CREST ta be valid,
the appropriate CREST message (a ‘CREST Proxy Instruction’} must be properly authenticated in accordance with Eurcclear UK & treland Limited's
{’EUI') specifications and must contain the information required for such nstructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of
whether 1t constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment 10 the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy, must (in order to be
valid) be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent (10 RALS) by the latest time]s) for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the
notice of meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time {as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the
CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer's agent is able to retrieve the message by enguiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. The
Company may treat as invalig a CREST Proxy instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35{5){a} of the Uncertificated Secunties
Regulations 2001. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting seevice providers should note that EUI does not make
available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal systern timings and limitations wi!l therefore apply in relation to the
input of CREST Proxy Instructians. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal
member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s}), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s)
take|s}} such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this
conaection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of
the CREST Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST system and timings

As an alternative to completing a hard copy proxy form, a shareholder can appoint a proxy or proxies electronically by visiting

www sharevote.co uk. Shareholders will need their voting ID, task ID and shareholder reference number (this s the series of numbers printed under
their name on the proxy form). Alternatively, if a sharehclder has already registered with Equiniti Limited’s anline portfolio service, Shareview, they
£an submit a proxy form at www.shareview .co.uk. Full instructions are given on both websites. To be valid, your proxy appointment{s) and
instructians shouid reach Equiniti Limited no later than 48 hours before the time fixed to hold the meeting. Any electronic cammunication sent by a
shareholder to the Company or the registrar that s found to contain a computer virus will not be accepted.
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Explanatory notes to the notice of annual general meeting

Resolution 1 -~ Financial statements
This1s a standard resolutian comman ta all annual general meetings.

Resolutions 2 to 7 - Election and re-election of directors

The following directors will stand far election or re-election in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code and the Company's articles of
association:

- K D Rounkree
R F Tongue
E O'Donnell
- 1R ABrewis
K E Marsh
S Matthews

Farh of the ahnve rdirectnrs has indirated their willingness to affer themselves for re-glection. The board, having considered the mix of skiils, knowledge and
experience of the directors confirms that each director continues to perform their duties effectively, showing integrity and high ethical standards whilst
maintaining sound, independent judgement in respect of atl decisions taken at board level

Biographical details for each of the directars can be found on pages 20 and 21 of the 2021 annual report

Resolutions 8 and 9 — Re-appointment of auditors and auditors’ remuneration

The Company 15 required to appoint an auditor at each meeting at which financial staterments are presented The audit and risk committee ran a
competitive tender procass which was completed in March 2021 and as a result of this process hereby recommends the appaintment of KPMG LLP as
auditors at the 2021 AGM. Accordingly, resolutions 8 and 9, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, apponts KPMG LLP as auditors of
the Company and avthorises the directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors

Resolution 10 and 11 - Directors’ remuneration
Sharehotders will be requested to approve the directors’ remuneration report (excluding the directors’ remuneration pohey) for the financial year ended 30
May 2021 and the amended remuneration policy as detailed on pages 39 todl of the 2021 annual report

Resolution 12 — Directars’ pawer to allat relevant securities
Generally, the directors may only allot shares in the Company (or grant nights to subscribe for, or to convert any security (nto, shares i the Company] if they
have been autharised to do so by shareholders

Indine with guidance issued by the Investment Assaciation, if passed, resolution 12 will authorise the directors to allot ordinary sharesn the Company (and
ta grant rights to subscribe for, ar ta canvert any security into, ardmary sharesn the Company) in connecticn with 3 nightsssue only up to an aggregate
nominat amount of £540,812 {as redured by the ageregate nominal amount of any shares allotted or rights granted under resolutian 12) This amount
Ibefare any reduction) represents approximately 33% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 26 July 2021, being the last practicable date
nefore the publication of this document The directors intend ta fallow emerging best practice as regards the use of This authonty, including as to the
requirement for dircctors to stand for re-election

1f given, this autherity will expire at the canclusion of the Company’s next annual general meeting or 15 months from the passing of the resolution
{whichever s eartier]. [Lis the dwectors’ citentian La renew the alletment acthonty each year

The directors have no current intentran 1o exeraise edher of the authonties sought under resalution 12 However, the directors consider that 1t 1s n the best
interests of the Company to have the authanties avarlable so that they have the maximum flexibility permitted by institutional sharcholder guidelines to
altot shares ar grant rights withaut the need for a general meeting should they determine thal it 1s sppropriate (0 do 50 to respond te market develnpments
or to take advantage of business opportumities as they arise

Resolution 13 - Disapplication of pre-emption rights on equity issues for cash

Resolution 13, if passed, would enahle the cdirectors to allat shares far Cash an a non pre-emptive basis in limited arrcumstances 115 proposed to authorise
the directors to ssue shares for cash up to an aggregate nominal amount of £81,941 {which represents approximately 5% of the Campany’s 1ssued share
rapital as at 26 July 2021), without hawving to first offer them to shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings 1naddition. v accordance with normal
practice, the resolut:on would enable the board to deal with overseas shareholders and fractional entitlements as it thinks fit in the context of any rights
issue or open offer

If given, this authonty will expire at the conclusian of the Campany’s next annual generat meeting or 15 months from the passing of the resolution
{whichever i5 earlier) 1t s the directors’ intention to renew this authority each year

There are no present plans to exercise this authority

Resolution 14 - Market purchase of own shares

A company may anly purthigse Its gwn shares by either an off-market purchase, in pursuance of a contract approved in advance in accordance with sectian
694 of the Act or by a market purchase, authorised in accardance with section 701 of the Act. A ‘market purchase’ 1s one made through a recognised
investment exchange’. Although the Act only requires an ordinary resolution, LR 12.4.7 of the Listing Rules requires the resolution to be passed 3s a special
resclution {the ABI also recommaend that the resolution should be passed as a special resolution) This resolution 14 authorises market purchases of the
Company's own shares to be made but only within the limitations specaified. In accordance with investment Association guidelines the maximum number of
shares purchased under this authority myst not exceed 3,277,647 ordinary shares The resalution also states the maximum price which may be paid being 5p
per ordinary shares and the maximum price being the higher of: {1l an amaunt equal to 105 per cent of the average market value of an ordinary share in the
Campany for the five business days prior to the day on which the purchase 15 made; and {ii} the value of an ardinary share calculated on the basis of the
higher of the price quoted for. {3} the last independent trade af; and (b) the highest current independent bid for, any number of the Company's ordinary
shares on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out.

As recommended by the investment Association the Company renéws this autharity on an annual basis at each annyal general meeting.
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The directors have no current intention of exercising this authority to purchase the Company's ordinary shares The Company will only exercise this authority
to make such a purchase in the market if the directors consider it is in the best interests of the shareholders generally to do so

The Campany is permitted to hold shares it has purchased in treasury, as an alternative to cancelling them. Shares held in treasury may subsequently be
cancelled, sold for cash or used to satisty aptions exercised under any ot the Company’s share schemes. Whilst held in treasury, the shares are not entitled
to receive any dividend or dividend equivalent {apart from any issue of bonus shares) and have no voting rights. The directors believe 1t is appropriate for
the Company t¢ have the option to hald Hs own shares in treasury if, at a future date, the directars exercise this authority. The directors will have regard to
investor group guidelines which may be in force at the time of any such purchase, holding or re-sale of shares held in treasury.

if given, this authority will expire at the canclusion of the Company's next annual general meeting or 15 months after the passing of the rasolution
{(whichever is earlier). It is the directors’ intention to renew this authority each year.
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